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December 30, 1999

A Message for Illinois Citizens, Governor George Ryan, and Members of the Illinois General
Assembly:

I am proud to present to you the State of Illinois Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999.  This year’s expanded CAFR presents the State
of Illinois’ financial position, results of operation in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as prescribed in pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB), and Service Efforts and Accomplishments (SEA) reporting on the
outcomes of 85% of the State’s budget.

For the first time in six years, the CAFR reports a deterioration of the State’s General Fund
GAAP balance totaling $90 million, increasing the GAAP deficit to $303 million. The fiscal year
1999 decline in the GAAP balance is attributable to an increase in Section 25 liabilities and
transfers to the Illinois FIRST infrastructure improvement program. The strength of the economy
has driven the deficit back to a more reasonable level since fiscal year 1993 when the deficit
stood at $1.916 billion.  However, we must remain vigilant in budgetary decisions to maintain
prudent fiscal practices to keep healthy balances. The decline in the GAAP balance underscores
the necessity of establishing a “Rainy Day Fund” for Illinois by illustrating that improving cash
balances do not necessarily equal budget surpluses.  Illinois should use these good economic
times to prepare for those times when the economy falters.

The accompanying report is divided into four sections: introductory, financial and statistical,
economic, and service efforts and accomplishments.  Responsibility for the accuracy of the data
as well as completeness and fairness of the presentation of this report rests with my Office and
other State agency management.  This report necessarily includes certain amounts which are
based on management’s best estimates and judgments. This is the first year the SEA report was
prepared in conjunction with an overall strategic planning effort spearheaded by the Governor’s
Office.  Representative of our efforts in reporting the outcomes of agency efforts, is recognition
by GASB as an experimental site for SEA reporting.

This CAFR includes a copy of the 15th Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting awarded to the State of Illinois by the Government Finance Officers Association
(GFOA) for last year’s CAFR.  This certificate is a prestigious national award which recognizes
conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local governmental financial
reports.



We now begin to look to the future to find ways to make this report and others issued by our
Office more readily available to the general public.  We welcome any comments and suggestions
at our web site at www.ioc.state.il.us  We look forward to hearing from you.

Sincerely,

Daniel W. Hynes
Comptroller



December 30, 1999 
 
To the Citizens of the State of Illinois, Honor-
able George Ryan, Governor and Honorable 
Members of the General Assembly: 

I am pleased to present to you the State of 
Illinois Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (“CAFR”) for the year ended June 30, 
1999.  The CAFR is the State’s official annual 
report and provides the readers with the 
financial position of the State at June 30, 1999, 
and results of operations during the fiscal year.  
The report is intended to provide the State’s 
managers, investors and creditors, taxpayers, the 
legislature, and other users with information in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles (“GAAP”).  The statements are 
presented using the “pyramid” approach to 
governmental financial reporting as prescribed 
in pronouncements of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”). 
Responsibility for the accuracy of the data as 
well as the completeness and fairness of 
presentation of this report rests with my Office 
and other State agency management.  This 
report necessarily includes certain amounts 
which are based on management’s best 
estimates and judgments. 
 
The CAFR is presented in the following 
sections: introductory; financial; statistical and 
economic, and Service Efforts and 
Accomplishments (SEA) reporting.  The 
introductory section includes the table of 
contents, the Comptroller’s letter of transmittal 
and SEA Performance Measurement Initiative, 
and the State’s organization chart. The financial 
section includes the Auditor General’s report on 

the financial statements, the general purpose 
financial statements, required supplementary 
information and the combining and individual 
fund financial statements and schedules. The 
statistical and economic section includes 
selected demographic and business data, 
generally on a multi-year basis.  The SEA 
reporting section includes the State’s report for 
fiscal year 1999. 
 
The accompanying financial statements are 
prepared in conformity with GAAP applicable 
to state governments as prescribed by the 
GASB. This office strongly supports the GASB, 
contributed to its formation and participates in 
the development of pronouncements, providing 
testimony at public hearings and submitting 
comments and recommendations as proposed 
standards are distributed for exposure. 
 
The CAFR includes all funds, account groups, 
elected offices, departments and agencies of the 
State, as well as all boards, commissions, 
authorities, universities and colleges for which 
the State’s executive or legislative branches are 
financially accountable. The financial 
statements distinguish between primary 
government organizations and component units.  
The primary government is the nucleus of the 
financial reporting entity and is the focal point 
for the users of the financial statements. The 
primary government of the State consists of all 
the organizations that make up its legal entity.  



 

All funds, departments, agencies, offices and 
other organizations that are not legally separate 
are, for financial reporting purposes, part of the 
State or another entity’s primary government. 
Component units are legally separate 
organizations for which the State is financially 
accountable. 
 
The financial activities of the State are organized 
on the basis of individual funds and account 
groups, each of which is a separate accounting 
entity segregated for the purpose of carrying out 
specific activities or attaining certain objectives 
in accordance with specific regulations, 
restrictions and limitations.  The reporting entity, 
fund types and account groups are described in 
detail in Note 1 to the financial statements.  To 
ensure readability of the financial statements, 
generally only funds with total assets, liabilities, 
fund equity, revenues or expenditures greater than 
2% of the total for that fund type are presented 
separately in the combining statements, except 
component units where all units are presented and 
special revenue funds where .5% of the total are 
presented.  
 
Combination of funds is necessary due to the 
existence of more than 700 funds in the State’s 
reporting entity.  Funds used by more than one 
agency are classified with what is determined to 
be the primary administering agency.  
 
Universities, and their related foundations and 
alumni associations are reported as “discretely 
presented component units.”  The Combined 
Statements of Changes in Fund Balances and 
Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures and Other 
Changes for university and college funds are 
presented separately within the general purpose 
financial statements in conformity with GAAP.  
 
An organizational chart, showing the 
relationships between the Citizens of the State of 
Illinois, the three branches of Illinois State 
government and those of the various agencies, 
boards, commissions and universities which 
provide a full range of State government services, 
is presented on page I-39. 
 

ECONOMIC AND  
FISCAL OUTLOOK 
 
ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 
 
The Illinois economy experienced another year of 
strong economic growth during fiscal year 1999. An 
extremely strong domestic economy offset the 
impact of low world commodity prices on 
Illinois’ trade sensitive agricultural sector, related 
agribusinesses such as the Illinois agricultural 
machinery industry, and other export dependent 
industries.   
 
Illinois came out of the economic crisis of the 
1980’s with many innovative aggressive businesses 
able to compete on an equal footing with 
competitors throughout the world.  Illinois 
companies have scored well in this highly 
competitive economic environment.  The continued 
success of the Illinois economy is apparent with a 
689,000 or 13.1% increase in jobs since fiscal year 
1990 and a 4.3% average unemployment rate for 
fiscal year 1999, the second consecutive year 
Illinois unemployment has averaged below 5%.   
 
Home to such major exporters as Caterpillar, 
Motorola, and Abbott Labs, Illinois merchandise 
exports totaled $33.8 billion during 1998 – sixth 
highest among the states.  Illinois exports were 
down 1.1% in calendar 1998 and up 66.3% 
between 1993 and 1998.  Nationally, the value of 
exports was up 47.9% during the period.   
 
Manufacturing exports are led by industrial 
machinery and computers accounting for 27.9% of 
exports in 1998 followed by electric and electronic 
equipment accounting for 19.4%.  The next four 
largest manufacturing export sectors were chemical 
products (12.6%), transportation equipment (7.8%), 
food products (5.5%), and scientific and measuring 
instruments (5.1%).   
 
Illinois ranked third in agricultural export sales in 
1998 with total agricultural exports valued at
$3.1 billion – down $650 million or 17.3% from the 
prior year.  Specialization in corn and soybean 
production is reflected in Illinois’ rank as the 



 

second largest exporter of each crop.  Depressed 
commodity prices, due in large part to dwindling 
demand from East Asia, are putting financial stress 
on the Illinois farm sector.  The impact of low 
prices has been offset in part by increased 
government payments, but an increasing number of 
farmers could falter if there is no future revival of 
weak product prices.   
 
Illinois’ success in the competitive world market 
has been based on technical expertise and a strong 
resource base rather than low labor costs as the state 
has maintained its position as one of the country's 
wealthiest states.  Illinois per capita income during 
fiscal year 1999 stood at $29,806, or $2,612 (9.6%) 
greater than the national average.  
 
The Illinois economy takes advantage of its many 
natural strengths.  During 1998 the State was the 
second largest producer of corn and soybeans and 
the fourth largest producer of hogs.  Illinois 
agri-business has developed to add value to these 
products.  Illinois is the number one ethanol 
producer among the states.  With such major Illinois 
companies as Archer Daniels Midland and A.E. 
Staley (both headquartered in Decatur, the soybean 
capital of the world), Illinois produces a wide 
variety of specialized products based on corn and 
soybeans.   
 
Illinois continues to be home to major producers of 
heavy equipment.  Examples include agricultural 
equipment (such as the Deere plants in the Quad 
Cities), construction equipment (Caterpillar, which 
is based in Peoria and is the world's largest earth 
moving equipment company), and machine tools (a 
specialty of the Rockford area).  Illinois 
manufacturing payrolls have been stable in recent 
years with an average of 974,000 Illinoisans 
holding manufacturing jobs during fiscal year 1999.  
Illinois manufacturing employment has recovered 
from a low of 921,000 jobs during fiscal year 1992.   
 
Illinois' central location makes it the logical 
transportation hub for the nation.  Illinois is home to 
O'Hare airport, the nation's busiest, and an excellent 
highway and railroad network.  The low distribution 
costs from basing an operation in Illinois allow for 
the continued generation of new jobs in 

transportation and merchandising.  During fiscal 
year 1999 350,000 Illinoisans were employed in the 
transportation, communications, and public utilities 
sector, while over 1.3 million were employed in 
wholesale and retail trade.   
 
The state's role as the central distribution point for 
agricultural commodities allowed it to develop the 
world's leading futures market.  Illinois continues to 
be a national leader in financial industries such as 
banking, derivatives trading, and insurance and is 
corporate headquarters for many of the country's 
leading companies.  Illinois is also home to an 
emerging venture capital industry which provided 
$439 million in funds to Illinois start-ups during 
fiscal year 1999.  Finance, insurance, and real estate 
firms employed an average of 408,000 Illinoisans 
during the year.  
 
As home to 39 of the Fortune 500 companies, 
Illinois ranked third among the states, trailing only 
New York and California.  It is uncertain how the 
wave of super mergers, as companies seek to 
increase their size in response to competitive 
pressures, will impact Illinois’ role as a 
headquarters state for major corporations. Illinois 
has recently lost the headquarters of some of its 
largest firms through the Amoco merger with BP 
and the Ameritech merger with SBC 
Communications Inc.   
 
Illinois' reputation for research and technical 
innovation is well founded.  Illinois is home to 
major government research laboratories such as the 
Argonne National Laboratory and the Fermi 
National Accelerator Lab, major private research 
labs such as those operated by Amoco Oil and 
Tellabs, major private universities including 
Northwestern University and the University of 
Chicago, and the state's network of nine public 
universities including the University of Illinois 
home of the Beckman Institute.  The brainpower 
generated from these institutions continues to make 
Illinois a major center for technological 
advancement and a logical location for the 
production of advanced products.   
 
 
 



 

Forecast for the Future 
 
The most recent economic forecast for the Illinois 
economy prepared by the consulting firm of DRI/
McGraw-Hill sees Illinois employment growth 
being constrained by weaker export markets, a tight 
labor market, and a slowdown in the domestic 
economy over the next four years. Illinois 
employment is forecast to increase at a 0.5% annual 
rate between 2000 and 2003, down from a 1.2% 
average annual growth rate between 1998 and 
2000.  DRI notes that the strengths of the Illinois 
economy are its diversification and its role as the 
regional center for finance, trade and exports.   
 
The longer-term forecast expects continued growth 
in the Illinois economy, particularly in the service 
and trade sectors.  Between 1999 and 2016, Illinois 
is expected to add 466,000 jobs, a 7.8% increase.  
Service employment is forecast to increase by 
479,000 jobs or 26.2%, a greater increase than the 
growth in total Illinois employment. In contrast, 
continued automation of production processes is 
expected to cause manufacturing employment to 
decline by 122,000 jobs or 12.8% over the next 
seventeen years.   
 
The long term forecast is vulnerable to unexpected 
economic fluctuations.  Traditionally, the Illinois 
economy, with its emphasis on durable 
manufacturing, has been extremely sensitive to the 
business cycle.  However, the increased emphasis 
on services and finance in the Illinois economy and 
better control over inventories by manufacturers are 
likely to reduce the impact of economic downturns 
on Illinois.   
 
Long-Term Demographic Trends 
 
The steady increase in the Illinois population is 
expected to continue into the twenty-first century.  
The most recent Illinois Bureau of the Budget 
estimate (1997) predicts that the Illinois population 
will increase from 11.4 million in 1990 to 
13.3 million in 2020.   
 
As the baby boom generation ages, a shift in the age 
distribution of the Illinois population is expected 
that will have an impact on the types of services 

demanded from state government.  In 1990, 39.8% 
of the Illinois population was in the 20-44 age 
group and 18.7% was in the 45-64 age group.  In 
2020, the portion in the 20-44 bracket is expected to 
decline to 37.1% with the 45-64 share increasing to 
22.0%.  As the baby boom reaches age 65 after 
2015, the population will age fairly quickly and a 
significant increase in the proportion of elderly is 
expected.   

 
FISCAL OUTLOOK 
 
Fiscal year 1999 marked the seventh straight 
improvement in the State’s General Funds 
budgetary balance (measured on a cash basis) as 
the balance rose from a $356 million surplus in 
fiscal year 1998 to a $503 million surplus in 
1999--the third positive budgetary balance in a 
row and the highest on record.  However, after 
five consecutive years of improvement, the 
State’s General Fund GAAP balance fell, from a 
$213 million deficit in 1998 to a $303 million 
deficit in 1999.  
 
The cash-basis improvements were due in part to 
the continued strength of the economy, as Illinois’ 
General Funds saw a record increase of $1.690 
billion or 8.5% in revenue for fiscal year 1999.  
However, some of the growth was due to one-
time enhancements such as the annualization of 
last year’s restructuring of riverboat taxes and 
insurance taxes, as well as annualization of 
cigarette and public utility tax increases. 
 
Two major factors in the deterioration of the 
General Funds GAAP balance were an increase in 
Section 25 liabilities payable from future year’s 
appropriations and a $285 million end-of-year 
transfer from the General Revenue Fund (GRF) to 
the Fund for Illinois’ Future (FIF).  After falling 
dramatically from 1995 through 1997, Section 25 
deferred liabilities grew in each of the last two 
years.  This year’s growth included a $126 
million increase under the State’s Medicaid 
program and a $16 million increase under the 
group health insurance program for employees, 
retirees, and their dependents administered by the 
Department of Central Management Services.  



 

The $285 million transfer from GRF to FIF was 
made pursuant to law and was intended to jump-
start the Illinois FIRST program (see Major 
Initiatives section).  Absent these factors, the 
General Funds GAAP balance would have 
improved considerably. 
 
Those involved in evaluating the fiscal health of 
governments generally believe that the ability to 
maintain working balances in the range of 4%-5% 
of annual budgetary expenditures indicates a 
strong fiscal position.  As evident in the chart 
below, the State’s General Funds end-of-month 
balance in June ($1.351 billion) was over the 4% 
threshold for the third year in a row.   
 
While there have been improvements across a 
broad spectrum over the last several years, the 
fact that the GAAP deficit worsened in fiscal year 
1999 demonstrates there is room for 
improvement.  But in order to improve its fiscal 
health, the State faces several challenges.  To 
keep balances at acceptable levels and payment 
cycles under control, resources must continue to 
be directed to these purposes.  The ability to 
allocate resources will be constrained on the one 
hand by revenue growth and on the other hand by 
competing budgetary needs. 
 
Some current economic forecasts are predicting a 
slowing in economic growth over the next few 
years and since revenue growth generally mirrors 
the strength of the economy, the record revenue 
growth of the past few years may not be repeated.  
In fact, fiscal year 2000 revenues are currently 
expected to grow $936 million (compared to 
$1.690 billion growth for 1999), including higher 
receipts from a liquor tax increase and higher 
transfers in due to dockside gambling for the 
riverboat gaming industry. 
 
On the spending side of the budget, fiscal 
improvements will be competing with the needs 
of programs such as education and those 
administered by the Departments of Human 
Services, Corrections, Children and Family 
Services, and Public Aid.  One area that bears 
close scrutiny is the growth of medical costs and 
the deferral of those costs to future years. 

While it appears that Section 25 deferred 
liabilities are still largely under control, the fact 
that there have been two consecutive increases 
suggests that continued efforts will be required to 
keep deferrals from again becoming a budgetary 
burden.  This is especially applicable to the 
Medicaid program. 
 
The size, scope and demographics of Medicaid 
are not static but are driven by several dynamic 
factors.  New and beneficial advancements in 
medicine are often extremely costly.  The aging of 
the population in general, and in Illinois in 
particular, means that one of the fastest growing 
and most expensive to treat segments of the 
population will exert an even stronger influence 
on the demand for health care.  In addition, some 
experts are forecasting an increase in the cost of 
medical care over the next few years. 
 
Future budgets will also have to address other 
long-term issues, particularly legislated increases 
in funding for pensions and education. In the 
past, fiscal problems occurred when revenue 
growth slowed and spending pressures remained.  
Attention must continue to focus on lessons 
learned and on maintaining budget discipline. 
 
The drop in the GAAP balance in spite of 
sizeable cash-based improvements in 1999 serves 
as a reminder that past financial performance is 
no guarantee of future results, and high end-of-
year cash balances and even record budgetary 
balances do not in themselves indicate surpluses. 
 
 
 



 

MAJOR INITIATIVES 
 
For the Year.  Major initiatives for the year 
generally reflect the priorities set in the budgetary 
process.  The Illinois Economic Development for 
a Growing Economy (EDGE) Tax Credit, Income 
Tax Changes and School Tax Credit were some 
of the major  “initiatives” enacted by the General 
Assembly for fiscal year 1999.  The following 
discussion outlines those and other major 
initiatives for fiscal year 1999: 
 
Illinois Economic Development for a 
Growing Economy (EDGE) Tax Credit 
Act 
 
With the passage of Public Act 91-0476, the 
General Assembly approved a new income tax 
credit linked to income generated in Illinois as the 
result of new jobs.  EDGE will grant corporate 
income tax credits to applicants creating new jobs 
in Illinois if the applicant’s project meets certain 
specified criteria, including the creation of 100 
new full-time jobs.  EDGE was enacted in 
response to similar programs adopted in Indiana, 
Missouri, Kentucky, Michigan, and Ohio.  This 
credit is effective for tax years 1999 and beyond 
and will impact State revenue in fiscal year 2000 
and thereafter. 
 
Income Tax Changes 
 
State law raised the standard income tax 

exemption and changed the formula for 
computing tax liability for multi-state businesses 
operating in Illinois.  After a three year phase-in 
period, these tax changes are expected to reduce 
State revenue by about $390 million annually. 
 
The standard exemption for individual taxpayers 
and their dependents increased for the first time 
since the State income tax was imposed in 1969.  
Under the legislation, the standard exemption 
increased to $1,300 for income earned during 
1998, $1,650 for 1999 income and $2,000 for 
2000 income.  
 
Prior to this change in State law, the Illinois 
taxable income for multi-state businesses was 
determined using a three factor formula.  After a 
three-year transition period, multi-state 
businesses will determine their allocation of 
income using one factor, the share of corporate 
sales in Illinois.  As proposed, this formula 
change would reduce the tax liability for 
companies with a large share of their assets and 
payroll in Illinois, but increase the tax liability for 
companies with large sales but few assets or 
employees in Illinois.   
 
School Tuition Tax Credit 
 
The School Tuition Tax Credit grants a tax credit 
equal to 25% of the amount paid for school 
tuition, books and lab fees for K-12 students in 
Illinois.  In order to claim the tax credit, taxpayers 
must spend at least $250 on tuition, books and 
fees.  This credit begins with tax returns filed for 
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calendar year 2000 and is limited to a maximum 
credit of $500 per family. 
 
The Public Accountability Report of 
Service Efforts and Accomplishments 
(SEA)  
 
One of the priorities of this administration is to 
improve the accountability of state governmental 
agencies to the public they serve by reporting on 
the efficiency, effectiveness, and outcomes of 
government programs.  To this end the 
Comptroller has launched the Public 
Accountability Project, which, in cooperation 
with the Governor’s Office of Strategic Planning, 
has instituted a process by which state agencies 
annually report on their performance in carrying 
out their statutory missions.  The instrument for 
this process is Service Efforts and 
Accomplishments (SEA) Reporting as outlined by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB).  The Office of the Comptroller is 
working with the GASB to determine and set 
standards for this type of financial reporting. 
Illinois has been designated by the GASB as an 
official “experimentation site” for SEA reporting.  
The final section of this transmittal letter provides 
a description of the Public Accountability Project, 
and the Illinois Public Accountability (SEA) 
Report is contained in the final section of this 
CAFR.   

Receivables Reporting 

The State reported gross receivables of $8.2 
billion at June 30, 1999, for statutory compliance 
reporting purposes. Of that amount, nearly $3.2  
billion (39%) was estimated as uncollectible.  Of 
the net receivable ($5.0 billion), $3.25 billion is 
over 180 days past due. Net receivables for the 
total reporting entity for GAAP reporting totaled 
$9.5 billion.  The difference between compliance 
reporting and GAAP reporting is due to the 
difference in the measurement focus and basis of 
accounting. 
 
The Office of the Comptroller continues to 
establish and enforce measures to help reduce the 
financing of “deadbeats”  indebted to the State.  
Effective January 1, 1998, all debts that exceed 

$1,000 and are more than 90 days past due are 
required to be reported in the Comptroller’s 
Offset System.  Prior to this date, only debts in 
excess of $1,000 and more than 1 year past due 
were required to be reported. The new legislation 
enables the Comptroller’s Office to intercept tax 
refunds and other payments that may otherwise be 
paid to the State’s debtors. 
  
For the Future.  The fiscal year 2000 
budget, the State’s largest infrastructure program,  
electronic commerce, gaming reform and a Rainy 
Day Fund Proposal are some of the future 
initiatives that are anticipated for the State. These 
future initiatives are discussed below: 
 

Fiscal Year 2000 Budget 

For fiscal year 2000, the General Assembly 
approved a $45.7 billion budget, which the 
Governor approved.  This budget contains the 
State’s largest infrastructure  program in history 
(See Illinois FIRST below),  provides an increase 
in educational funding and a change to State 
gaming laws. 
 
Illinois FIRST 
 
In the spring of 1999, the Governor proposed a 
$12.2 billion infrastructure improvement 
program, the largest in the history of the State.  
Titled Illinois FIRST (Fund for Infrastructure, 
Roads, Schools and Transit), the plan is designed 
to meet the State’s critical infrastructure needs.  
Financing for the original plan included: $4.5 
billion in State bonds, $2.0 billion in pay-as-you 
go funding, $1.6 billion in Regional 
Transportation Authority (RTA) bonds, $1.1 
billion in local school matching funds and $3.0 
billion in leveraged federal funds.  The final 
negotiated package included an additional $399 
million in bond authorizations.  These additions 
bring the program total to approximately $12.6 
billion. 
 
Funding for the State’s portion of the plan 
includes: numerous tax and fee increases 
estimated to raise $572 million annually, the 
transfer of $285 million from the General 



 

Revenue Fund in June 1999, the transfer of 
another $260 million from the General Revenue 
Fund in fiscal year 2001 and monthly transfers of  
$5.0 million from General Revenue Fund to the 
School Infrastructure Fund to pay for bonded 
indebtedness. 
 
Electronic Commerce 
 
Electronic Commerce is fast becoming the way to 
conduct business transactions in the private sector 
as well as the public sector. Electronic Data 
Interchange (EDI), an agreement between 
business partners, is the vehicle that is needed to 
conduct electronic business transactions. In the 
State of Illinois, the business partners are the state 
agencies and their vendors who provide goods 
and services. Generally, the Comptroller's Office 
receives the payment requests and funds from the 
agencies and provides payment and remittance 
information to the vendors. The Comptroller's 
Office is committed to working in partnership 
with state agencies to facilitate establishing 
agreements between the individual agencies and 
their vendors in order to ensure successful 
implementation of an electronic commerce 
solution. 
 
Illinois is served by a large number of vendors 
with varying remittance needs. Most vendors 
today receive payments in the form of warrants 
that are mailed along with a paper remittance 
advice. Some of these vendors, who wish to 
expedite their payments, but do not require 
remittance information to post payments to their 
accounts receivable, are currently served 
adequately by direct deposit of their payments 
through Electronic Funds Transfer. A growing 
number of vendors wish to expedite their 
payments and posting of their accounts 
receivables by taking advantage of electronic 
technologies. This growing number of vendors 
desire true Electronic Commerce: paperless 
transactions between business partners through 
Electronic Data Interchange (EDI). In recognition 
of the many and varied state vendors, the 
Comptroller's Office is committed to maintaining 
and expanding current EFT payment processes 
and promoting participation in the direct deposit 

program while implementing system changes that 
will provide the technological capability to 
accommodate EDI. 
 
Gaming Reform 
 
The State made major statutory changes to the 
gaming laws in the last General Assembly 
session.  These changes included  provisions to 
allow dockside gambling, the relocation of a 
riverboat licensee and the dedication of 15% of 
the adjusted gross receipts from the relocated 
riverboat to the horse racing industry.  These 
changes are expected to have a positive effect on 
State revenues in the future. 
  

“Rainy Day” Fund Proposal 
 
The Office of the Comptroller continues to 
propose legislation to create a “Rainy Day” Fund. 
This fund would be used to help the State meet its 
obligations whenever occasional deficits or 
failures in revenue occur.  This fund will not 
increase State spending, but is specifically 
intended to reduce the need for future tax 
increases, diminish the need for short-term 
borrowing and maintain or strengthen the State’s 
bond rating.  The creation of this fund would 
simply follow the common sense practice of 
putting money aside when revenue growth is 
healthy to help tide the State over during periods 
of poor revenue growth. 
 

Service Efforts and  
Accomplishments (SEA) 
Background 
 
The Public Accountability Project 
 
Traditional governmental financial reporting and 
budgeting are designed to report to the public on 
how financial resources are acquired and used by 
governments and to ensure that resources made 
available to state agencies are used in accordance 
with the laws and policies enacted by the General 
Assembly and the Governor.  How many people 
did we employ, and how much equipment did we 



 

purchase?  How many more will we use this year 
than we did last year?  Did expenditures fall 
within the amounts appropriated?   These are the 
types of questions answered by these traditional 
financial practices. 
 
Missing from the traditional financial practices, 
however, is a review of how well our state 
agencies use their resources to accomplish the 
assignments given them in the laws and policies 
set by elected officials.  What, in the broad sense, 
did taxpayers get for the money they spent?   
Were resources used effectively?  Are our 
children well schooled?  Are our highways safe 
and efficient?  Do we do a good job of keeping 
our air and water clean?             
 
One of the priorities of my administration is to 
improve the accountability of state governmental 
agencies to the public they serve.  That is, to 
make sure that state resources are spent for the 
proper purposes, but also to report on the 
efficiency, effectiveness, and outcomes of 
government programs.  To this end, the 
Comptroller has launched the Public 
Accountability Project, which, in cooperation 
with the Governor’s Office of Strategic Planning, 
has instituted a process by which state agencies 
annually report on their performance in carrying 
out their statutory missions.  The effect of this 
type of performance reporting is two-fold.  First, 
state agencies become more customer-oriented 
and therefore more effective.   Second, the public 
will become more aware of the missions and 
accomplishments of state agencies.      
 
The instrument for this process is Service Efforts 
and Accomplishments (SEA) Reporting as 
ordained by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB), the agency designated 
to set standards for financial reporting by state 
and local governments.  Recognizing the 
incompleteness of traditional financial reporting, 
the GASB has begun an initiative to stimulate 
SEA reporting by state and local governments.  
The goal of SEA reporting is to improve financial 
reports by linking information on the performance 
of government programs with the usual financial 
data.  SEA reporting examines not only the 

financial resources allocated to programs, but 
their missions and goals – plus quantifiable 
measurements of how they have met those 
missions and goals.  The GASB is promoting 
experimentation by governments under their 
purview before issuing standards on SEA 
reporting.  Illinois has been designated by the 
GASB as an official “experimentation site” for 
SEA reporting. 
 
Expanded SEA Reporting for Fiscal Year 1999 
 
This year’s SEA report is the third issued by the 
Illinois Office of the Comptroller, but it is the 
first done under a formalized reporting process 
initialized with the top state agencies in Illinois 
government.  That, along with an effort to expand 
the range of information, makes for a larger, 
expanded report. 
       
Formal reporting process.  With the cooperation 
of the Governor’s Office of Strategic Planning, 
the Comptroller initiated a process to incorporate 
nineteen of the largest departments and agencies 
in state government into the SEA reporting 
system.  Together the budgets of these nineteen 
agencies represent over 85% of the state budget 
for fiscal year 1999.   
 
The first SEA Reporting Conference in Illinois 
State government, conducted with the assistance 
of the Department of Accountancy at the 
University of Illinois at Springfield, began a 
process of preparing these selected agencies to 
compile their performance reports.  With input 
and direction from the Office of the Comptroller 
and the Governor’s Office of Strategic Planning, 
the agencies chose key programs on which to 
report and identified the mission statements, 
goals, and key indicators that reflect their 
performance.  These nineteen reports are the first 
compiled by the agencies themselves.   
 
Survey of public opinion on state government 
services.  One of the goals of SEA reporting (and 
performance reporting generally) is to make 
agencies more aware of their customers.  
Customer satisfaction, as gauged in customer 
satisfaction surveys, is recognized in SEA 



 

reporting as a key indicator of performance.  For 
state government, the customer is the public. 
 
A few state agencies do survey their direct 
consumers on a limited basis, and the results of 
those surveys are reflected in their individual 
SEA reports.  This year’s Public Accountability 
Report, however, contains the results of a 
statewide survey of public opinion on our state’s 
performance in key programmatic areas.  Carried 
out by the Center for Governmental Studies at 
Northern Illinois University, the survey gauges 
the general public’s attitudes about the 
importance of certain programmatic areas as well 
as the their opinion on how well we as a state 
address those areas.     
 
Mission statements, goals, and external 
benchmarks.  Integrated into the SEA reporting 
format this year are mission statements, goals, 
and external benchmarks.  This information 
supplies an overall context for the reported 
programs.  Mission statements and goals set 
expectations about the outcomes programs strive 
to reach.  External benchmarking (an aspect of 
reporting that will require development) looks at 
the performance of comparable programs in other 
states (or national norms) to determine where our 
programs rank.     
 
Summaries of program areas.  Like the Illinois 
State Budget, the Public Accountability Report is 
broken down into six program areas: Education, 
Human Services, Public Safety, Environment and 
Business Regulation, Economic Development and 
Infrastructure, and Government Services.  All 
state agencies are assigned to one of these 
program areas.  For the first time, the Public 
Accountability Report presents summary data on 
these program areas that convey basic inputs 
(expenditures) and key outcomes for these areas 
as a whole.  This type of overall reporting links 
agencies within the same program area to 
common outcomes that, individually, they may 
only indirectly affect. 
 

The Goals of Public Accountability 
 
The Public Accountability Report for fiscal year 
1999 realizes the goals set out in last year’s 
CAFR.  It expands the coverage of the report to 
nineteen of the largest agencies in state 
government.  And the SEA reports submitted by 
these agencies are the product of a newly 
instituted reporting process.  The report offers 
information beyond the typical financial data on 
the programs administered by these agencies and 
presents the opportunity to ask questions about 
what State government is and is not 
accomplishing.   
 
In broader terms, the Public Accountability 
Project seeks to: 
 
Make State government more result-oriented.  
State agencies should be judged on what they are 
accomplishing, rather than merely the volume of 
their activities.  SEA reporting enables agencies 
to measure the effectiveness of the services they 
provide to taxpayers and to gauge how their 
outcomes and efficiency stack up against other 
entities offering the same services. 
 
Increase public awareness of the efficacy of 
State government programs.  Budget and 
financial information is generally available.  
Information about the success or failure of certain 
services or programs is made public from time to 
time on a piecemeal basis.  The Public 
Accountability Report aims to make readily 
available, to the public and decision makers, 
comprehensive information - in a simple, 
understandable format - on the results state 
government attains through the programs it offers 
to the public.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Facilitate informed decision-making on the 
allocation of State resources.  
A comprehensive review of the results attained 
by state government programs can bring about 
an approach to budgeting that allows programs 
to be judged by the results they produce.  SEA 
reporting reveals whether a program is 
performing up to expectations as laid out in its 
mission and goals.  Also, by comparing its 
resources and results to similar programs in 
other states or a national average (external 
benchmarking), SEA reporting can provide 
guidance as to whether our programs are 
performing up to standard and whether 
additional resources are warranted or necessary. 
 
Increase public accessibility to information 
on state  government  programs .  
Accountability is impossible unless the public 
receives lucid information on the activities of 
government and then can avail themselves of 
opportunities to have input into decision-
making.  This report and survey attempt to meet 
this need.  Other avenues for both disseminating 
information and collecting input need to be 
explored.  The Illinois Office of the Comptroller 
encourages all citizens to make suggestions for 
improving the report.  The Public 
Accountability Report is available at the 
Comptroller's web site: http://www.ioc.state.il.
us. 

Explanatory Notes 
 
Validity and reliability of SEA information.  
Except for specific instances that may have 
required clarification, no attempt has been made 
to verify or reconcile reported expenditures or 
performance data.  None of the reported 
performance data has been audited, nor does it 
fall within the scope of the audit opinion.  The 
information provided has been reported or 
submitted by each agency unless explicitly 
noted otherwise.  The verifiability and reliability 
of reported performance data remain a long-
term challenge for SEA reporting. 
 
Reporting standards.  SEA reporting is in its 
experimental stages.  (Illinois has been re-
designated as an “experimental site” by GASB.)  
Therefore, at present, no generally accepted 
standards have been set for this type of 
reporting.  The evolutionary process of 
instituting performance reporting in Illinois is 
also the process for setting standards. 
 



 

 

State of Illinois State of Illinois
Balance Sheet - Primary Government Operating Statement - Primary Government

Amounts (in millions) Amounts (in millions)
FY1999 FY1998 FY1999 FY1998

Assets (and other debits) Revenues
Cash $ 9,292 $ 8,225 Taxes -
Investments 50,904 46,052   Income $ 9,250 $ 8,811
Receivables, net 7,369 6,563   Sales 7,689 7,168
Fixed assets 5,416 5,126   Other taxes 5,866 5,270
Other assets 1,576 1,375 Federal government 9,356 8,950
Other debits 21,626 20,608 Charges for sales and services 2,849 2,767
Total assets and other debits $ 96,183 $ 87,949 Interest income 5,032 6,332

Contributions 2,949 2,349
Liabilities Licenses and fees 1,157 1,093
Payables $ 7,971 $ 7,063 Other 1,492 1,583
Pension liability 12,116 11,305 45,640 44,323
Bonds outstanding 9,277 8,875
Depository and other 4,270 5,679 Expenditures/Expenses
Other 2,462 2,210 Health and social services 10,891 9,963
Total liabilities 36,096 35,132 Education 7,540 6,786

General government/administrative 6,189 5,768
Equity and Other Credits Social assistance 3,233 3,540
Investment in fixed assets 5,348 5,061 Transportation 2,567 2,649
General (303) (213) Public protection and justice 1,899 1,678
Special revenue 3,571 2,943 Debt service 964 966
Debt service 828 745 Benefit payments and refunds 3,125 2,907
Capital projects 480 357 Prizes and claims 813 842
Proprietary 323 288 Other 1,579 1,426
Trust 49,840 43,636 38,800 36,525
Total fund equity 60,087 52,817 Net other sources (uses) and 
Total liabilities and fund balances/    nonoperating revenues (expenses) (1,093) (1,073)
   retained earnings $ 96,183 $ 87,949 Excess of revenues over expendi-

   tures/expenses and net other uses$ 5,747 $ 6,725
* As restated

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The following balance sheet and operating 
statements have been condensed from the 
statements included in the State of Illinois 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
utilizing the “memorandum only” column of 
the primary government. 



 

 

Total assets (and other debits) of the State of 
Illinois at June 30, 1999 were approximately 
$96 billion. This was an increase of $8.2 billion 
(9%) over fiscal year 1998.  The largest increase 

was in the State’s investments ($4.9 billion).  
The Pension Funds accounted for $4 billion of 
the investment increase.   

 
Comparison of Total Assets (in millions) *

% change
Account FY1999 FY99 % From 1998 FY1998

Investments 50,904$              52.9% 10.5% 46,052$             
Cash & cash equivalents 9,292                  9.7% 13.0% 8,225                
Receivables 7,369                  7.7% 12.3% 6,563                
Fixed assets 5,416                  5.6% 5.7% 5,126                
Other assets 1,576                  1.6% 14.6% 1,375                
Other debits 21,626                22.5% 4.9% 20,608               
Total Assets 96,183$              100.0% 9.4% 87,949$             
*The above numbers include primary government funds only.   
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Total liabilities increased to $36.1 billion at 
June 30, 1999, $964 million (2.7%) more than 
fiscal year 1998.  The largest increases were the 
State’s payables ($909 million).  There was also 
an increase ($810 million) in the pension 

liability due, in large part, to an increase in the 
pension obligation of $561 million in the  
Teachers Retirement System and $190 million 
in the State Universities Retirement System.  

 

 

Comparison of Total Liabilities (in millions) *
% change

Account FY1999 FY99 % From 1998 FY1998
Payables 7,971$            22.1% 12.9% 7,063$       
Pension liability** 12,116            33.6% 7.2% 11,305       
General obligation bonds 6,126              17.0% 4.1% 5,886         
Special obligation bonds 1,828              5.1% ( .2%) 1,832         
Revenue bonds 1,323              3.7% 14.3% 1,157         
Depository & other 4,270              11.8% ( 24.8%) 5,679         
Other 2,462              6.8% 11.4% 2,210         
Total Liabilities 36,096$          100.0% 2.7% 35,132$     
*The above numbers include primary government funds only.

Liabilities 
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The fund balances for all primary government 
funds combined was $60 billion at June 30, 
1999 representing a 13.8% increase from fiscal 
year 1998. By far, the majority of the increases 

were in the trust funds ($6.2 billion).  Within 
those funds, the Pension Funds and Investment 
Trust Funds balances increased $4.6 billion. 

 

 

Equity and Other Credits 

Comparison of Total Fund Balances (Deficits)
and Retained Earnings (in millions) *

Fund Types/ % change
Account Group FY1999 FY99 % From 1998 FY1998
General $ (303) (0.5%) 42.3% $ (213)
Special Revenue 3,571       5.9% 21.3% 2,943            
Debt Service 828          1.4% 11.1% 745               
Capital Projects 480          0.8% 34.5% 357               
Proprietary 323          0.5% 12.2% 288               
Trust 49,840      82.9% 14.2% 43,636          
General fixed assets 5,348       8.9% 5.7% 5,061            
Total Fund Balances $ 60,087 100.0% 13.8% $ 52,817
*The above numbers include primary government funds only. 

Equity and Other Credits
June 30, 1999 (in millions)
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General Governmental 
 
Functions 
 
The governmental fund types are those through 
which most State functions are financed.  These 
fund types (the general, special revenue, capital 
projects, and debt service funds) are presented 
on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
Throughout the year, the Comptroller’s Office 
publishes a monthly Fiscal Focus which 
summarizes the status of governmental fund 
revenues and expenditures and analyzes various 

programs and activities.  These reports are 
available on request. 

 

Revenues 
 
Revenues on the modified accrual basis are 
recognized when they are both measurable and 
available to finance current operations. 
Revenues (amounts expressed in millions) from 
various sources for fiscal years 1999 and 1998 
are as follows: 

 
Increase Percentage

                         Amount Percentage of Total (Decrease) Incr (Decr)
Revenue Source 1999 1998 1999 1998 from 1998 from 1998
Taxes:
  Income $ 9,250     $ 8,811     27% 28% $ 439 5%
  Sales  7,689     7,168     23% 22% 521 7%
  Motor fuel  1,306     1,287     4% 4% 19 1%
  Public utility  1,438     1,208     4% 4% 230 19%
  Other  1,961     1,604     6% 5% 357 22%
Federal government  9,340     8,929     28% 28% 411 5%
Licenses & fees  1,152     1,093     3% 3% 59 5%
Interest/investment  332        302        1% 1% 30 10%
Other  1,331     1,549     4% 5% (218)           (14%)

Total $ 33,799   $ 31,951   100% 100% $ 1,848         6%
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Fiscal year 1999 governmental funds revenues 
increased by $1,848 million (6%) over 1998 
revenues.  State-imposed taxes including in-
come, sales, motor fuel, public utility, and mis-
cellaneous other taxes remained the largest 
overall revenue source for fiscal year 1999 and 
comprised nearly 63% of total State revenues.  

Income Tax 

Income tax revenues, the State’s largest tax 
revenue source, increased $439 million (5%) 
from fiscal year 1998.  The increase is generally 
the result of a robust economy and resulting 
growth in personal and corporate income taxes. 

Sales Taxes 

Sales taxes remained the second largest tax 
revenue source for fiscal year 1999, increasing 
$521 million (7%) from fiscal year 1998.  The 
increase is due to general growth in retail sales 
in an improved economy. 
 

Public Utility Taxes 

Public utility taxes showed an increase of $230 
million (19%) mainly because of a 2% rate in-
crease in the telecommunications tax deposited 
into the Common School Fund and the School 
Infrastructure Fund.   Also, effective with fiscal 
year 1998, the Department of Revenue began 
collecting a new Energy Assistance Charge for 
deposit into the Supplemental Low Income En-
ergy Assistance Fund. 

Federal Government Revenues 

Federal government revenues for fiscal year 
1999 increased $411 million from fiscal year 
1998, and continue as the second largest reve-
nue source on a GAAP basis for 1999 (second 
only to the State-imposed taxes discussed 
above).  Of this increase, federal government 
revenues at the Department of Public Aid in-
creased $106 million reflecting an increase in 
the federal government reimbursement revenues 
of the medicaid assessment program. 
 
A significant increase occurred in the Road 
Fund ($316 million) administered by the De-
partment of Transportation (IDOT).  The in-
crease occurred because funding from the fed-
eral highway bill was delayed in the previous 
fiscal year. 
 

Other Revenues  

Other revenues decreased $218 million (14%) 
from fiscal year 1998.  One major component of 
the decrease was in the County Hospital Serv-
ices Fund where the other revenues were $54 
million less in Fiscal year 1998 than the previ-
ous year because there were fewer Medicaid eli-
gible patients. Another component was a de-
crease of $84 million in the Department of Pub-
lic Aid’s Child Support Enforcement Trust 
Fund where record collections were recorded in 
the previous fiscal  year. 
 

Expenditures 

Expenditures for governmental fund types are 
presented on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting and are generally recognized when 
the fund liability is incurred regardless of when 
payment is made.  Governmental funds 
expenditures of $32,683 million in fiscal year 
1999 increased  $1,922 million (6%) over 1998 

and were $1.1 billion less than revenues on a 
GAAP basis. 
 
Expenditures (amounts expressed in millions) 
for major governmental fund functions in fiscal 
year 1999 and 1998 were as follows: 



 

Percentage Increase Percentage
Amount of Total (Decrease) Incr (Decr)

Expenditure Function 1999 1998 1999 1998 from 1998 from 1998
Health and social services $ 10,891  $ 9,963 33% 32% $ 928           9%
Education  7,540 6,786 23% 22% 754           11%
General government  5,942 5,561 18% 18% 381           7%
Social assistance  2,086 2,401 6% 8% (315)          (13%)
Transportation  2,567 2,649 8% 9% (82)            (3%)
Public protection & justice  1,897 1,678 6% 5% 219           13%
Natural resources/recreation  452 414 1% 1% 38             9%
Debt service  964 967 3% 3% (3)              (0%)
Capital outlays  344 342 1% 1% 2               1%

Total $ 32,683  $ 30,761 100% 100%   $ 1,922 6%
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Health and Social Services Expenditures 

Health and social services expenditures of $10.9 
billion were the largest expenditure function for 
fiscal year 1999, increasing by $928 million 
(9%) over fiscal year 1998. This expenditure 
function is 34% of total spending on a GAAP 
basis, increasing slightly from 32% in fiscal 
year 1998. Significant fluctuations occurred at 
several agencies.  A $436 million increase in 
General Fund expenditures at the Department of 
Human Services (DHS) represents an increase 
in Health and Social Services programs and a 
decrease in social assistance programs.  The 
Department of Public Aid showed a $720 
million increase in General Fund spending.  The 
increase is attributable to a change in the 
Medicaid accrual allocation for fiscal year 1999.  
The Medicaid assessment funds’ expenditures 
decreased by $264 million.   

Education Expenditures 

Education expenditures were once again the 
second largest expenditure function in the 
governmental funds for fiscal year 1999. 
Education expenditures increased $754 million 
(11%) from fiscal year 1998 on a GAAP basis. 
 
Significant education expenditure increases that 
reflect the continuing budgetary emphasis on 
education in fiscal year 1998 were at the State 
Board of Education where General Fund 
expenditures increased $253 million in the 
General Revenue Account and $368 million in 
the Common School Account. 
 

Social Assistance Expenditures 

Social assistance expenditures decreased $315 
million (13%) from the last fiscal year.  The 
largest decrease occurred at the Department of 
Human Services in the General Fund ($273 
million) because of the change from the Aid To 
Families With Dependent Children (AFDC) 
Program to the Temporary Assistance For 
Needy Families (TANF) Program. The TANF 
Program imposes a time limit on assistance that 

has reduced expenditures. 
 

General Government 

General government expenditures increased 
$381 million (7%) from fiscal year 1998 to 
1999.  Expenditure increases occurred at the 
Department of Commerce and Community 
Affairs ($52 million) in conjunction with the 
first full year of the Low Income Energy 
Assistance Program.  In addition, the 
Department of Revenue’s expenditures 
increased $68 million in the Local Government 
Tax Fund and $54 million in the Local 
Government Distributive Fund.  This growth 
was mainly attributable to larger payments to 
units of local government because of income tax 
growth. 
 

Internal Control 

 
Each State agency’s management is responsible 
for establishing and maintaining internal control 
designed to ensure that the assets of the State 
are protected from loss, theft or misuse, and to 
ensure that adequate accounting data are 
compiled to allow for the preparation of 
financial statements in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles. The 
State’s internal controls are designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that 
these objectives are met. The concept of 
reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the 
cost of a control should not exceed the benefits 
likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of 
costs and benefits requires estimates and 
judgments by management. 
 
On October 31, 1989 the Fiscal Controls and 
Internal Auditing Act (“FCIAA”) became law, 
requiring all State agency chief executive 
officers to annually certify the adequacy of 
internal controls in place within their agencies.  
The first annual certifications by State agency 
CEOs were due November 15, 1990.  
Subsequent certifications are due May 1st each 



 

year.  The FCIAA also requires that certain 
agencies have a chief internal auditor with a 
specified minimum level of professional 
competency. 
 

Budgetary Controls 
 
The Comptroller’s Statewide Accounting 
Management System (“SAMS”) provides the 
basis for receipt, expenditure and encumbrance 
reporting of all State treasury held funds with 
specific budgetary controls maintained on line-
item expenditures for all appropriated funds. 
Appropriations (budget) and actual expenditure 
analysis for significant individual funds is 
provided in the Budgetary Schedules section of 
this report.  A reconciliation between the GAAP 
and budgetary basis of accounting is presented 
in Note 2 of the financial statements.  The 
budgetary system (i.e., SAMS) classifies funds 
into traditional groupings which do not conform 
with the fund type classifications set forth by 
the GASB; therefore, a reclassification of 
budget categories to GAAP financial statement 
fund types also is presented in Note 2. 
 
The State of Illinois has a two-month “lapse 
period.”  During this time, July 1 to August 31, 
State agencies can expend funds appropriated in 
the prior fiscal year if encumbered by June 30. 
For all fund types, goods or services received 
prior to June 30 are recorded as liabilities and 
expenditures or expenses, whichever is 
appropriate.  For governmental fund types, lapse 
period expenditures for goods or services 
encumbered as of June 30 and received prior to 
August 31 are reported with other 
encumbrances as reservations of June 30 fund 
balances and not as liabilities or expenditures. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Investment Management 
 
The Illinois State Treasurer is responsible for 
investing all cash resources of the State, with 
the exception of those held by the retirement 
systems and certain debt service, enterprise, 
agency, universities’ and colleges’ endowments 
and other locally-held funds.  Of the five 
retirement systems, three pool their resources 
for investment and two invest their resources 
under investment master trustee arrangements 
with individual investment managers.  The 
universities and colleges are granted 
independent powers to invest their funds which 
are held outside the State Treasury.  Interest 
income earned on the cash resources received 
and invested by the State Treasurer is allocated 
to the various funds (where specified by law) 
based on the average daily cash balances 
invested. A comparison with prior years of the 
State’s investments (including component units) 
at June 30 is presented on page I-29. 
 
State agencies had $4.9 billion more invested at 
June 30, 1999 than at June 30, 1998.  The 
pension funds accounted for $4 billion of the 
investment increase. 
 
Agreements signed between the State of Illinois 
and the Financial Management Service of the U.
S. Treasury (“FMS”) since July 1993, set out 
procedures for drawing federal funds and 
methods for computing interest liabilities for 
programs subject to the federal Cash 
Management Improvement Act (“CMIA”).  
Illinois submitted the fiscal year 1998 CMIA 
Annual Report in December 1998, and after 
review by FMS paid the federal government 
$2.8 million in State interest liabilities by the 
March 1999, due date. 



 

 

Cash Management 
 
The State of Illinois’ daily activities are 
operated on a “cash basis,” where bills are paid 
with the available balances of cash on hand.  As 
chief fiscal officer of the State of Illinois, the 
Comptroller maintains the State’s central fiscal 
accounts and is responsible for ordering all 
payments into and out of the funds held by the 
State Treasurer.  The State’s cash flow situation 
improved again during fiscal year 1999.  The 
General Fund’s available balance at June 30, 
1999 was $1.351 billion, $149 million greater 
than the balance at June 30, 1998.  The cash 
balance generally is affected by the same events 
previously discussed in the General 
Governmental Functions Section. 
 
The General Funds include the three school and 
General Revenue Fund accounts which 
administer about 40% of the State’s annual 
expenditures. The General Revenue Account is 
also the State’s basic operating fund, funding at 
least a portion of the operating budget of every 
major agency. Because of the sheer size of the 
General Revenue Fund, annual changes in the 
General Fund end-of-year available cash 
balance are usually governed by changes in the 
General Revenue Fund.  For fiscal year 1999, 
however, nearly all of the $149 million 
improvement occurred in the school funds. 
 

General Fund 

 
Many State programs are accounted for in the 
General Fund.  As demonstrated by the tables 
on page I-30 (in millions), the State’s GAAP 
basis financial position at June 30, 1999 
worsened from fiscal year 1998.  The fund 
deficit in the State’s General Fund increased by 
$90 million on a GAAP basis (from a deficit 
$213 million to a deficit $303 million).  On the 
budgetary basis, there was a $503 million fund 
balance at June 30, 1999 compared to a $356 
million balance at June 30, 1998, a $147 million 
improvement. 
 
The undesignated fund deficit on a GAAP basis 
worsened by $408 million from a deficit of 
$367 million to a deficit of $775 million.  
Expenditures and transfers-out exceeded 
revenues and transfers-in to the General Fund 
by $90 million in fiscal year 1999. 
 
The General Fund’s deterioration is reflected in 
the comparison of the growth of assets and 
liabilities as assets increased 4.3% while 
payables and other liabilities jumped 6.0%.  In 
addition, General Fund expenditures increased 
$1.5 billion (8.1%) while revenues only grew 
$1.2 billion (5.6%).  

Comparison of Investment Portfolios at June 30,
(In millions)

1999 1998 1997 1996
Investment Type Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %

Corporate Equity Securities 16,794$    30% 13,550$    24% 13,513$    29% 8,747$      24%
Mutual Funds 14,270      26% 15,962      29% 11,963      25% 8,458        23%
U.S. Treasury & Agency Obligations 8,563        15% 10,164      18% 8,151        17% 6,849        18%
Corporate Debt Securities 8,465        15% 5,981        11% 4,538        10% 4,741        13%
Tangible Property 2,502        4% 2,687        5% 2,631        6% 2,767        7%
Repurchase Agreements 4,259        8% 4,025        7% 3,197        7% 3,164        9%
Commercial Paper 3,147        6% 2,252        4% 1,833        4% 1,291        3%
Investment Contracts 2,912        5% 982           2% 844           2% 956           3%

Totals 60,912$    100% 55,603$    100% 46,670$    100% 36,973$    100%



 

 

 

Excess  (de f ic iency)  of  revenues over
Fund Balance ** Undesignated (under)  expenditures and net other

(def ic it) Fund (def ic it) at f inancing sources (uses)  for  the year
at June 30 June 30 ended June 30

1990 * (557)                   (745)                   (482)                                                       
1991 (1,368)                (1,537)                (806)                                                       
1992 (1,656)                (1,825)                (306)                                                       
1993 (1,916)                (2,060)                (260)                                                       
1994 (1,595)                (1,731)                321                                                        
1995 (1,204)                (1,404)                388                                                        
1996 (951)                   (1,130)                252                                                        
1997 (443)                   (596)                   508                                                        
1998 (213)                   (367)                   230                                                        
1999 (303)                   (775)                   (90)                                                         

G e ne ral Fund B a lance  (Deficit)  
Fiscal Years 1990 -  1999

(in millions )
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Expendable Trust Funds 

 
Total revenues for the State’s expendable trust 
funds increased $248 million (19%) from 
$1.315 billion in fiscal year 1998 to $1.563 bil-
lion in fiscal year 1999. Total expenditures in-
creased $52.8 million (4.6%) from $1.144 bil-
lion in 1998 to $1.197 billion in 1999. 
 
By far the largest expendable trust fund is the 
State Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund 
(“Trust Fund”). The unemployment insurance 
(“UI”) system is a joint state-federal program 
designed to provide cash assistance to involun-
tarily unemployed workers regardless of need.  
During fiscal year 1999, the UI system provided 
5.1 million weeks of benefits to laid off workers 
at an average weekly stipend for recipients of 
regular benefits of $222.  The State is responsi-
ble for determining benefit levels and eligibility 
criteria, and for setting State UI tax levels suffi-
cient to pay the benefits.  The federal govern-
ment provides all administrative funding and 
mandates minimal coverage requirements.  A 
separate federal unemployment tax is assessed 
by the federal government to finance these ad-
ministrative costs, provide a source of funds for 
states to borrow against during periods of high 
unemployment, and to pay the federal share of 
extended and emergency unemployment bene-
fits. 
 
Because of the solvency problems experienced 
with the Trust Fund in the late 1970’s and early 
1980’s, the members of the General Assembly 
have worked closely with leaders of Illinois’ la-
bor and business communities to ensure the sol-
vency of the fund for its workers while guarding 
against rapid growth of taxes on the employer 
community.  In 1987 and again in 1992, busi-
ness, government, and labor set out to revisit the 
issues surrounding the administration of the UI 
system. In 1992, most of the language from the 
landmark 1987 legislation was carried forward. 
Illinois employers will have realized tax savings 
of nearly $343 million over the life of the new 

agreement, while benefits to unemployed work-
ers will steadily increase. 
 
Current year revenues exceeded expenditures by 
$155 million and the fund continues to be in a 
fiscally sound position, as demonstrated by its 
$2.3 billion fund balance at June 30, 1999.  The 
fiscal health of the fund has been so good that 
legislation was signed into law in February 
1996 that reduced the minimum tax rate to .5% 
from .6% and the maximum rate to 6.8% from 
8.2%. 

Investment Trust Funds 
 
The State has two Investment Trust Funds:  the 
Illinois Public Treasurers’ Investment Pool and 
the Deferred Lottery Prize Winners Trust Fund.  
The State’s investment trust funds account for 
transactions, assets, liabilities and fund balances 
reserved for pool participants for depositors that 
are not part of the State’s financial reporting en-
tity.  During fiscal year 1999, the Illinois Public 
Treasurers’ Investment Pool recorded $472 mil-
lion of participants’ deposits, $136.1 million of 
net investment income and distributions to pool 
investors of $136.1 million. The Deferred Lot-
tery Prize Winners Trust Fund recorded invest-
ment income of $58.5 million and participants’ 
withdrawals of $166.1 million. 

Proprietary Funds 

 
Proprietary funds are the State’s “business-type” 
activities and include enterprise and internal 
service funds.  Combined operating revenues 
for the State’s enterprise funds were $1.883 bil-
lion in fiscal year 1999 remaining unchanged 
from fiscal year 1998. Combined operating ex-
penses were $1.350 billion, down $15 million 
(1%) from fiscal year 1998.  The decrease in 
total enterprise fund expenses was the result of 
a decrease in prizes and claims (State Lottery) 
of $30 million combined with an increase in Lo-
cal Government Health Insurance Reserve Fund 
and Teachers Health Insurance Security Fund 
benefit payments (Department of Central Man-



 

agement Services) of $15 million. 
 
The State’s internal service funds, which provide 
data processing, motor pool vehicles, telephone 
communications, printing services, self insurance 
and other services to State agencies, operated on a 
profitable basis for fiscal year 1999. Combined 
internal service funds revenues and expenses for 
fiscal year 1999 were $1.095 million and $866 
million, respectively.  This represents an increase 
of $90 million (9%) in revenues and an increase 
of $53 million (6%) in expenses from fiscal year 
1998 to 1999. The increases in both revenues and 
expenditures are attributable to increased reve-
nues and claims in the following funds:  the Sta-
tistical Services Revolving Fund (charges for 
sales and services increased $37 million and cost 
of sales and services increased $20 million); the 
Health Insurance Reserve Fund (charges for sales 
and services increased $37 million and benefit 
payment increased $20 million); and the Commu-
nications Revolving Fund (charges for sales and 
services increased $10 million and total operating 
expenses increased $12 million). 
 

Component Units 

 
Universities. Illinois operates a comprehensive 
program of higher education, including nine State 
universities and support for a statewide network 
of 49 community colleges, 103 private, not-for-
profit institutions, 20 proprietary institutions, and 
a student financial assistance program.  During 
fiscal year 1999, university expenditures in-
creased $219 million (5%) over 1998. General 
Fund financial support to the State’s universities 
increased by 5.7%, to $1.303 billion, from fiscal 
year 1998 to fiscal year 1999.  
 
Proprietary.  Certain business-type activities that 
are not a part of the primary government are in-
cluded as component units.  The largest proprie-
tary component units in terms of assets are the 
Illinois Toll Highway Authority and the Illinois 
Housing Development Authority. Combined pro-
prietary fund component unit operating revenues 
and expenses for the current fiscal year were $482 

million and $352 million, respectively.  This com-
pares to revenues of $657 million and expenses of 
$538 million for fiscal year 1998.  The decreases 
in revenue and expenditures occurred because the 
operating activity for the Toll Highway Authority 
is presented for a six-month period for fiscal year 
1999. 

Debt Administration 
During June 1998, the Illinois general obligation 
bond rating was increased from “Aa3” to “Aa2” 
by Moody’s Investors Service.   Also, during June 
1998, Standard & Poor’s Corporation (“S & P”) 
rating was increased to “AA” from “AA-”.  The 
higher bond ratings can be attributed to the 
State’s improved financial condition.  Special ob-
ligation bond ratings remained the same, ranging 
from “AAA” by S & P for Build Illinois bonds to 
“A1”by Moody’s for Civic Center bonds.  Among 
the states, Illinois is a moderate debt state with 
outstanding general and special obligation bonds 
at June 30, 1999 totaling $7.954 billion.  Bonds 
have been issued primarily to provide funds for 
acquisition and construction of capital facilities 
for higher education, public and mental health, 
correction and conservation purposes, and for 
maintenance and construction of highway and 
waterway facilities.  Bonds also have been issued 
to provide assistance to municipalities for con-
struction of sewage treatment facilities, port dis-
tricts, aquarium facilities, local schools, mass 
transportation and aviation purposes, and to fund 
research and development of coal and alternative 
energy sources. 
 
General and special obligation bonds aggregating 
$772.3 million and $60 million, respectively, 
were issued during fiscal year 1999 at average 
interest rates ranging from 4.8% to 5.1%.  During 
fiscal year 1998, general and special obligation 
bonds totaling $718.3 million and $183.1 million, 
respectively, were issued at average rates ranging 
from 4.8 % to 5.1%.  Debt service principal and 
interest costs of $493.1 million and $370.0 mil-
lion, respectively were paid in fiscal year 1999. 
The dramatic increase since fiscal year 1980 is 
displayed in the following chart: 
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bonds, Illinois has $5.109 billion of revenue 
bonds, $110.6 million of notes payable and 

$1.896 billion of other long-term obligations 
outstanding as of June 30, 1999. 
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Retirement Systems 

 
Total net assets of the  State’s five pension trust 
funds, on a “fair value” basis, aggregated $41.5 
billion at June 30, 1999, an increase of $4.2 
billion (11%) from the previous year.  During 
fiscal year 1997, the State adopted GASB 
Statement 27, Accounting for Pensions by State 
and Local Governmental Employers.  The 
statement requires, among other things, that 
assets be valued at fair market value.  
 
The $4.2 billion increase in net assets can be 
explained by three accounts.  Investments (at 
fair value) grew by $4 billion.  $2.3 billion of 
the growth represented net appreciation in fair 
value and $1 billion represented new purchases 
of investments.  The large investment increase 
was offset by $215 million more accounts 
payable with most of the growth at Teachers’ 
Retirement System (TRS).  In addition, other 
liabilities increased by $382 million, which was 
attributable to an increase in other liabilities at 
TRS and Universities Retirement System.  
Other liabilities generally relate to securities 
lending transactions. 
 
Statement 27 focuses the reader of the State’s 
CAFR on annual pension cost (“APC”) in 
accordance with certain accounting parameters 
as compared to the amount contributed.  The 

State retirement systems were underfunded by 
$811.3 million during fiscal year 1999 and this 
amount has been added to the Net Pension 
Obligation (NPO) in the General Long-Term 
Obligations Account Group (See chart above).  
Of the $811.3 million, $561.9 million occurred 
at TRS where the APC was calculated to be 
$1.2 billion and employer contributions were 
$603.6 million. 
 
During fiscal year 1999, all of the State systems 
were funded in accordance with the statutory 
funding requirement.  The new law enacted in 
fiscal year 1996 provides for a 50-year funding 
plan with a 15 year phase-in and a “continuing 
appropriation.”  The continuing appropriation 
provides the Comptroller’s Office with the 
authority to automatically provide funding to the 
pension systems based on actuarial cost 
requirements and amortization of the unfunded 
liability without being subject to the General 
Assembly’s appropriation process.  However, 
the State’s 50-year funding plan does not meet 
the more stringent 40-year minimum 
amortization “parameters” required to be 
reported in the State’s financial statements in 
accordance with GASB Statement 27. 
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Risk Management 
The State’s risk management program 
encompasses a wide range of State government 
activities.  Generally, the State has elected to 
retain most exposures to risk, with only limited 
purchase of commercial insurance. Among the 
exceptions are coverage for real property at the 
James R. Thompson Center in Chicago, the 
State Retirement Systems building, and the 
Regional State Office complex in Collinsville.  
Limited commercial coverage for personal 
property includes a small portion of the State’s 
f lee t  o f  motor  vehic les ,  cer ta in 
telecommunications equipment, the fixed and 
rotary wing aircraft fleet, some State watercraft, 
selected items of electronic data processing 
equipment, a portion of the State’s collection of 
fine art, as well as a small number of other 
property and liability exposures. 
 
The State retains workers’ compensation and 
auto liability exposures, including claims 
management. Other major retained risks include 
employee fidelity and surety, as well as general 
liability. The State’s risk management program 
also includes legal representation and 
indemnification of employees sued for violation 
of civil and constitutional rights and other tort 
liabilities while acting in an official capacity. 
 

Independent Audit 
 
The Illinois Auditor General has elected to 
perform a “department by department” single 
audit in conformity with the provisions of the 
Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996. Separate 
departmental financial reports for those State 
agencies subject to the Single Audit Act 
Amendments include the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards, findings and 
questioned costs, and the auditor’s reports on 
internal control and compliance with applicable 
laws and regulations. The Illinois Auditor 
General has performed an audit of the 
accompanying general purpose financial 
statements in accordance with generally 

accepted auditing standards, and his opinion is 
presented herein.  
 

Certificate of Achievement 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association 
of the United States and Canada (“GFOA”) 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial  Report ing 
(“Certificate”) to the State of Illinois  for   its   
comprehensive  annual  financial report 
(“CAFR”)  for  the  fiscal year  ended  June 30, 
1998.  This is the fifteenth consecutive year that 
the State has  received  this  prestigious award 
in governmental financial reporting.  In order to 
be awarded a Certificate, the State of Illinois 
published an easily readable and efficiently 
organized comprehensive annual financial 
report. This reportmust satisfy both generally 
accepted accounting principles and applicable 
legal requirements.  
 
A Certificate is valid for a period of one year 
only.  I believe that our current comprehensive 
annual financial report continues to meet the 
Certificate of Achievement Program’s 
requirements and I am submitting to the GFOA 
to determine its eligibility for another 
certificate. 
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State of Illinois
Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types, Account Groups
and Discretely Presented Component Units
June 30, 1999 (Expressed in Thousands)

Fiduciary 
Fund Type

General
Special 

Revenue
Debt 

Service
Capital 

Projects Enterprise
Internal 
Service

Trust and 
Agency

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Assets:
    Cash and cash equivalents 1,153,800$       3,274,167$    740,435$    550,637$    224,827$       107,961$         3,240,595$     
    Investments 656,069            447                62,617                           172,707                                 50,012,376     
    Receivables, net:
       Taxes 781,590            398,167                                                                                             326,611          
       Intergovernmental 749,429            895,594                            1,411          9,215             728                  13,086            
       Other 76,965              171,710         868                                46,717           2,198               1,030,426       
    Due from other funds 291,183            362,518         23               200             73,111           156,913           44,568            
    Due from component units 21,217              2,489                                6,728                                3,277               6,438              
    Due from primary government                                                                                                                                                           
    Inventories 38,083              34,745                                                 5,539             12,535                                    
    Prepaid expenses                    335                1,106                                      
    Loans and notes receivable 20,027              764,309         25,500                           1,083,826                                                     
    Restricted assets ($121,753 cash equivalents)                                                                                      217,297         108                                         
    Property, plant and equipment, net                                                                                      4,040             41,540             22,896            
    Other assets 13,314              15,971                                                                         1,238,256       
Other debits:
    Amount available in debt service funds for:
       Retirement of general obligation bonds
       Retirement of special obligation bonds
       Retirement of other obligations
    Amount to be provided for:
       Retirement of general obligation bonds
       Retirement of special obligation bonds
       Retirement of other obligations
       Pension liabilities
Total assets and other debits  3,801,677 $      5,920,117 $   829,443 $   558,976 $   1,837,614 $   326,366 $        55,935,252 $ 

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS
Liabilities:
    Account payable and accrued liabilities  2,279,538 $      469,752 $      19 $            54,661 $     85,959 $        148,550 $        1,415,358 $   
    Intergovernmental payables 1,048,184         1,080,166                         13,592        6                    241                  338,561          
    Due to other funds 509,626            320,430         23               1,920          7,272             3,109               86,136            
    Due to component units 93,246              13,422           884             596                                   2                      39                   
    Due to primary government                                                                                                                                                           
    Deferred revenues 173,685            465,567                            8,145          11,166           15,398             3,100              
    Liabilities payable from restricted assets                                                                                                                                                           
    Depository and other liabilities                          88                  201             298             25,473           11,046             4,233,282       
    Notes payable                                                                                      100,794                                                        
    Net pension obligation                                                                      
    General obligation bonds payable                                                                      
    Special obligation bonds payable                                                                      
    Revenue bonds payable 1,304,360                              18,654            
    Other obligations 124,889         2,923                                      
              Total liabilities  4,104,279         2,349,425      1,127          79,212        1,659,919      181,269           6,095,130      

Equity and other credits:
    Contributed capital                       19,247                                    
    Investment in fixed assets                                                                                                                                                           
    Retained earnings:
        Reserved 133,067         
        Unreserved 44,628           125,850                                  
    Fund balances (deficits):
        Reserved for:
           Employees' pension benefits 41,473,766     
           External investment pool participants 4,564,415       
           Other 472,098            2,781,720      25,500        626,363      2,326,619       
        Unreserved:
           Designated                                                802,816                         1,442,026       
           Undesignated (deficits) (774,700)           788,972                            (146,599)                                                   33,296            
              Total equity (deficit) and other credits  (302,602)           3,570,692      828,316      479,764      177,695         145,097           49,840,122    
Total liabilities, equity and other credits  3,801,677 $      5,920,117 $   829,443 $   558,976 $   1,837,614 $   326,366 $        55,935,252 $ 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Governmental Fund Types Proprietary Fund Types



Total 
(Memorandum

Total 
(Memorandum

General 
Fixed Assets       

General     
Long-Term 
Obligations

Only)     
Primary 

Government
Component 

Units

Only)                
Reporting 

Entity

9,292,422$       702,652$           9,995,074 $     
50,904,216       2,525,216          53,429,432      

                         
1,506,368                                   1,506,368        
1,669,463         15,598               1,685,061        
1,328,884         208,056             1,536,940        

928,516            28,794               957,310           
40,149                                        40,149             

                         108,003             108,003           
90,902              44,100               135,002           
1,441                38,316               39,757             

1,893,662         1,810,294          3,703,956        
217,405            361,530             578,935           

5,347,976$    5,416,452         7,626,284          13,042,736      
1,267,541         109,087             1,376,628        

                         
                         

445,624$         445,624             445,624           
346,498           346,498             346,498           
10,694             10,694              2,969                 13,663             

                         
5,680,820        5,680,820          5,680,820        
1,481,166        1,481,166          1,481,166        
1,545,232        1,545,232          1,545,232        

12,115,695      12,115,695        12,115,695      
 5,347,976 $   21,625,729 $   96,183,150 $    13,580,899 $    109,764,049 $ 

 4,453,837 $      819,578 $         5,273,415 $     
2,480,750         7,754                 2,488,504        

928,516            28,794               957,310           
108,189                                      108,189           

                         40,149               40,149             
677,061            77,028               754,089           

                         3,524                 3,524               
4,270,388         230,215             4,500,603        

100,794            9,798                 110,592           
 12,115,695 $  12,115,695                                 12,115,695      

6,126,444        6,126,444                                   6,126,444        
1,827,664        1,827,664                                   1,827,664        

                        1,323,014         3,786,130          5,109,144        
1,555,926        1,683,738         212,312             1,896,050        

                       21,625,729      36,096,090       5,215,282         41,311,372      

19,247              33,524               52,771             
5,347,976$    5,347,976         5,006,985          10,354,961      

                         
133,067            352,863             485,930           
170,478            1,296,120          1,466,598        

                         
                         

41,473,766                                 41,473,766      
4,564,415          4,564,415        
6,232,300         1,645,074          7,877,374        

                         
2,244,842         26,880               2,271,722        

(99,031)             4,171                 (94,860)            
 5,347,976     -- --                   60,087,060       8,365,617         68,452,677      
 5,347,976 $   21,625,729 $   96,183,150 $    13,580,899 $    109,764,049 $ 

Account Groups



State of Illinois
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of
Financial Resources and Changes in Fund Balances - All Governmental Fund
Types, Expendable Trust Funds and Discretely Presented Component Units
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 (Expressed in Thousands)

Fiduciary                
Fund Type

Total 
(Memorandum

General
Special 

Revenue
Debt                   

Service
Capital                   

Projects
Expendable 

Trust

Only)      
Primary 

Government

REVENUES
    Income taxes  8,466,413 $        784,079 $                                                                                         9,250,492 $     
    Sales taxes 5,633,346           2,055,650                                                                                         7,688,996         
    Motor fuel taxes                           1,306,238                                                                                         1,306,238         
    Public utility taxes 1,041,691           395,913                                                                                            1,437,604         
    Other taxes 1,410,143           551,060                                                                   1,160,494 $       3,121,697         
    Federal government  4,618,485           4,718,513           127 $                  2,887 $               15,932               9,355,944         
    Licenses and fees 72,569                1,079,038           201                                               5,077                  1,156,885         
    Interest and other investment income 220,936              73,096                37,484                377                     254,377              586,270            
    Other 603,593              718,511              852                     8,130                  127,286              1,458,372         
              Total revenues  22,067,176         11,682,098         38,664                11,394                1,563,166           35,362,498      

EXPENDITURES
    Current:
        Health and social services 9,585,006           1,305,486           597                                               306                     10,891,395       
        Education 5,993,682           1,350,831                                     195,556                                        7,540,069         
        General government 1,290,017           4,588,701           6,371                  56,762                47,100                5,988,951         
        Social assistance 878,667              1,207,189                                                               1,147,235           3,233,091         
        Transportation 47,666                2,484,632                                     34,552                                          2,566,850         
        Public protection and justice 1,536,489           360,553                                                                  2,015                  1,899,057         
        Natural resources and recreation 173,612              262,909              1,413                  14,301                55                       452,290            
    Debt service:                                                                              
        Principal 28,127                5,329                  497,915              2                                                   531,373            
        Interest 40,605                14,070                377,438              15                                                 432,128            
    Capital outlays 86,230                88,175                                          169,886              225                     344,516            
              Total expenditures  19,660,101         11,667,875         883,734              471,074              1,196,936           33,879,720      

              Excess (deficiency) of revenues
                 over (under) expenditures  2,407,075           14,223                (845,070)            (459,680)            366,230              1,482,778        

OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF
FINANCIAL RESOURCES
    Proceeds from general/special                                                                                                        
             obligation bond issues 661,539              661,539            
    Proceeds from general/special                                                                                                        
             obligation bond refunding issues 173,179                                        173,179            
    Operating transfers-in 2,613,259           2,737,852           930,528              88,258                12,675                6,382,572         
    Operating transfers from component units                                                                               4                                                   4                       
    Operating transfers from primary government                                                                                                                                                            
    Operating transfers-out (3,641,020)         (2,097,697)         (1,828)                (114,203)            (11,392)              (5,866,140)        
    Operating transfers to component units (1,486,923)         (31,949)                                        (53,317)                                        (1,572,189)        
    Capital lease financing 18,156                5,511                                                                                                23,667              
    Payment to refunded bond escrow agent                                                     (173,179)                                                                (173,179)           
              Net other sources (uses) of
                financial resources  (2,496,528)         613,717              928,700              582,281              1,283                  (370,547)          

              Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
                (under) expenditures and net other 
                sources (uses) of financial resources  (89,453)              627,940              83,630                122,601              367,513              1,112,231        

Fund balances (deficit), July 1, 1998, as 
    previously reported (213,149)            2,942,752           744,686              357,163              2,184,012           6,015,464         
Restatement/reclassification of fund balances                                                                                                         1,239,294           1,239,294         
Fund balances (deficit), July 1, 1998, as restated  (213,149)            2,942,752           744,686              357,163              3,423,306           7,254,758        

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), JUNE 30, 1999  (302,602) $         3,570,692 $        828,316 $           479,764 $           3,790,819 $        8,366,989 $     

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Governmental Fund Types



Total 
(Memorandum

Component 
Units

Only) 
Reporting 

Entity

                           9,250,492 $     
                          7,688,996         
                          1,306,238         
                          1,437,604         

 26,838 $            3,148,535         
18,730                9,374,674         

147                     1,157,032         
2,350                  588,620            

12,100                1,470,472         
 60,165                35,422,663      

1,085                  10,892,480       
4                         7,540,073         

14,883                6,003,834         
                          3,233,091         
                          2,566,850         
                          1,899,057         

1,772                  454,062            
                         

75                       531,448            
181                     432,309            

3,111                  347,627            
 21,111                33,900,831      

 39,054                1,521,832        

                                                   
661,539            

                                                   
173,179            

163                     6,382,735         
4                       

3                         3                       
(8,167)                (5,874,307)        

                          (1,572,189)        
57                       23,724              

                          (173,179)           

 (7,944)                (378,491)          

 31,110                1,143,341        

173,937              6,189,401         
                          1,239,294         

 173,937              7,428,695        

 205,047 $           8,572,036 $     



State of Illinois

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
All Budgeted Fund Groups (See Note 2)
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 (Expressed in Thousands)

 

 
 General Funds Highway Funds
 Final Variance Final
 Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)
 

REVENUES  
Income taxes  $ 8,090,000 $ 8,347,679 $ 257,679 
Sales taxes  5,480,000 5,608,645 128,645 
Motor fuel taxes  $ 1,214,900 $ 1,264,877 $
Public utility taxes  990,000 991,150 1,150 
Federal  government  3,543,000 3,600,272 57,272 611,600 644,601 
Other  1,576,000 1,817,472 241,472 813,454 856,693 
Less:  

Refunds  34,741 29,737  (5,004) 15,544 13,869 
 Total revenues  19,644,259 20,335,481 691,222 2,624,410 2,752,302 

 
EXPENDITURES  

Current:  
Health and social services  8,224,240 8,119,346  (104,894)
Education  7,353,069 7,323,954  (29,115)
General government  1,294,586 1,259,182  (35,404) 289,639 266,379 
Transportation  51,641 51,228  (413) 2,192,331 2,164,488 
Social assistance  846,203 836,531  (9,672) 2,000 1,466 
Public protection and  justice  1,578,296 1,546,749  (31,547) 52,733 52,733 
Natural resources and recreation  179,617 176,098  (3,519)

Debt service:  
Principal  
Interest  

Capital outlays  79,287 78,680  (607) 19,568 19,086 
Total expenditures  19,606,939 19,391,768  (215,171) 2,556,271 2,504,152 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)  
 expenditures  37,320 943,713 906,393 68,139 248,150 

 
OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES  

Proceeds from general and special obligation bond issues  
Operating transfers-in  3,422,000 3,522,980 100,980 1,303,428 1,334,566 
Operating transfers-out   (4,320,010)  (4,320,010) -- --  (1,455,228)  (1,455,228)

 
Budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts  

 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)  
 expenditures, other sources (uses) of  
 financial resources and budgetary funds-  
 nonbudgeted accounts   (860,690) 146,683 1,007,373  (83,661) 127,488 

 
Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1998, as
 previously reported  355,892 355,892 -- -- 707,364 707,364 
Reclassifications between budgetary/nonbudgetary  
 funds-net  

 
Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1998, as
 reclassified  355,892 355,892 -- -- 707,364 707,364 

 
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1999 $  (504,798) $ 502,575 $ 1,007,373 $ 623,703 $ 834,852 $

 
The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Variance
Over (Under)

49,977 

33,001 
43,239 

 (1,675)
127,892 

 (23,260)
 (27,843)

 (534)
-- --

 (482)
 (52,119)

180,011 

31,138 
-- --

211,149 

-- --

-- --

211,149 



University Funds Special State Funds Bond Financed Funds
Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance

Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

$ 1,720,608 $ 1,720,608 $ -- --
547,939 561,202 13,263 

62,900 63,846 946 
388,336 403,415 15,079 

$ 31 $ 9 $  (22) 1,520,100 1,524,357 4,257 
406 447 41 3,769,364 3,859,221 89,857 

2 -- --  (2) 905,853 898,195  (7,658)
435 456 21 7,103,394 7,234,454 131,060 

2,262,038 1,967,943  (294,095) $ 548 $ 61 $  (487)
497 373  (124) 288,010 256,006  (32,004) 192,455 185,476  (6,979)

3,829,634 3,661,502  (168,132) 33,290 32,086  (1,204)
257,297 232,391  (24,906) 42,398 40,227  (2,171)

22,692 21,713  (979)
290,169 208,994  (81,175) 252 77  (175)
458,500 384,852  (73,648) 52,593 51,424  (1,169)

20  (20) 13,387 12,102  (1,285) 206,889 206,700  (189)
517 373  (144) 7,421,727 6,745,503  (676,224) 528,425 516,051  (12,374)

 (82) 83 165  (318,333) 488,951 807,284  (528,425)  (516,051) 12,374 

620,000 661,539 41,539 
1,816,322 1,874,067 57,745 80,000 80,000 -- --

 (1)  (1) -- --  (1,628,161)  (1,628,161) -- --  (80,000)  (80,000) -- --

 (124,876)  (124,876) -- --  

  (83) 82 165   (255,048) 609,981 865,029 91,575 145,488 53,913 

115 115 -- -- 1,054,756 1,054,756 -- -- 373,108 373,108 -- --

 (578)  (578) -- --

115 115 -- -- 1,054,178 1,054,178 -- -- 373,108 373,108 -- --

$ 32 $ 197 $ 165 $ 799,130 $ 1,664,159 $ 865,029 $ 464,683 $ 518,596 $ 53,913 

(continued)



State of Illinois

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses of Financial
Resources and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
All Budgeted Fund Groups (See Note 2)
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 (Expressed in Thousands)

 
(continued)

 
 Debt Service Funds Federal Trust Funds
 Final Variance Final
 Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)
 

REVENUES  
Income taxes  
Sales taxes  
Motor fuel taxes  
Public utility taxes  
Federal  government  $ 340 $ 90 $  (250) $ 2,632,429 $ 2,237,629 $
Other  18,814 20,838 2,024 124,148 93,384 
Less:  

Refunds  2,944 490 
 Total revenues  19,154 20,928 1,774 2,753,633 2,330,523 

 
EXPENDITURES  

Current:  
Health and social services  805,798 643,384 
Education  1,186,072 1,016,307 
General government  702,609 292,878 
Transportation  97,325 97,129 
Social assistance  339,337 189,825 
Public protection and  justice  279,192 102,277 
Natural resources and recreation  52,697 36,088 

Debt service:  
Principal  837,134 835,922  (1,212)
Interest  281,985 267,956  (14,029)

Capital outlays  12,002 6,709 
Total expenditures  1,119,119 1,103,878  (15,241) 3,475,032 2,384,597 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)  
 expenditures   (1,099,965)  (1,082,950) 17,015  (721,399)  (54,074)

 
OTHER SOURCES (USES) OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES  

Proceeds from general and special obligation bond issues  173,179 173,179 -- --
Operating transfers-in  929,197 914,915  (14,282) 31,048 28,146 
Operating transfers-out   (443)  (443)

 
Budgetary funds-nonbudgeted accounts   (16,204)  (16,204)

 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)  
 expenditures, other sources (uses) of  
 financial resources and budgetary funds-  
 nonbudgeted accounts 2,411 5,144 2,733  (706,998)  (42,575)

 
Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1998, as
 previously reported  456,675 456,675 -- --  (78,938)  (78,938)
Reclassifications between budgetary/nonbudgetary  
 funds-net  159 159 

 
Budgetary fund balances (deficits), July 1, 1998, as
 reclassified  456,675 456,675 -- --  (78,779)  (78,779)

 
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30, 1999 $ 459,086 $ 461,819 $ 2,733 $  (785,777) $  (121,354) $



Federal Trust Funds
Variance

Over (Under)

 (394,800)
 (30,764)

 (2,454)
 (423,110)

 (162,414)
 (169,765)
 (409,731)

 (196)
 (149,512)
 (176,915)

 (16,609)

 (5,293)
 (1,090,435)

667,325 

 (2,902)
-- --

-- --

664,423 

-- --

-- --

-- --

664,423 



Total
Revolving Funds State Trust Funds (Memorandum Only)

Final Variance Final Variance Final Variance
Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under) Budget Actual Over (Under)

$ 9,810,608 $ 10,068,287 $ 257,679 
$ 353,117 $ 353,117 $ -- -- 6,381,056 6,522,964 141,908 

26,128 26,128 -- -- 1,303,928 1,354,851 50,923 
1,378,336 1,394,565 16,229 

231,295 128,186  (103,109) 8,538,795 8,135,144  (403,651)
$ 252,946 $ 266,777 $ 13,831 593,552 636,397 42,845 7,148,684 7,551,229 402,545 

129 32  (97) 959,213 942,323  (16,890)
252,817 266,745 13,928 1,204,092 1,143,828  (60,264) 33,602,194 34,084,717 482,523 

34,085 27,181  (6,904) 11,326,709 10,757,915  (568,794)
1,118 566  (552) 216,483 127,087  (89,396) 9,237,704 8,909,769  (327,935)

244,730 223,122  (21,608) 168,202 151,973  (16,229) 6,562,690 5,887,122  (675,568)
1,000 896  (104) 2,641,992 2,586,359  (55,633)

137,715 107,457  (30,258) 1,347,947 1,156,992  (190,955)
48,565 42,888  (5,677) 22,723 13,396  (9,327) 2,271,930 1,967,114  (304,816)

6,441 3,537  (2,904) 749,848 651,999  (97,849)

837,134 835,922  (1,212)
281,985 267,956  (14,029)

4,672 2,148  (2,524) 5,900 4,789  (1,111) 341,725 330,214  (11,511)
300,085 269,620  (30,465) 591,549 435,420  (156,129) 35,599,664 33,351,362  (2,248,302)

 (47,268)  (2,875) 44,393 612,543 708,408 95,865  (1,997,470) 733,355 2,730,825 

793,179 834,718 41,539 
-- -- 1,511 1,511 1 40 39 7,581,996 7,756,225 174,229 

 (97)  (97) -- --  (94,578)  (94,578) -- --  (7,578,518)  (7,578,518) -- --

 (8,089)  (8,089) -- --  (629,137)  (629,137) -- --  (778,306)  (778,306) -- --

  (55,454)  (9,550) 45,904  (111,171)  (15,267) 95,904  (1,979,119) 967,474 2,946,593 

57,732 57,732 -- -- 167,063 167,063 -- -- 3,093,767 3,093,767 -- --

185 185 -- --  (234)  (234) -- --

57,732 57,732 -- -- 167,248 167,248 -- -- 3,093,533 3,093,533 -- --

$ 2,278 $ 48,182 $ 45,904 $ 56,077 $ 151,981 $ 95,904 $ 1,114,414 $ 4,061,007 $ 2,946,593 



State of Illinois
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained
Earnings/Fund Balances - All Proprietary Fund Types, Nonexpendable
Trust Funds, and Discretely Presented Component Units
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 (Expressed in Thousands)

Fiduciary            
Fund Type

Total 
(Memorandum

Total 
(Memorandum

Enterprise
Internal                
Service

Non- 
expendable 

Trust

Only)                        
Primary 

Government
Component 

Units

Only)           
Reporting 

Entity

OPERATING REVENUES
    Charges for sales and services  1,757,044 $      1,091,714 $      38 $                 2,848,796$        211,385 $         3,060,181 $     
    Interest and other investment income 96,141              58                     186                   96,385              113,811            210,196            
    Other 30,299              3,547                7                       33,853              156,874            190,727            
       Total operating revenues  1,883,484         1,095,319         231                   2,979,034         482,070            3,461,104        

OPERATING EXPENSES
    Cost of sales and services 154,213            224,155                                     378,368            48,279              426,647            
    Benefit payments and refunds 162,813            590,241                                     753,054            46,694              799,748            
    Prizes and claims 812,707                                                              812,707                                     812,707            
    Interest 62,446              1                                                62,447              6,090                68,537              
    General and administrative 145,207            29,543              21                     174,771            189,880            364,651            
    Depreciation 1,678                13,991                                       15,669              59,644              75,313              
    Other 11,394              8,187                                         19,581              1,269                20,850              
       Total operating expenses  1,350,458         866,118            21                     2,216,597         351,856            2,568,453        

    Operating income  533,026            229,201            210                   762,437            130,214           892,651            

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
    Interest and investment income 3,792                2,070                340                   6,202                56,247              62,449              
    Interest expense (1,581)               (496)                                           (2,077)               (165,598)           (167,675)           
    Other revenues 385                   752                                            1,137                6,745                7,882                
    Other expenses (458)                  (536)                                           (994)                  (1,672)               (2,666)               

       Income before operating transfers  535,164            230,991            550                   766,705            25,936             792,641            
                                                                                                                                                      

    Operating transfers-in                          1,482                2,471                3,953                8,984                12,937              
    Operating transfers from primary government                                                                                                     15,578              15,578              
    Operating transfers-out (520,916)           (78)                    (58)                    (521,052)           (313)                  (521,365)           
    Operating transfers to component units                          (209,323)                                    (209,323)                                    (209,323)           

       Net income  14,248              23,072              2,963                40,283              50,185             90,468              

Retained earnings/fund balances, July 1,1998, as 
   previously reported 166,156            102,778            8,159                277,093            1,710,150         1,987,243         
Restatement of retained earnings/fund balances (2,709)                                                                 (2,709)               (111,352)           (114,061)           
Retained earnings/fund balances July 1, 1998, as restated  163,447            102,778            8,159                274,384            1,598,798         1,873,182        

RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1999  177,695 $         125,850 $         11,122 $           314,667 $         1,648,983 $      1,963,650 $     

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Proprietary                               
Fund Type



State of Illinois
Combined Statement of Cash Flows - All Proprietary Fund Types,
Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Discretely Presented Component Units
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 (Expressed in Thousands)

Fiduciary           
Fund Type

Total 
(Memorandum  

Total 
(Memorandum

Enterprise
Internal 
Service

Nonexpendable 
Trust

Only)         
Primary 

Governement
Component 

Units

Only)           
Reporting 

Entity

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
   Cash received from sales and services  1,832,268 $   1,053,356 $   38 $                    2,885,662 $      512,430 $    3,398,092 $     
   Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (349,268)       (778,673)                                  (1,127,941)        (68,505)       (1,196,446)        
   Cash payments to employees for services (112,847)       (56,612)                                    (169,459)           (50,376)       (219,835)           
   Cash payments for lottery prizes (784,851)                                                       (784,851)                              (784,851)           
   Cash receipts from other operating activities 190,218        72                 21                       190,311            167,427      357,738            
   Cash payments for other operating activities (340,941)       (2,137)           (20)                      (343,098)           (356,023)     (699,121)           
     Net cash provided by operating activities  434,579        216,006        39                       650,624            204,953      855,577           
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
   Proceeds from sale of revenue bonds and other borrowing 270,289                                                        270,289            273,418      543,707            
   Principal paid on revenue bonds and other borrowing (96,435)                                                         (96,435)            (267,841)     (364,276)           
   Interest paid on revenue bonds and other borrowing (1,580)                                                           (1,580)              (128,034)     (129,614)           
   Operating transfers-in from other funds 85                 1,485            2,471                  4,041                8,326          12,367              
   Operating transfers from primary government                                                                                              16,224        16,224              
   Operating transfers-out to other funds (542,370)       (81)                (58)                      (542,509)           (313)            (542,822)           
   Operating transfers to component units                      (209,323)                                  (209,323)                              (209,323)           
   Other noncapital financing activities (23)                (15)                                           (38)                   3,369          3,331                
     Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities  (370,034)       (207,934)       2,413                  (575,555)           (94,851)       (670,406)          
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
   Proceeds from sale of revenue bonds                      6,118                                       6,118                343,467      349,585            
   Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,818)           (16,087)                                    (17,905)            (136,873)     (154,778)           
   Principal paid on bond maturities and equipment contracts (5,192)           (13,159)                                    (18,351)                               (18,351)            
   Interest paid on bond maturities and equipment contracts                      (496)                                         (496)                 (29,927)       (30,423)            
   Proceeds from sale of equipment                                                                                              324             324                   
   Other capital and related financing activities 19                                                                 19                    (385,198)     (385,179)           
     Net cash (used) in capital and related financing activities  (6,991)           (23,624)                                    (30,615)            (208,207)     (238,822)          
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
   Purchase of investment securities (288,099)                            (67)                      (288,166)           (2,409,982)  (2,698,148)        
   Proceeds from sale and maturities of investment securities 276,927                                                        276,927            2,402,054    2,678,981         
   Interest and dividends on investments 23,220          2,108            496                     25,824              50,270        76,094              
     Net cash provided by investing activities  12,048          2,108            429                     14,585              42,342        56,927             
   Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  69,602          (13,444)         2,881                  59,039              (55,763)       3,276               

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 1998* 251,522        121,405        6,920                  379,847            434,565      814,412            

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30, 1999  321,124 $     107,961 $     9,801 $               438,886 $         378,802 $    817,688 $        

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the balance sheet:
   Total cash and cash equivalents per the balance sheet  224,827 $     107,961 $     3,240,595 $        3,573,383 $      702,652 $    4,276,035 $     
   Add: restricted cash equivalents 96,297                                                          96,297              25,456        121,753            
   Less: expendable trust, pension, investment and nonproprietary component units  (3,230,794)         (3,230,794)        (349,306)     (3,580,100)        
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30, 1999  321,124 $     107,961 $     9,801 $               438,886 $         378,802 $    817,688 $        

Reconciliation of operating income to net
   cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income  533,026 $     229,201 $     210 $                  762,437 $         130,214 $    892,651 $        
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
  to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
   Depreciation 1,678            13,991                                     15,669              59,643        75,312              
   Provision for uncollectible accounts (1,581)           (2,080)                                      (3,661)              1,651          (2,010)              
   Changes in assets and liabilities:                                                                                                                                         
      (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (170,378)       (367)              1                         (170,744)           9,067          (161,677)           
      (Increase) decrease in due from other funds 152               (16,877)                                    (16,725)            20,558        3,833                
      (Increase) decrease in due from component units                      59                                            59                                       59                    
      (Increase) decrease in inventory (486)              549                                          63                                       63                    
      (Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (41)                (481)                                         (522)                 (658)            (1,180)              
      Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 7,065            14,839                                     21,904              (49,090)       (27,186)            
      Increase (decrease) in intergovernmental payables 6                   194               1                         201                   4,928          5,129                
      Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 171               (979)                                         (808)                 (20,646)       (21,454)            
      Increase (decrease) In due to primary government                                                                                              14               14                    
      Increase (decrease) in due to component units                      (31)                                           (31)                                      (31)                   
      Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues 247               7,398                                       7,645                2,094          9,739                
      Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 64,853          (29,380)                                    35,473              4,308          39,781              
      Other (133)              (30)                (173)                    (336)                 42,870        42,534              
   Total adjustments  (98,447)         (13,195)         (171)                    (111,813)           74,739        (37,074)           
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES  434,579 $     216,006 $     39 $                    650,624 $         204,953 $    855,577 $        

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities
  Capital leases (initial year) Fair Market Value -- --  $            125 $           -- --  $                  125 $               -- --  $          125 $               

* Due to a reclassification of fund type, prior year cash for the Enterprise fund type has been decreased $2,914 (See Note 3 to the financial statements).

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Illinois
Combined Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Pension and Investment Trust Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 (Expressed in Thousands)

Pension Investment
Total 

(Memorandum
Trust Trust only)

ADDITIONS
    Contributions:
      Employer  1,185,824 $      1,185,824 $      
      Plan Members 1,258,293                                 1,258,293          
      Other 33,014                                      33,014               
         Total contributions 2,477,131         2,477,131          

    Participants' deposits, net  472,026 $         472,026            
         Total contributions and participants' deposits, net  2,477,131         472,026            2,949,157         

    Investment income:
      Interest and other investment income 1,449,949          257,438           1,707,387          
      Net appreciation (depreciation) of investments 2,914,574          (59,787)           2,854,787          
      Investment expense (209,893)           (2,970)             (212,863)            
          Net investment income  4,154,630         194,681            4,349,311         

       Total additions  6,631,761         666,707            7,298,468         
                                                                          

DEDUCTIONS
    Benefit payments and refunds 2,372,320                                 2,372,320          
    Participants' withdrawals, net 166,108            166,108             
    Interest expense 1,300                                        1,300                 
    Distribution to pool investors 136,135            136,135             
    General and administration 25,627                                      25,627               
    Depreciation 2,072                                        2,072                 
    Other 168                                           168                    
       Total deductions  2,401,487         302,243            2,703,730         

       Net additions  4,230,274         364,464            4,594,738         

Fund balances reserved for employees' pension benefits, 
   and external investment pool participants, July 1, 1998 37,243,492        4,199,951        41,443,443        

FUND BALANCES RESERVED FOR EMPLOYEES' PENSION BENEFITS
    AND EXTERNAL INVESTMENT POOL PARTICIPANTS, JUNE 30, 1999  41,473,766 $    4,564,415 $      46,038,181 $    

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Illinois
Combining Statement of Change in Fund Balances - 
University Component Units
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 (Expressed in Thousands)

Chicago            
State 

University

Eastern            
Illinois 

University

Governors 
State 

University

Northeastern 
Illinois 

University

Western 
Illinois 

University

REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS
    Unrestricted current fund revenues  23,662 $           66,565 $           21,561 $           26,085 $           79,211 $          
    Federal and local grants and contracts-restricted 15,835              6,392                9,156                10,241              11,577              
    State grants and contracts-restricted                         954                   401                   79                                             
    Other state sources                         280                                                                   249                   
    Private gifts, grants and contracts-restricted 165                   3,133                678                   1,970                4,880                
    Investment income 272                   1,949                102                   47                     1,246                
    Realized gain (loss) on investments-restricted (net)                                                                                                                         
    Interest and fees on loans receivable 132                   113                   63                     162                   36                     
    Expended for plant facilities:                                                                                                                         
       Current funds                         7,281                2,044                4,426                6,748                
       Plant funds 2,737                4,385                                        2,037                1,252                
       Other                                                 479                                                                   
    Retirement of long-term obligations 390                   30,958                                      1,734                1,397                
    Other                         6,396                576                   1,166                2,032                
              Total revenues and other additions  43,193              128,406            35,060              47,947              108,628           

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS
    Educational and general expenditures 79,836              106,467            59,600              80,655              129,309            
    Auxiliary enterprises expenditures 3,847                20,851              1,058                1,840                27,223              
    Hospital expenditures                                                                                                                         
    Independent operations expenditures                         923                                                                                           
    Foundation expenditures 720                                           571                   192                   2,918                
    Indirect costs recovered                         350                                           344                   664                   
    Refunds of grants and adjustments to grants                                                                                                                         
    Loan cancellation and write-offs 13                     96                                             75                     43                     
    Change in allowance for uncollectible notes                                                                         48                     12                     
    Administrative and collection cost 9                       36                     291                   46                     62                     
    Expended for plant facilities (including
       noncapitalized expenditures of $42,548) 813                   6,747                                        2,592                3,627                
    Retirement of long-term obligations 1,859                7,214                                        574                   3,473                
    Disposal of plant facilities                         3,820                3,129                3,495                2,319                
    Other 2,548                37,803                                                              4,001                
              Total expenditures and other deductions  89,645              184,307            64,649              89,861              173,651           

TRANSFERS-ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS)
    Nonmandatory transfers:                                                                                                                         
       Operating transfers-in                         22                     12                                                                     
       Operating transfers from primary government 47,710              63,624              33,678              52,648              75,195              
       Operating transfers-out                                                                                                 (14)                   
       Other                                                                                                                         
              Total transfers-additions (deductions)  47,710              63,646              33,690              52,648              75,181             

                                                                                                                        
              Net increase (decrease)  1,258                7,745                4,101                10,734              10,158             

Fund balances, July 1, 1998  79,384              172,863            71,858              108,704            224,685           

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1999  80,642 $           180,608 $         75,959 $           119,438 $         234,843 $        

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Component Units



Illinois                  
State 

University

Northern 
Illinois 

University

Southern 
Illinois 

University

University            
of                     

Illinois Total

 134,795 $         146,540 $         244,900 $         966,449 $         1,709,768 $     
12,103              15,958              47,521              367,470            496,253            
7,303                6,645                5,911                64,680              85,973              

                                                                                                529                   
10,443              10,374              28,189              179,254            239,086            
3,592                3,402                7,398                30,192              48,200              

26                     (1,292)                                      53,548              52,282              
226                   178                   378                   1,525                2,813                

                                                                                                                        
17,219              8,195                12,049              123,351            181,313            
6,079                                        17,818              75,948              110,256            

                                                                        668                   1,147                
6,619                3,245                3,820                25,187              73,350              
2,887                21,120              25,674              125,310            185,161            

 201,292            214,365            393,658            2,013,582         3,186,131        

227,799            245,607            534,738            1,971,748         3,435,759         
36,008              47,876              51,506              159,063            349,272            

                                                                        258,868            258,868            
                                                                        5,368                6,291                
                        1,339                                        28,319              34,059              

784                   2,073                4,534                86,650              95,399              
                                                449                   2,938                3,387                

249                   62                     73                     246                   857                   
17                     78                     109                   189                   453                   
8                       77                     225                   2,366                3,120                

7,666                22,084              31,385              100,072            174,986            
5,651                8,664                7,174                50,232              84,841              
4,241                5,983                1,783                95,911              120,681            
6,670                20,865              26,355              16,243              114,485            

 289,093            354,708            658,331            2,778,213         4,682,458        

                                                                                                                        
                                                1,476                                        1,510                

111,539            135,045            296,584            949,904            1,765,927         
(78)                   (15)                   (4)                     (1,399)              (1,510)              

                        3,481                2,435                                        5,916                
 111,461            138,511            300,491            948,505            1,771,843        

                                                                                                                        
 23,660              (1,832)              35,818              183,874            275,516           

 412,568            430,561            784,874            3,898,571         6,184,068        

 436,228 $         428,729 $         820,692 $         4,082,445 $      6,459,584 $     

Component Units (continued)



State of Illinois
Combining Statement of University Current Funds - 
Revenues, Expenditures and Other Changes
University Component Units
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 (Expressed in Thousands)

Chicago          
State 

University

Eastern               
Illinois            

University

Governors 
State 

University

Northeastern 
Illinois 

University

Western 
Illinois 

University

REVENUES
    Tuition and fees  17,089 $          36,372 $          5,773 $            21,051 $          30,932 $         
    Federal and local grants and contracts                         170                                          373                                          
    State grants and contracts                         181                                          2                      
    Private gifts, grants and contracts 597                  59                                            530                  84                    
    Investment income 17                    1,313               184                  490                  1,798               
    Sales and services 3,345               25,160             1,180               3,224               42,362             
    Other 2,614               3,310               14,424             415                  4,035               
             Total revenues  23,662             66,565             21,561             26,085             79,211            

EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS
    Educational and general:                                                                                                                         
       Instruction 34,139             47,375             19,437             25,453             40,837             
       Research 378                  258                  20                    14                    1,247               
       Public service 803                  1,728                                       1,983               2,001               
       Academic support 4,595               9,967               1,959               5,887               26,370             
       Student services 5,679               11,308             907                  5,378               13,027             
       Institutional support 8,704               10,880             21,467             18,129             15,838             
       Operation and maintenance of plant 6,624               9,639               4,562               9,290               11,944             
       Scholarships and fellowships 2,125               3,606               433                  1,476               2,974               
              Total educational and general  63,047             94,761             48,785             67,610             114,238          

   Auxiliary enterprises 3,847               20,851             1,058               1,832               27,223             
   Hospitals                                                                                                                         
   Independent operations                         216                                                                  240                  
              Total expenditures  66,894             115,828           49,843             69,442             141,701          

                                                                                                                        
    Mandatory transfers:                                                                                                                         
       Retirement of long-term obligations                         4,487                                       574                  3,300               
       Student loan matching grant                         234                  59                    52                    22                    
       Renewal and replacement 50                    2,336               
       Other 1,680                                       137                                          225                  
              Total mandatory transfers  1,680               4,721               196                  676                  5,883              

              Total expenditures and mandatory transfers  68,574             120,549           50,039             70,118             147,584          

OPERATING TRANSFERS AND 
    ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS)                                                                                                                         
    Operating transfers-in                                                                                                                         
    Operating transfers from primary government 45,527             59,850             28,774             47,964             70,472             
    Operating transfers-out                                                                         
    Operating transfers to primary government                                                                                                                         
    Other transfers                         (4,424)              (418)                 (2,045)              
    Excess (deficiency) of restricted receipts over                                                                                                 
        transfers to revenue
    Other additions (deductions)                         (28)                                                                                           
              Total operating transfers and additions (deductions)  45,527             55,398             28,774             47,546             68,427            

TOTAL INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE  615 $               1,414 $            296 $               3,513 $            54 $                

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Unrestricted



Illinois         
State 

University

Northern 
Illinois 

University

Southern 
Illinois 

University

University       
of            

Illinois Total

 71,174 $          68,593 $          97,359 $          272,527 $        620,870 $       
623                  1,682               2,675               75,496             81,019             
446                  644                  359                  3,296               4,928               
82                    478                  1,479               9,952               13,261             

1,268               820                  4,768               3,528               14,186             
54,197             63,234             97,828             571,137           861,667           
7,005               11,089             40,432             30,513             113,837           

 134,795           146,540           244,900           966,449           1,709,768       

                                                                                                                        
79,670             92,660             179,292           613,611           1,132,474        
1,860               4,185               11,232             93,739             112,933           
6,004               5,150               19,254             117,451           154,374           

11,421             23,333             70,515             129,962           284,009           
21,715             10,096             39,415             55,743             163,268           
51,601             49,354             75,811             136,649           388,433           
23,542             16,281             44,240             137,455           263,577           
2,384               12,527             8,044               103,874           137,443           

 198,197           213,586           447,803           1,388,484        2,636,511       

35,784             47,855             50,760             159,058           348,268           
                                                                        258,868           258,868           
                                                                        5,368               5,824               

 233,981           261,441           498,563           1,811,778        3,249,471       
                                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                        

5,278               7,301               6,480               34,080             61,500             
                        30                    177                  218                  792                  

8,089               4,011               583                  5,374               20,443             
                        957                                                                  2,999               

 13,367             12,299             7,240               39,672             85,734            

 247,348           273,740           505,803           1,851,450        3,335,205       

                                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                        

106,244           129,511           264,699           922,066           1,675,107        
                                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                        

(2,817)                                      (1,810)              (25,742)            (37,256)            
                                                                                                                        

3,586               3,416                                                               6,974               
 107,013           132,927           262,889           896,324           1,644,825       

 (5,540) $           5,727 $            1,986 $            11,323 $          19,388 $         

Unrestricted (continued)



State of Illinois
Combining Statement of University Current Funds - 
Revenues, Expenditures and Other Changes
University Component Units
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 (Expressed in Thousands)

Chicago          
State 

University

Eastern                
Illinois                   

University

Governors 
State 

University

Northeastern 
Illinois 

University

Western 
Illinois 

University

REVENUES
    Tuition and fees                                                                                                                         
    Federal and local grants and contracts  15,820 $          6,129 $            8,844 $            9,837 $            10,894 $         
    State grants and contracts                         603                  401                  78                    
    Private gifts, grants and contracts 165                  2,457                                       1,886               2,719               
    Investment income 272                  1,230               68                    43                    422                  
    Sales and services                                                                                                                         
    Other                         142                  1,078                                       1,177               
             Total revenues  16,257             10,561             10,391             11,844             15,212            

EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS
    Educational and general:                                                                                                                         
       Instruction 1,124               546                  1,096               368                  977                  
       Research 1,601               285                  40                    72                    4,530               
       Public service 2,926               5,392               1,234               5,112               3,154               
       Academic support 66                    716                  13                    99                    11                    
       Student services 1,206               25                    8,148               589                  26                    
       Institutional support 228                  441                  855                  79                    297                  
       Operation and maintenance of plant 191                  175                                                                  6                      
       Scholarships and fellowships 9,936               4,124                                       5,985               6,070               
              Total educational and general  17,278             11,704             11,386             12,304             15,071            

   Auxiliary enterprises                                                                         8                                              
   Hospitals                                                                                                                         
   Independent operations                         707                                                                  2,653               
              Total expenditures  17,278             12,411             11,386             12,312             17,724            

                                                                                                                        
    Mandatory transfers:                                                                                                                         
       Retirement of long-term obligations                         1                                                                                              
       Student loan matching grant                         (181)                                                                                         
       Renewal and replacement                                                 
       Other 13                                            (132)                                         (225)                 
              Total mandatory transfers  13                    (180)                 (132)                                         (225)                

              Total expenditures and mandatory transfers  17,291             12,231             11,254             12,312             17,499            

OPERATING TRANSFERS AND 
    ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS)                                                                                                                         
    Operating transfers-in                         22                    12                                                                    
    Operating transfers from primary government 1,253               2,487               952                  587                  2,621               
    Operating transfers-out                                                 (14)                   
    Operating transfers to primary government                                                                                                                         
    Other transfers                         (355)                 3                      (161)                 
    Excess (deficiency) of restricted receipts over
        transfers to revenue 182                  99                    (38)                   (79)                   
    Other additions (deductions)                         5                                                                                              
              Total operating transfers and additions (deductions)  1,253               2,341               1,063               552                  2,367              

TOTAL INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE  219 $               671 $               200 $               84 $                 80 $                

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Restricted



Illinois         
State 

University

Northern 
Illinois 

University

Southern 
Illinois 

University

University       
of            

Illinois Total

Total                 
Current                 
Funds

                                                                                                                         620,870 $       
 11,942 $          14,794 $          44,376 $          292,053 $        414,689 $       495,708           

7,303               5,686               5,698               60,502             80,271             85,199             
8,779               9,385               23,444             187,519           236,354           249,615           

962                  (348)                 1,613               14,381             18,643             32,829             
                        21                                                                    21                    861,688           

94                    122                  872                  110,759           114,244           228,081           
 29,080             29,660             76,003             665,214           864,222          2,573,990        

                        
                        

                                                                                                                                                
953                  2,195               7,443               130,685           145,387           1,277,861        

10,919             6,522               20,689             293,443           338,101           451,034           
3,706               5,436               32,099             119,406           178,465           332,839           

798                                          693                  18,818             21,214             305,223           
174                                          788                  2,464               13,420             176,688           

3,915               2                      2,941               3,088               11,846             400,279           
235                  2,682               9                      318                  3,616               267,193           

8,902               12,162             22,227             43,361             112,767           250,210           
 29,602             28,999             86,889             611,583           824,816          3,461,327        

                        
224                  21                    746                  5                      1,004               349,272           

                                                                                                                        258,868           
                                                                                                3,360               9,184               

 29,826             29,020             87,635             611,588           829,180          4,078,651        
                                                                                                                                                
                                                                                                                                                
                                                                        3,091               3,092               64,592             
                                                                                                (181)                 611                  
                                                                                                                        20,443             
                                                                                                (344)                 2,655               
                                                                         3,091               2,567              88,301             

                        
 29,826             29,020             87,635             614,679           831,747          4,166,952        

                        
                        

                                                                                                                                                
                                                1,476                                       1,510               1,510               

2,920               2,334               15,763             12,348             41,265             1,716,372        
(78)                   (15)                   (4)                     (1,399)              (1,510)              (1,510)              

                                                                                                                                                
87                                            (1,833)              (4,076)              (6,335)              (43,591)            

                        
(835)                                         1,916               (44,376)            (43,131)            (43,131)            

                                                (432)                 (2,925)              (3,352)              3,622               
 2,094               2,319               16,886             (40,428)            (11,553)           1,633,272        

                        
 1,348 $            2,959 $            5,254 $            10,107 $          20,922 $          40,310 $         

Restricted (continued)
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30, 1999 

1       SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
     ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
 
A. Basis of Presentation 
 
The accompanying financial statements of the 
State of Illinois have been prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles (“GAAP”) as prescribed in 
pronouncements of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”). 
 
B.        Financial Reporting Entity 
 
The State of Illinois is a “primary government” 
whose financial statements consist of the 
primary government, organizations for which 
the primary government is financially 
accountable, and other organizations for which 
the nature and significance of their relationship 
with the primary government are such that 
exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s 
financial statements to be misleading or 
incomplete.  The financial statements include all 
funds, account groups, elected offices, 
departments and agencies as well as boards, 
commissions, authorities, and universities for 
which the State’s elected officials are financially 
accountable.  Financial accountability exists 
when the State’s governing body appoints a 
majority of an organization’s governing board 
and (1) the State can impose its will upon the 
organization or (2) there is a potential for the 
organization to provide specific financial benefit 
to, or impose specific financial burdens on the 
State. 
 
The State’s governing body consists of the 
legislative, executive, and judicial branches of 
government.  The legislative function is 
controlled by an elected General Assembly 

composed of a 59-member Senate and a 118-
member House of Representatives.  The 
executive branch consists of the Governor, the 
chief executive of the State, the Lieutenant 
Governor, Attorney General, Secretary of State, 
Comptroller, and Treasurer.  The judicial branch 
is composed of a seven-member Supreme Court, 
five Appellate court districts and twenty-two 
Circuit Court judicial districts including Cook 
County.  
 
The financial statements distinguish between the 
“primary government” and its “component 
units.”  The State’s participation in a joint 
venture, related organizations, and jointly 
governed organizations are separately disclosed 
below.  The primary government, which consists 
of organizations that make up the State’s legal 
entity, is the nucleus of the State’s reporting 
entity and is generally the focal point for users 
of the financial statements.  Component units 
are legally separate organizations for which the 
State is financially accountable.  An overview of 
the State’s component units is presented in the 
financial statements by “discrete” presentation 
(i.e., columns presently separately from the 
primary government).  Condensed financial 
statements for the State’s discretely presented 
component units are displayed in Note 18. 
 
Discretely Presented Components Units 
 
Component units are reported in separate 
columns to emphasize that they are legally 
separate from the State.  Complete financial 
statements of the individual component units 
can be obtained from the respective component 
unit’s administrative offices (as listed in 
parenthesis below).  Except for the Board of 
Trustees of the University of Illinois, whose 
current board is partly elected, the major 
component units presented below have 
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governing bodies appointed by the governing 
board of the State.  The State is financially 
accountable for these component units, and, 
therefore, they are reported in separate “discrete” 
columns in the State’s financial statements.  
 
1.     I l l inois  Conservat ion Foundation 

(“Foundation”).  The Foundation was 
created to promote, support, assist, sustain, 
and encourage the charitable, educational, 
scientific, and recreational programs, 
projects, and policies of the Illinois 
Department of Natural Resources.  The State 
has the ability to impose its will on the 
Foundation. (Administrative Offices: 524 
South Second Street, Springfield, Illinois 
62701-1787). 

 
2.     East St. Louis Financial Advisory Authority 

(“Authority”).  The Authority was created to 
provide a secure financial basis for and to 
furnish assistance to the city of East St. 
Louis.  The State substantively approves the 
Authority’s budget.  (Administrative Offices: 
10 Collinsville Avenue, East St. Louis, 
Illinois 62201). 

 
3.     Illinois Medical District Commission 

(“Commission”).  The Commission was 
created to maintain and expand a designated 
“medical district.”  The State substantively 
approves the Commission’s budget. 
(Administrative Offices: 600 South Hoyne, 
Chicago, Illinois 60612).    

 
4.     Comprehensive Health Insurance Plan 

(“CHIP”) Board.  The CHIP provides an 
alternate market for health insurance for 
eligible Illinois residents having a preexisting 
health condition.  The State provides 
significant operating subsidies to the CHIP. 
(Administrative Offices: 400 West Monroe 
Street, Suite 202, Springfield, Illinois 
62704). 

 
5.     Illinois Development Finance Authority 

(“IDFA”).  The IDFA provides funding for 
industrial, commercial and manufacturing 
development in areas of Illinois with critical 
unemployment.  The State appropriates funds 
for certain IDFA programs.  (Administrative 

Offices: 233 South Wacker Drive, Suite 
5310, Chicago, Illinois 60606). 

 
6.     Illinois Housing Development Authority 

(“IHDA”).  The IHDA issues notes and 
bonds to make loans for the acquisition, 
construction and rehabilitation of housing 
and to encourage home ownership.  The State 
approves bonds and notes issued by the 
IHDA and is secondarily liable for its debt if 
there are not sufficient IHDA monies to pay 
principal and interest.  (Administrative 
Offices:  401 North Michigan Avenue, Suite 
900, Chicago, Illinois 60611). 

 
7.     Illinois Rural Bond Bank (“Bond Bank”).  

The Bond Bank provides assistance to rural 
governmental units by providing adequate 
capital markets and facilities for borrowing 
money and financing public improvements at 
low interest rates.  The State is secondarily 
liable for payment of principal and interest 
on the Bond Bank debt.   Excess reserves of 
the Bond Bank must be returned to the 
State’s General Fund.  (Administrative 
Offices: 427 East Monroe Street, Suite 202, 
Springfield, Illinois 62701. 

 
8.     Illinois State Toll Highway Authority 

(“THA”).  The THA operates a toll highway 
system to promote the public welfare and to 
facilitate vehicular traffic by providing 
convenient, safe, modern and limited access 
highways within Illinois.  The State approves 
new toll highways and issuance of bonds.  
(Administrative Offices: One Authority 
Drive, Downers Grove, Illinois 60515).  The 
THA reports on a December 31 year end. 

 
9.     Boards’ of Trustees of Chicago State 

University (“CSU”), Eastern Illinois 
University (“EIU”), Governors State 
University (“GSU”), Northeastern Illinois 
University (“NEIU”), Western Illinois 
University (“WIU”), Illinois State University 
(“ISU”), and Northern Illinois University 
(“NIU”) (“boards”).  The boards of the 
respective universities operate, manage, 
control and maintain the schools.  The State 
provides significant financial support to the 
boards of the universities.  (Administrative 
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Offices: 
 

• CSU, 9501 South King Drive, Chicago, 
Illinois 60628 

• EIU, 113 West Old Main, Charleston, 
Illinois 61920 

• GSU, Route 54 & Stuenkel Road, 
University Park, Illinois 60466 

• NEIU, 5500 North St. Louis Avenue, 
Chicago, Illinois 60625 

• WIU, 1 University Circle, Macomb, 
Illinois 61455 

• ISU, Campus Box 1200, Normal, Illinois 
61790-1200 

• NIU, 104 Altgeld Hall, DeKalb, Illinois 
60115). 

 
10. Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois 

University (“SIU Board”).  The SIU Board 
operates, manages, controls and maintains 
Southern Illinois University.  The State 
provides significant financial support to the 
SIU Board.  (Administrative Offices: Colyer 
Hall, Carbondale, Illinois 62901). 
 

11.   Board of Trustees of the University of Illinois 
(“U of I Board”).  The U of I Board 
operates, manages, controls and maintains 
the University of Illinois.  The U of  I Board 
contains both elected and appointed trustees 
who manage the University of Illinois.  As 
existing board members’ terms expire they 
will be appointed by the Governor.  The 
State provides significant financial support to 
the U of  I Board.  (Administrative Offices: 
346 Administration Building, 506 South 
Wright Street, Urbana, Illinois 61801). 

 
Joint Venture 
 
The State is a participant with the states of 
Michigan, Minnesota, New York, Ohio, 
Pennsylvania, and Wisconsin in the Great Lakes 
Protection Fund (“Fund”), an Illinois not-for-
profit corporation.  The nation’s first multi-state 
environmental endowment was established in 
1989 for furthering Federal and State 
commitments to programs that restore and 
maintain the Great Lakes’ water quality.  This 
purpose is achieved by providing grant money for 
projects that promote the objectives of the 

regional Great Lakes Toxic Substance Control 
Agreement and the binational Great Lakes Water 
Quality Agreement. 
 
A state becomes a member of the Fund by 
agreeing to contribute an amount set forth in the 
Articles of Incorporation.  In August 1998, Illinois 
made its final payment of $4.2 million for a total 
contribution of $15 million.  There is still an 
outstanding amount due for $1.8 million in 
interest, which stopped accruing upon receipt of 
the final payment.  The required contribution from 
all member states at December 31, 1998, with 
Illinois’ paid up membership is $81 million.  The 
Fund’s net assets on that date were $125 million. 
 
Once a state agrees to make the required 
contribution, that state’s governor becomes a 
“member” of the Fund.  Each member is entitled 
to elect two individuals to the board of directors.  
Budgetary and financial decisions rest with the 
board of directors except where restricted by the 
Articles of Incorporation.  Two-thirds of the 
Fund’s income is used to finance projects 
compatible with the organization’s objectives as 
set forth in the Articles of Incorporation.  The 
remaining one-third of income is paid to member 
states in proportion to the amount and period of 
time that each state’s contribution was invested 
with the Fund (“state shares”).  Illinois did not 
receive a share payment in 1998 but has received 
nearly $1.1 million since the Fund’s inception.  In 
accordance with the Articles of Incorporation, 
Illinois’ state share will be used each year to 
reduce the amount of interest due until such time 
as the entire amount is eliminated.  Illinois may 
make a cash payment at any time to expedite the 
reduction of interest due.  The affirmative vote of 
all of the members is required for all actions of 
the Fund.  Complete financial statements of the 
Fund can be obtained from the Fund’s 
Administrative Offices at 35 East Wacker Drive, 
Suite 1880, Chicago, Illinois, 60601. 
 
Related Organizations 
 
The State’s officials are also responsible for 
appointing the majority of the boards of other 
organizations, but the State’s accountability does 
not go beyond making the appointments.  The 
State, generally the Governor, in certain instances 
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with the advice and consent of the Senate, 
appoints the members of the following boards: 
 
• Central Midwest Interstate Low-Level 

Radioactive Waste Commission 
 
•  Havana Regional Port District 
 
• Kaskaskia Regional Port District 
 
• Mt. Carmel Regional Port District 
 
• Shawneetown Regional Port District 
 
• Southwest Regional Port District 
 
• Tri-City Regional Port District 
 
• Waukegan Port District 
 
• White County Port District 
 
• Illinois Community College System 

Foundation 
 
The State maintains accounting records for the 
Central Midwest & Interstate Low-Level 
Radioactive Waste Commission.  The Illinois 
Community College Board provides nominal 
support services for the Illinois Community 
College System Foundation.  These are the only 
related-party activities that the State has with the 
above organizations.  
 
Jointly Governed Organizations 
 
The State’s officials, in conjunction with various 
other state and local government officials, are 
members of the boards of other organizations.  
However, the State has no ongoing financial 
interest or responsibility except the role of a 
participant in the various organizations’ purpose 
and, in certain instances, pays annual dues or 
assessments.  The Governor, sometimes with the 
advice and consent of the Senate, appoints the 
number of board members (as indicated in 
parenthesis below) of the following organizations: 
 
• Bi-State Development Agency of the 

Missouri/Illinois Metropolitan District (5 of 
10) 

• Education Commission of the States (7 of 
approximately 350)  

• Illinois/Indiana Bi-State Commission (2 of 
12)  

• Illinois/Indiana Bridge Commission (5 of 10) 

• Illinois Valley Regional Port District (2 of 5) 
• Interstate Mining Commission (1 of 17) 
• Jackson/Union Counties Port District (4 of 

23) 
• Joliet Regional Port District (3 of 7) 
• Lawyers Trust Fund (3 of 9) 
• Midwestern Higher Education Commission (5 

of 60) 
• Northeastern Illinois Planning Commission (5 

of 33)  
• Ohio River Valley Water Sanitation 

Commission (2 of 18) 
• Southwestern Illinois Metropolitan & 

Regional Planning Commission (8 appointed) 
• Wabash Valley Interstate Commission (7 of 

14) 
 
The State has no significant related-party 
activities with the above organizations. 
 
C.        Fund Accounting 
 
Financial activities of the State are organized on 
the basis of individual funds and account groups, 
each of which is a separate accounting entity 
segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific 
activities or attaining certain objectives in 
accordance with specific regulations, restrictions 
or limitations.  The financial activities of the State 
accounted for in the accompanying financial 
statements have been classified into the following 
fund categories and account groups: 
 
 
Government Fund Types 
 
General – Transactions related to resources 
obtained and used for those services traditionally 
provided by a state government which are not 
required to be accounted for in other funds are 
accounted for in the General Fund.  These 
services include, among others, social assistance, 
education (other than institutions of higher 
education), and health and social services.  
Certain resources obtained from federal grants 
and used to support general governmental 
activities are accounted for in the General Fund 
consistent with applicable legal requirements.  
The State’s General Fund contains four primary 
sub-accounts (General Revenue, Education 
Assistance, Common School, and Medicaid 
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Provider Assessment Program) with numerous 
secondary sub-accounts. 
 
Special Revenue – Transactions related to 
resources obtained from specific revenue sources 
(other than for expendable trusts or major capital 
projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure 
for specified purposes are accounted for in special 
revenue funds.  Special revenue funds account for, 
among other things, federal grant programs, taxes 
levied with statutorily defined distributions, and 
other resources restricted as to purpose. 
 
Debt Service – Transactions related to 
governmental resources obtained and accumulated 
to pay interest and principal on general long-term 
obligations (other than capital leases, 
compensated absences, workers’ compensation, 
and unfunded retirement costs) are generally 
accounted for in debt service funds. 
 
Capital Projects – Transactions related to 
resources obtained and used for the acquisition or 
construction of major capital facilities, including 
those provided to political subdivisions and other 
public organizations, which are charged to 
expenditures (other than those financed by 
proprietary, fiduciary, and university and college 
fund types) are accounted for in capital project 
funds.  Such resources are derived principally 
from proceeds of general and special obligation 
bond issues. 
 
 
Proprietary Fund Types 
 
Enterprise – Enterprise funds account for 
operations where the intent of the State is that the 
cost of providing goods or services to the general 
public on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges, or 
where periodic measurement of the results of 
operations is appropriate for capital maintenance, 
public policy, management control, account-
ability, or other purposes.  
 
Internal Service – Internal service funds account 
for the operations of State agencies which render 
services and provide goods to other State agencies 
or governmental units on a cost-reimbursement 
basis. 

Fiduciary Fund Types 
 
Trust 
 
Expendable – Expendable trust funds account for 
assets held by the State in a trustee capacity where 
the principal and income may be expended in the 
course of the funds’ designated operations. 
 
Nonexpendable – Nonexpendable trust funds 
account for assets held by the State in a trustee 
capacity where only the income may be expended 
in the course of the funds’ designated operations. 
 
Pension – Pension trust funds account for 
transactions, assets, liabilities and fund balances 
reserved for employees’ pension benefits of the 
various State public employee retirement systems. 
 
Investment – Investment trust funds account for 
transactions, assets, liabilities and fund balances 
reserved for pool participants. 
 
Agency 
 
Agency funds account for the various taxes, 
deposits, deductions, and property collected by 
the State, acting in the capacity of an agent, for 
distribution to other governmental units or 
designated beneficiaries. 
 
 
 
Universities  
 
University funds account for the operations of 
State universities, including their related 
foundations and associations (referred to as 
university related organizations or “UROs”).  The 
UROs are component units of their related 
universities and the universities are, in turn, 
component units of the State.  The discrete 
presentation of the universities within the State’s 
financial statements is in accordance with 
NACUBO accounting and reporting principles.  
The universities are reported in the financial 
statements based upon their legal ownership as 
follows: 
 
• Chicago State, Eastern Illinois, Governors 

State, Northeastern Illinois, Western Illinois, 
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Illinois State, and Northern Illinois are 
managed, operated, controlled, and 
maintained by individual boards of trustees at 
those universities. 

 
• Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois 

University – Southern Illinois University at 
Carbondale, Edwardsville, and the Medical 
School at Springfield are operated, managed, 
controlled, and maintained by the SIU Board 
of Trustees. 

 
• University of Illinois Board of Trustees – The 

University of Illinois at Champaign-Urbana, 
Chicago, Springfield, and the Medical Center 
at Chicago are managed by the University of 
Illinois Board of Trustees. 

 
Account Groups 
 
General Fixed Assets - General fixed assets 
acquired or constructed for use by the State in the 
conduct of its activities, other than those 
accounted for in proprietary, fiduciary and 
university fund types are accounted for in the 
General Fixed Assets Account Group. 
 
General Long-Term Obligations -  Unmatured 
general and special obligation bonds, unfunded 
retirement costs, and other long-term obligations 
not recorded in proprietary, fiduciary and 
university fund types are recorded in the General 
Long-Term Obligations Account Group. 
 
D.        Basis of Accounting and Measure-
            ment Focus 
 
Use of Estimates.  The preparation of financial 
statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 
 
Governmental Fund and Expendable Trust 
Funds.  The accounts of the general, special 
revenue, debt service, capital projects and 

expendable trust funds are reported using a 
current financial resources measurement focus 
and modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under 
this measurement focus only current assets and 
current liabilities are included on the balance 
sheet.  Fund balance represents a measure of 
“available spendable resources.”  Under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when 
they become both measurable and available to 
finance expenditures of the fiscal year.  
“Measurable” means when the amount of the 
transaction can be determined and “available” 
means collectible within the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities 
of the current period).  Expenditures are recorded 
when the related fund liability is incurred.  
Significant revenue sources which are susceptible 
to accrual include individual and corporate 
income taxes, sales taxes, public utility taxes and 
motor fuel taxes. 
 
In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to 
intergovernmental revenues, the legal and 
contractual requirements of the numerous 
individual programs are used as guidance.  There 
are, however, essentially two types of these 
revenues.  In one type, monies must be expended 
on the specific purpose or project before any 
amounts will be paid to the State; therefore, 
revenues are recognized based upon the 
expenditure recorded. In the other type, monies 
are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of 
expenditure and are usually revocable only for 
failure to comply with prescribed compliance 
requirements.  These resources are reflected as 
revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the 
susceptible to accrual criteria are met. 
 
Modifications to the accrual basis of accounting 
include:  
 
• Self assessed taxes, principally income, excise 

and wealth taxes are recognized as receivables 
and revenues in the period to which they 
apply subject to their availability. 

 
• Fines, penalties, licenses and other 

miscellaneous revenues are recognized when 
received since they normally are only 
measurable at that time. 
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• Interest on long-term obligations reflected in 
the General Long-Term Obligations Account 
Group is recognized in the debt service funds 
when it becomes payable. 

 
Proprietary Funds, Nonexpendable Trust, 
Pension Trust and Investment Trust Funds.  The 
accounts of the enterprise, internal service, 
nonexpendable trust, pension trust and investment 
trust funds are reported using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting.  Under this measurement 
focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the 
operation of these funds are included on the 
balance sheet.  Fund equity is segregated into 
contributed capital and retained earnings 
components for enterprise and internal service 
funds.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, 
revenues are recognized when earned and 
expenses are recognized when incurred. 
 
As permitted by GASB Statement 20, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds 
and Other Governmental Entities That Use 
Proprietary Fund Accounting, generally, the State 
has elected to apply only statements and 
interpretations of the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board, Accounting Principles Board 
Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins of 
the Committee on Accounting Procedure issued 
on or before November 30, 1989, unless those 
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB 
pronouncements. 
 
The following major agencies, departments or 
component units, however, have elected to apply 
all statements and interpretations of  the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board: 
 
• Illinois Student Assistance Commission 
• Comprehensive Health Insurance Board  
• Illinois Farm Development Authority 
 
Agency Funds.  The accounts of agency funds are 
reported using the modified accrual basis of 
accounting as described above for governmental 
and expendable trust funds.  Agency funds do not 
measure nor report operations.  Instead, changes 
in assets and liabilities are presented for agency 
funds. 

 
University and College Funds.  The accounts of 
the university and college funds are reported using 
the accrual basis of accounting with the following 
exceptions: 
 
• Depreciation expense related to plant fund 

assets generally is not recorded. 
 
• Revenues and expenditures of an academic 

term encompassing more than one fiscal year 
are solely reported in the fiscal year in which 
the program is predominantly conducted. 

 
E.        Eliminations 
 
Eliminations have been integrated into the report 
to eliminate those items that would significantly 
overstate the financial activities of certain funds 
and intrafund accounts within the related fund 
type. 
 
F.        Total (Memorandum Only) Columns 
 
Total columns represent an aggregation of the 
fund type and account group financial statements.  
They are presented for informational purposes and 
do not represent consolidated financial 
information. 
 
G.        Budgetary Process 
 
The State Constitution requires the Governor to 
prepare and submit to the General Assembly an 
Executive Budget for the ensuing fiscal year.  The 
budget covers most funds held by the State, but 
excludes all locally held funds and various 
treasury held funds which are not subject to 
appropriation pursuant to State law.  The General 
Assembly enacts the budget through passage of 
specific line-item appropriations (i.e., personal 
services, contractual services, equipment, etc.), 
the sum of which must not exceed estimated 
revenues pursuant to the State Constitution.  The 
Governor has the power to approve, reduce or 
veto each appropriation passed by the General 
Assembly.  Transfers in/out contained in the 
Executive Budget are not a part of the General 
Assembly’s appropriation process.  The actual 
amounts are determined either by State law or by 
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discretionary action available to the Governor.  
The Statewide Accounting Management System 
(“SAMS”) controls expenditures by line-item as 
established in approved appropriation bills and 
insures that appropriated expenditure amounts are 
not exceeded. 
 
The level of legal control is at the fund level by 
agency or department as reported in a publication 
titled Illinois Detailed Annual Report of Revenues 
and Expenditures.  A separate document is 
necessary since the State has approximately 
10,400 appropriated line items.  Administrative 
transfers between certain appropriation line items 
within the same treasury held fund cannot exceed 
2% of the aggregate amount appropriated to an 
agency from that fund.  Legislative action is 
required for more substantial transfers.  
Unexpended appropriations at June 30 are 
available for subsequent expenditure to the extent 
that encumbrances have been incurred at June 30, 
provided they are presented for payment during 
the succeeding 2-month “lapse period.”  Certain 
appropriations referred to as “reappropriations” 
represent the continuation of a prior year’s 
program that requires additional time for 
completion. 
 
Budgeted revenues in the accompanying 
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
Other Sources and Uses of Financial Resources 
and Changes in Budgetary Fund Balances – 
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP) represent 
original estimates, while budgeted expenditures 
represent original/continuing appropriations 
modified by supplemental and amendatory 
appropriations aggregating $151.1 million.  
Budgets are essentially on the cash basis, 
modified for expenditures during the lapse period 
(beginning and end of year) as described in the 
preceding paragraph. 
 
SAMS establishes the following budgetary fund 
groups to account for the State’s budgetary 
activities: 
 

General – funds established to account for 
those services traditionally provided by a state 
government which are not required to be 

accounted for in other funds; 
 
Highway – funds established to receive and 
distr ibute assessments related to 
transportation, and to support the construction 
and maintenance of transportation facilities 
and activities of the State; 
 
University – funds established to receive 
revenues such as fees, tuition and excess 
income from auxiliary enterprises at State-
supported institutions of higher education;  
 
Special State – funds designated by statute as 
special funds in the State Treasury and not 
elsewhere classified;   
 
Bond Financed – funds established to receive 
and administer the proceeds of various bond 
issues of the State; 
 
Debt Service – funds established to finance 
and account for the payment of principal and 
interest generally associated with the general 
and special obligation bond issues of the 
State; 
 
Federal Trust – funds established pursuant to 
grants and contracts or under statutory 
authority between State agencies and the 
federal government; 
 
Revolving – funds established to finance and 
account for intra-governmental services; and,  
 
State Trust – funds established by statute or 
under statutory authority for nonfederal 
programs which are not deemed to be a 
traditional governmental activity or elsewhere 
classified. 

 
H.         Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly 
liquid investments readily convertible to cash with 
original maturities of three months or less.  Cash 
equivalents consist principally of certificates of 
deposit, repurchase agreements, and U.S. treasury 
bills, and are stated at cost. 
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I.          Investments 
 
Investments are stated at fair value in accordance 
with GASB Statement 31, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and 
for External Investment Pools.  Generally, the 
State’s pension systems’ marketable securities are 
valued at closing prices listed on national 
securities exchanges and quotes from independent 
pricing services as of June 30.  Real estate and 
venture capital are valued based upon appraisals 
and discounted cash flow analysis. 
 
The Illinois Funds operates as a 2a7-like pool and 
thus reports all investments at amortized cost 
rather than market value.  The Treasurer’s 
investment policies are governed by State statute.  
In addition, the Treasurer’s Office has adopted its 
own investment practices that supplement the 
statutory requirement.  The Treasurer’s Office 
issues a separate financial report for The Illinois 
Funds.  It may be obtained by contacting them at 
Jefferson Terrace, 300 West Jefferson Street, 
Second Level, Springfield, Illinois 62702. 
 
Investment income is recorded as revenue in the 
General Fund, except for resources of retirement 
systems and certain other individual funds that are 
statutorily authorized to be separately invested 
and specifically credited with the income realized 
thereon.  The State financial statements contain 
certain investments that meet the definition of 
“derivatives.”  Derivative investments are 
included in the pension trust funds as disclosed in 
Note 4. 
 
J.          Inventories 
 
Inventories for governmental funds are valued at 
cost, principally on the first-in, first-out purchases 
method. 
 
K.         Interfund Transactions 
 
The State has the following types of interfund 
transactions: 
 

Quasi-external transactions – Charges 
for services rendered by one fund to 
another are treated as revenues of the 

recipient fund and expenditures or 
expenses of the disbursing fund. 

 
Reimbursements – Reimbursement of 
expenditures made by one fund for 
another are recorded as expenditures in 
the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of 
expenditures in the reimbursed fund. 
 
Residual Equity Transfers – Nonroutine 
or nonrecurring transfers between funds 
are reported as additions to or deductions 
from fund equity. 
 
Operating Transfers – Legally authorized 
transfers other than residual equity 
transfers are reported as operating 
transfers. 

 
L.          Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Fixed assets are recorded at cost or, for donated 
assets, at fair market value at date of acquisition. 
 

General Fixed Assets – Fixed asset 
records are used by the State primarily to 
assure accountability. Historical cost 
records for certain general fixed assets are 
incomplete or not available.  Accordingly, 
estimated historical costs have been used. 
Public domain (infrastructure) general 
fixed assets such as highways, bridges, 
and lighting systems are not capitalized. 
Depreciation is not provided on general 
fixed assets and interest expenditures 
incurred during the construction period 
are not capitalized. 
 
Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Types – 
It is the State’s policy to capitalize 
interest expense incurred on significant 
assets during their construction.  
Generally, property, plant and equipment, 
excluding land, are depreciated on the 
straight-line method over the estimated 
service lives of the respective assets as 
follows: 
 
Years 
Land improvements 20-50 
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Buildings and building improvements 20-
50 
Equipment 3-10 

 
University Funds – Generally, public 
domain (infrastructure) assets such as 
streets, sidewalks, and lighting systems 
are not capitalized.  Depreciation 
generally is not provided on property, 
plant and equipment. 

 
M.        Retirement Costs 
 
Substantially all State employees, including 
members of the General Assembly and Judicial 
Branch, participate in one of three State public 
employee retirement systems (see Note 10).  The 
State also maintains and funds public employee 
retirement systems for employees of the various 
State supported universities, and for public school 
teachers in cities other than Chicago.  It is the 
State’s policy to fund retirement costs without 
regard to amounts calculated under the actuarial 
requirements.  Based on actuarial consultations, 
the State’s contributions have been less than the 
retirement benefits paid during the year for the 
last eighteen fiscal years.  Prior to fiscal year 
1982, the State had funded the retirement costs at 
a level at least as great as the retirement benefits 
paid during the year. 
 
Effective July 1, 1996, the State adopted the 
provisions of GASB Statement 27, Accounting for 
Pensions by State and Local Governmental 
Employers, to determine pension costs.  
Accordingly, calculated pension cost comprises 
the employer’s annual required contributions (i.e., 
the “ARC”), which equals normal cost plus 
interest on unfunded prior service costs and 
amortization of prior service cost over forty years, 
one year’s interest on the net pension obligation, 
and an adjustment to the ARC to offset the effect 
of actuarial amortization of past under or over 
contributions. 
 
N.         Capital Appreciation (“deep-discount”) 
             Bonds 
 
Capital appreciation bonds are those bonds that 
are issued at stated interest rates significantly 

below their effective interest rate, resulting in a 
substantial discount.  The implicit interest (i.e., 
discount) is not paid until the bond matures.  
Therefore, the net value of the bonds 
“accretes” (i.e., the discount is reduced) over the 
life of the bonds.  For general and special 
obligation bonds, the accreted amounts are 
included in the General Long-Term Obligations 
Account Group. 
 
O.          Compensated Absences 
 
The amounts of vested unpaid vacation and sick 
leave accumulated by State employees are accrued 
when incurred in proprietary, pension trust, 
university  funds, and component units, which use 
the accrual basis of accounting.  In the 
governmental funds, only the amounts that 
normally would be liquidated with expendable 
available financial resources are accrued as 
current-year expenditures.  Legislation that 
became effective January 1, 1998 capped the paid 
sick leave for all State Employees’ Retirement 
System members at December 31, 1997.  
Employees continue to accrue twelve sick days 
per year, but will not receive monetary 
compensation for any additional time earned after 
January 1, 1998.  Sick days earned between 1984 
and December 31, 1997 (with a 50% cash value) 
would only be used after all days with no cash 
value are depleted.  Any sick days earned and 
unused after December 31, 1997 will be converted 
to service time for purposes of calculating 
employee pension benefits.  The State’s liability 
for unused vested sick leave and vacation time, 
including salary related costs (e.g., social security 
and Medicare tax), is recorded in the 
accompanying financial statements at the 
employees’ current salary level.  Unless it is 
anticipated that compensated absences will be 
used in excess of a normal year’s accumulation, 
no additional expenditures are accrued.  
Therefore, the entire unpaid liability for the 
governmental funds, including governmental 
component units, is recorded in the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group. 
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P.          Workers’ Compensation Liability 
 
The fund liabilities of the General Fund, Road 
and Mental Health (Special Revenue) Funds 
include the amount of workers’ compensation 
claims that would normally be liquidated with 
expendable available financial resources.  The 
remaining liability, based on the State’s 
workers’ compensation laws, is reported in the 
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group 
and University Funds. 
 
Q.         Encumbrances 
 
The State employs encumbrance accounting for 
all governmental fund types.  All contracts, 
purchase orders and other commitments for 
goods or services that have not been received/
rendered by June 30 are reported as reservations 
of fund balances, not as expenditures. 
 
R.          Reservations/Designations of Fund  
             Equity 
 
Reservations 
 
Governmental and Fiduciary Funds – Fund 
balances of governmental and fiduciary fund 
types that are legally restricted to a specific 
future use or that are not available for 
appropriation or expenditure are reported as 
reservations of fund balances. 
 
University Funds – Fund balances of university 
funds that are legally restricted by outside 
sources to specific future use are reported as 
reservations of fund balances. 
 
Proprietary Funds – Reserved retained earnings 
of the proprietary funds are legally restricted for 
the payment of capital maintenance and debt 
service related to revenue bonds and bond 
anticipation notes and for other purposes. 
 
Designations 
 
Designations of unreserved fund balances in 
governmental, fiduciary and university funds 
indicate the State’s plan for use of financial 
resources in future periods. 
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2     BUDGETARY BASIS VS. GAAP 
 
 

The accompanying Combined Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures, Other Sources and Uses 
of Financial Resources and Changes in 
Budgetary Fund Balances-Budget and Actual 

(Non-GAAP), All Budgeted Fund Groups, 
presents comparisons of the legally adopted 
budget (more fully described in Note 1-G) with 
actual data on a budgetary basis. Since 
accounting principles applied for purposes of 
developing data on a budgetary basis differ 
significantly from those used to present financial 

 

 
Special Bond Debt

BUDGETARY FUND GROUPS General Highway University State Financed Service

Special Capital Debt
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FUND TYPES General Revenue Projects Service

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)  
  expenditures and other sources (uses) of
  financial resources (budgetary basis) 146,683$       127,488$       82$               609,981$       145,488$      5,144$         

Adjustments:
  To adjust revenues, related receivables
  and deferred revenue (151,313)       328,544          (18)                (622,600)        21                 20,022         

  To adjust expenditures/expenses and
  related liabilities (240,294)       (32,906)          - -                  435,277          (25,555)         59,046         

  To adjust for lapse period expenditures
  which were not recorded as liabilities 164,703         (2,167)            - -                  44,656            649               - -                 

Excess (deficiency) or revenues over (under)
  expenditures/expenses and other sources
  (uses) of financial resources into 
  financial resources (GAAP basis) -
  budgetary classifications (80,223)          420,959          64                 467,314          120,603        84,212         

Reclassifications & adjustments:
  To reclassify excess (deficiency) of
  revenues over (under) expenditures/
  expenses and other sources (uses) of 
  financial resources into financial
  statements fund types (9,435)            (420,959)        (64)                162,242          2,905            (558)             

  To record excess (deficiency) of revenues
  over (under) expenditures/expenses and
  other sources (uses) of financial resources
  for nonbudgeted funds and accounts 205                - -                   - -                  (1,616)            (907)              (24)               

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
  expenditures/expenses and other sources
  (uses) of financial resources (GAAP basis) (89,453)$       - -$                 - -$                627,940$       122,601$      83,630$       

Primary Government
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statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles, a reconciliation 
(amounts expressed in thousands) of resulting 
basis, perspective, entity and timing differences 
in the excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

(under) expenditures/expenses and other sources 
(uses) of financial resources for the year ended 
June 30, 1999 is presented below: 

Federal State
Trust Revolving Trust

Non-
Internal Expendable Expendable Govern- University
Service Enterprise Trust Trust mental Proprietary & College

(42,575)$  (9,550)$    (15,267)$  

(80,942)    23,666      (611,067)  

114,664    8,311        621,115    

(7,587)      (59)           (180)         

(16,440)    22,368      (5,399)      

16,440      128          5,399        5,200$      209,347$     65$          29,463$    - -$           (173)$          

- -             576          - -             9,048        158,166       2,898        1,647        50,185      275,689      

- -$           23,072$    - -$           14,248$    367,513$     2,963$      31,110$    50,185$    275,516$    

Primary Government (Continued) Component Units
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In accordance with Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement 32, Account-
ing and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue 
Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans, 
the State, due to its significant administrative and 
fiduciary responsibilities, has reported its deferred 
compensation plan as an expendable trust fund.  
The equity balance of the fund used to report the 
State’s administrative activities, previously re-
ported as an enterprise fund type, and the plan as-
sets, previously reported as an agency fund type, 
have been reclassified to an expendable trust fund 
as a restatement of July 1, 1998 balances.  As a 

result of this reclassification of the enterprise fund 
to an expendable trust fund, the cash and cash 
equivalents at July 1, 1998 have been restated by 
$(2,914). 
 
In addition, fixed assets of the Toll Highway 
Authority were overstated in prior periods by 
$111,352.  Also, for financial reporting purposes 
at the reporting entity level, the Toll Highway 
Authority has changed its year-end from June 30 
to December 31.  The balances reported in these 
statements represent activity as of and for the six 
months ended December 31, 1998. 
 
The July 1, 1998 equity balances (amounts ex-
pressed in thousands) have been reclassified/
restated as follows: 

3    RECLASSIFICATION/RESTATE- 
   MENT OF EQUITY BALANCES 

 

The State Treasurer is the custodian of the 
State’s cash, cash equivalents and investments 
for most funds maintained in the State 
Treasury.  Funds maintained outside the State 
Treasury (locally held funds) have independent 
authority to manage their own cash and 
investments.  As described later, the funds of 
the State’s retirement systems are invested 
separately. 
 
Investment Policy – 

General 
 
Statutes authorize public agencies, including 
the State of Illinois Primary Government and 
its Component Units, to engage in a wide 
variety of investment activities.  These include 
bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, 
treasury bills or other securities guaranteed by 
the United States; interest-bearing savings 
accounts, certificates of deposit, or interest-
bearing time deposits or any other investments 
that constitute direct obligations of any bank; 
short-term obligations of certain qualified 
United States corporations; short-term discount 

4     DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 

Component Units

Discretely Presented

Expendable

Trust Enterprise Proprietary 

Fund Balance/Retained Earnings

   July 1, 1998, as previously reported 2,184,012$    166,156$     1,710,150$                   

   Reclassifications:

       To reclassify funds determined

          to be Expendable Trust:

            Deferred Compensation 1,239,294      (2,709)          

   Restatements:

       To adjust for overstatement of fixed 

          assets (111,352)                       

Fund Balance/Retained Earnings

    July 1, 1998, as reclassified/restated 3,423,306$    163,447$     1,598,798$                   

Primary Government

Fund Types
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 obligations of the Federal National Mortgage 
Association; shares or other securities legally 
issued by certain state or federal savings and loan 
associations; insured dividend-bearing share 
accounts and certain other accounts of chartered 
credit unions; certain money market mutual funds; 
Public Treasurer’s Pool; and repurchase 
agreements that meet certain instrument and 
transaction requirements.  Statutes require that 
investments purchased must mature or be 
redeemable prior to the date they will be needed 
to pay expenditures. 
 
The investments of the State’s five retirement 
systems (classified as pension trust funds) are 
governed by the State Pension Code.  Authorized 
investments consist of bonds, equities, real estate, 
venture capital and other activities that are 
consistent with the “prudent person” rule.  The 
“prudent person” rule, as adopted by the Illinois 
General Assembly in 1982, states that fiduciaries 
must discharge their duties with the care, skill, 
prudence and diligence which a prudent person 
acting in a like capacity and familiar with such 
matters would use under conditions prevailing at 
the time. 
 
In addition to statutory requirements, Primary 
Government agencies and Component Units have 
adopted their own supplemental investment 
practices which further regulate such activities. 
 
Derivatives 
 
Certain State agencies, principally Teachers’ 
Retirement System (TRS), Illinois State Board of 
Investments (ISBI) and State Universities 
Retirement System (SURS), invest in derivative 
securities.  A derivative security is an investment 
whose payoff depends upon the value of other 
assets such as commodity prices, bond and stock 
prices or a market index.  In general, a derivative 
is used to modify exposure to undesirable risks, to 
increase portfolio liquidity and flexibility or to 
enhance investment yields within the level of risk 
defined in the agency’s investment guidelines. 
 
Derivative transactions involve, to varying 
degrees, credit risk and market risk.  Credit risk is 
the possibility that a loss may occur because a 
party to a transaction fails to perform according to 

terms.  In order to eliminate credit risk, all 
derivative securities of TRS, ISBI and SURS are 
done through a clearinghouse which guarantees 
delivery and accepts the risk of default by either 
party.  Market risk is the possibility that a change 
in interest or currency rates will cause the value of 
a financial instrument to decrease or become more 
costly to settle.  The market risk associated with 
derivatives, the prices of which are constantly 
fluctuating, is regulated by TRS, ISBI and SURS 
by imposing strict limits as to the types, amounts 
and degree of risk that investment managers may 
undertake.  These limits are approved by 
governing bodies and senior management, and the 
risk positions of the investment managers are 
reviewed periodically to monitor compliance with 
limits. 
 
TRS, ISBI and SURS invest in the following types 
of derivatives: foreign currency forward contracts, 
collateralized mortgage obligations (CMO’s), 
financial futures and financial options. 
 
Foreign currency forward contracts are used to 
hedge against the currency risk in agencies’ 
foreign stock and fixed income security portfolios.  
Foreign currency forward contracts are an 
agreement to buy or sell a specific amount of a 
foreign currency at a specified delivery or 
maturity date for an agreed upon price.  
Fluctuations in the market value of foreign 
currency forward contracts are recognized as 
incurred rather than at the maturity or the 
settlement date of the contract.  Foreign currency 
forward contracts represent an off-balance sheet 
obligation because there are no balance sheet 
assets or liabilities associated with those 
contracts. 
 
Financial futures are agreements to buy or sell a 
specific amount of an asset at a specified delivery 
or on maturity date for an agreed-upon price.  As 
the market value of the futures contract varies 
from the original contract price, a gain or loss is 
recognized and paid to the clearinghouse.  
Financial futures represent an off-balance sheet 
obligation because there are no balance sheet 
assets or liabilities associated with those 
contracts. 
 
Financial options are agreements that give one 
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party the right, but not the obligation, to buy or 
sell a specific amount of an asset for a specified 
price, called the strike price, on or before a 
specified expiration date.  As writers of financial 
options, TRS and SURS receive a premium at the 
outset of the agreement and bear the risk of an 
unfavorable change in the price of the financial 
instrument underlying the option.  Premiums 
received are recorded as a liability when the 
financial option is written.  Fluctuations in the fair 
value of financial options are recognized in the 
financial statements as incurred rather than at the 
time the options are exercised or when they 
expire.  As a purchaser of financial options, SURS 

pays a premium at the outset of the agreement and 
the counterparty bears the risk of an unfavorable 
change in the price of the financial instrument 
underlying the option.  Premiums paid are 
recorded as an asset when the financial option is 
purchased and gains/losses are recognized when 
the options are exercised by the agency or they 
expire. 
 
As of June 30, 1999, TRS fair value (expressed in 
thousands) of option contracts written was $73.  
The fair value of option contracts written 
represents the amount to be paid to close all 
positions as of that date. 

The preceding table represents the derivative 
positions held by TRS, ISBI and SURS at June 
30, 1999 in financial futures and financial 
options (expressed in thousands).  Additional 
information concerning the derivative 
investments of TRS, ISBI and SURS can be 
obtained from their separately issued annual 
reports. 
 
Contractual principal amounts are often used to 

express the volume of these transactions but do 
not reflect the extent to which positions may 
offset one another.  These amounts do not 
represent the much smaller amounts potentially 
subject to risk. 
 
Deposits – 
 
Primary Government 
On June 30, 1999, the carrying amount of the 

 

Teachers' Universities Illinois State
Retirement Retirement Board of

Type of Derivative Contract System System Investments
Domestic Interest Rate Products
     Fixed income futures purchased 1,337,973$           289,200$              
     Fixed income futures sold 24,600                  
     Fixed income purchased put options 46,700                  
     Fixed income written put options 386,368                
     Fixed income written call options 5,597                    45,700                  

International Interest Rate Products
     International fixed income futures purchased 73,680                  758,000                
     International fixed income purchased put options 49,390                  30,000                  

Domestic Equity Products
     S & P 500 index futures purchased 941,974                

Foreign Currency Products
     Forward foreign currency purchased 228,682                200,089$           
     Forward foreign currency sold 223,804                199,647             

* The contractual principal amounts listed above represent the fair market value of 
   the underlying assets the derivative contracts control.  Contractual principal values 
   do not represent actual balance sheet values.

Contractual Principal Outstanding*
(expressed in thousands)
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State’s Primary Government cash deposits 
(amounts expressed in thousands) was $2,568,193 
and the bank balance was $2,567,466.  Of the 
bank balance, $2,393,579 was covered by federal 
depository insurance or by collateral held by the 
State or the State’s agent in the State’s name, 
$13,934 was covered by collateral held in the 
pledging bank’s trust department or by its agent in 
the State’s name, and $159,953 was uninsured and 
uncollateralized. 
 
Component Units 
On June 30, 1999, the carrying amount of the 
State’s Component Units’ cash deposits (amounts 
expressed in thousands) was $265,711, and the 
bank balance was $291,924.  Of the bank balance, 
$234,655 was covered by federal depository 
insurance or by collateral held by the State or the 
State’s agent in the State’s name, $51,542 was 
covered by collateral held in the pledging bank’s 
trust department or by its agent in the State’s 
name, and $5,727 was uninsured and 
uncollateralized.  At June 30, 1999, the State 
Treasurer held $270,686 of the component unit 
agencies’ bank balances.  By statute, public 
monies deposited in financial institutions must 
either be collateralized; insured by an agency of 
the federal government; or not exceed 75% of the 
capital stock and surplus, 75% of the net worth, or 
50% of the unimpaired capital and surplus of a 
financial institution. 

Investments – 
 
Investments (amounts expressed in thousands) are 
categorized below to give an indication of the 
level of custodial credit risk assumed by the State 
at June 30, 1999.  Category 1 includes 
investments that are insured or registered or for 
which the securities are held by the State or its 
agent in the State’s name.  Category 2 includes 
uninsured and unregistered investments for which 
the securities are held by the counterparty trust 
department or agent in the State’s name.  
Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered 
investments (whether or not held in the State’s 
name) and securities held by any other party 
(State’s agent, counterparty’s trust department or 
agent) but not in the State’s name.  Of the 
amounts shown below in Category 3, 80% pertain 
to enterprise fund types and 20% pertain to 
pension fund types. 
 
The master repurchase agreements utilized by the 
Treasurer require the broker or financial 
institution to maintain the fair value of collateral 
securities at 102% of the agreement.  The carrying 
amount, including accrued interest, was 
approximately $2,202,147 and the fair value of 
the collateral securities to be resold based on 
commitments under the repurchase agreements 
was approximately $2,253,017 as of June 30, 
1999. 

 Primary Government
Carrying Fair

1 2 3 Amount Value
Repurchase agreements 4,254,902$    4,254,902$    4,254,902$    
U.S. Treasury and Agency obligations 8,246,274      101,346$  8,347,620      8,348,054      
Commercial paper 3,087,043      3,915$     3,090,958      3,090,958      
Corporate debt securities 8,204,089      15,437      8,219,526      8,219,526      
Corporate equity securities 17,394,452    1,520        17,395,972    17,395,972    

41,186,760$  3,915$     118,303$  41,308,978    41,309,412    

Investment contracts 2,206,073      2,206,073      
Tangible property 2,557,676      2,557,676      
Investments in mutual funds 12,166,917    12,233,136    

58,239,644$  58,306,297$  

Category
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Of the amounts shown above in Category 3, the 
university funds constitute 45%, and special 
revenue constitute 55%. 
 
Reconciliation to Balance Sheet – 
 
The balance sheet account cash and cash 
equivalents contains certain short-term  
investments (included as investments above)  to  

 
 
 
 
reflect their liquidity.  In addition, the 
disclosures related to deposits and investments 
above include certain items that the balance 
sheet shows as restricted assets or other assets.  
A reconciliation follows: 

 

Securities Lending Transactions – 
 
The investment policies of certain State 
agencies, principally the retirement systems and 
certain universities, permit them to enter into 
securities lending transactions.  In these 
transactions, the agency loans their securities to 
broker-dealers and other entities for collateral 
with a simultaneous agreement to return the 
collateral for the same securities in the future.  
The agencies’ securities custodians are agents in 
lending the securities for collateral of at least 
102% of the fair value of the securities.  
Collateral can consist of cash, cash equivalents, 
government securities,  commercial paper or 
irrevocable letters of credit.  Depending on their 

nature, securities on loan at year-end are 
presented as classified or unclassified in the 
preceding schedule of custodial credit risk.  
Generally, at year end, agencies had no credit 
risk exposure to borrowers because the amounts 
they owed to the borrowers exceeded the 
amounts the borrowers owe the agencies and 
maturities on non-cash collateral received are 
longer than the lesser of the maturities of the 
securities lent or the term of the lending 
transactions.  Policies regarding indemnification 
vary among agencies.  Some agencies’ contracts 
with custodians require them to indemnify the 
agency if the borrowers fail to return the 
securities (and if the collateral is inadequate to 
replace the securities lent) or the borrowers fail 

Component Units
Carrying Fair

1 2 3 Amount Value
Repurchase agreements 19,980$       3,704$      23,684$       23,684$       
U.S. Treasury and Agency obligations 294,181       39,365      20,217$  353,763       352,148       
Commercial paper 28,872         12,984      13,878    55,734         55,781         
Corporate debt securities 225,787       13,854      94           239,735       239,735       
Corporate equity securities 155,869       7,101        2,766      165,736       165,894       

724,689$     77,008$    36,955$  838,652       837,242       

Investment contracts 785,981       793,525       
Tangible property 36,500         36,500         
Investments in mutual funds 915,381       915,396       

2,576,514$  2,582,663$  

Category

Cash and
Cash

Equivalents Investments
Amount Per Note:
Primary Government Deposits/Investments 2,568,193$     58,239,644$          
Component Units Deposits/Investments 265,711          2,576,514              
Cash Equivalents 7,257,467       (7,257,467)            
Restricted Assets (96,297)           (129,259)               
Amount Per Balance Sheet
    
     Total (Memorandum Only) Reporting Entity 9,995,074$     53,429,432$          
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to pay the agency for income distributing by the 
securities’ issuers while the securities are out on 
loan.  Other agencies have no provisions for 
indemnification. 
 
Generally, securities loans can be terminated on 
demand by either the agency or the borrower, 
although the average term of the loans is 10 to 
29 days.  Cash collateral is invested in the 
lending agent’s short-term investment pool, 
which at year-end has a weighted average 
maturity of 30 to 51 days.  The relationship 
between the maturities of the investment pool 

and the agency’s loan is affected by the 
maturities of the securities loans made by other 
entities that use the agent’s pool, which the 
agency cannot determine.  The agencies cannot 
pledge or sell collateral securities received 
unless the borrower defaults. 
 
As of June 30, 1999, agencies had outstanding 
loaned investment securities (amounts expressed 
in thousands) having a fair value of $3,616,180 
against which they had received collateral 
having a fair value of $3,727,446. 
 

 

5              TAXES RECEIVABLE 
 

 

Taxes receivable (amounts expressed in 
thousands) at June 30, 1999 consisted of the 
following: 

 

Total
Special Trust and (Memorandum

General Revenue Agency Only)

Income taxes 630,177$      73,293$     703,470$       
Sales taxes 750,657        282,363     68,774$     1,101,794      
Motor fuel taxes 263,414     403            263,817         
Public utility taxes 58,062          159,961     218,023         
Unemployment compensation taxes 249,939$   249,939         
Other taxes 122,305        20,245       7,495         150,045         

1,561,201$   799,276$   326,611$   2,687,088$    

Less:  Allowance for uncollectible taxes 779,611        401,109     1,180,720      

Taxes Receivable, net 781,590$      398,167$   326,611$   1,506,368$    

Fund Types
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6    DUE FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS   
  AND COMPONENT UNITS 

The following balances (amounts expressed in 
thousands) at June 30, 1999 represent due from/
to balances among all funds and component 
units: 

 

Other Component Primary Other Component Primary
Fund Type/Fund Funds Units Government Funds Units Government
Primary Government
General 291,183$    21,217$        509,626$   93,246$      

Special Revenue:
     State Construction Account 47,305        
     Local Government Distributive 103,773      625            
     Public Transportation 38,518        
     Motor Fuel Tax 25,788        64,588       
     Road 42,609        1,926            56,699       5,344          
     Tourism Promotion 7,791          48             186             
     RTA Occupation &
       Use Tax Replacement 4,640          
     Special Purposes Trust 22,958        15 500            
     Personal Property 
       Tax Replacement 54,846       
     State & Local Sales Tax Reform 37,116       
     County & Mass Transit District 21,765       
     Build Illinois 9,450          
     Downstate Public Transportation 7,278         
     State Gaming 32,107       
     Rate Adjustment 5,983         
     Social Security &
        Employment Services 8,909          4,386         
     Unemployment Compensation 2,759          8,181         
     USDA Women, Infants & Children 3,554          3,885         
     Local Initiative 6,000          100             
     Other 38,464        548               22,423       7,792          

362,518      2,489            320,430     13,422        

Debt Service: 23               23             884             

Capital Projects:
     ESCO COP Capital Projects 6,728            
     Other 200 1,920         596             

200 6,728            1,920         596             

Enterprise:
     State Lottery 72,925        1,693         
     Other 186             5,579         

73,111        7,272         

Internal Service:
     Communications Revolving 27,112        502               1,858         1                 
     Statistical Service Revolving 20,814        11                 464            
     State Garage Revolving 4,847          3                  70             1                 
     Health Insurance Reserve 96,108        2,759            364            

Due From Due To
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Note 6 (continued) 

 

The Illinois State Toll Highway Authority 
(THA), a component unit, has no amounts re-
ported as due from or to the primary government 
or other component units at December 31, 1998. 
 

At June 30, 1999, THA would report due from  
primary government of $2,111 and due to pri-
mary government of $1,925. 

Other Component Primary Other Component Primary
Fund Type/Fund Funds Units Government Funds Units Government

Trust and Agency:
     Expendable Trust: 2,313         98            3,066         39

     Pension Trust:
       State Employees' 
          Retirement System 15,600       
       State Universities 
          Retirement System 33              6,225       
       Other 57              315            

15,690       6,225       315            

     Investment Trust: 9                22              

     Agency:
       Public Assistance Recoveries Trust 40,244       
       Group Insurance Premium Fund 5                115          5,344         
       RTA Sales Tax Trust 21,765       
       Secretary of State 
         International Registration 4,051         
       Social Services 27,525       
       Other 735            9,620         

26,556       115          82,733       
Total Trust and Agency 44,568       6,438       86,136       39             

Total (Memorandum Only)
     Primary Government 928,516     40,149     928,516     108,189     

Component Units
Governmental 181            39$            1,397         
Proprietary:
     Industrial Revolving Fund 3,852         1,399         
     Other 1,267         2,457         22$         

5,119         3,856         22           

University and College:
     Northern Illinois University 3,825         4,918         3,825         
     Southern Illinois University 5,150         7,691         5,000         2,700       
     University of Illinois 13,347       90,060       13,667       35,451     
     Other 1,172         5,295         1,049         1,976       

23,494       107,964     23,541       40,127     
Total Component Unit 28,794       108,003     28,794       40,149     

Total (Memorandum Only) 
     Reporting Entity 957,310$   40,149$   108,003$   957,310$   108,189$   40,149$   

Due From Due To
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In the accompanying financial statements, the 
General, special revenue and debt service fund 
types reflect loans and notes receivable of  
$809.8 million.  Fund balances in the amount of 
$745.4 million have been reserved to indicate 
their long-term nature and that they are not 
available to meet current appropriation or 
expenditure needs. 
 
A portion of the General fund type business loan 
programs ($29.4 million) represents various 
funds’ pooled resources that the State has 
invested in a pilot mortgage program since fiscal 
year 1983.  The only remaining program is 
categorized as a hotel loan and is discussed 
below. 
 
Effective January 12, 1987, two of the 
program’s outstanding mortgage loans 
aggregating $28.9 million were restructured.  
One of these loans with an original balance of 
$15.5 million was restructured again effective 
January 1, 1990.  The remaining loan totaling 
$13.4 million in original value was restructured 
effective January 1, 1991.  Through June 30, 
1998, the Treasurer recorded a provision for the 
write-down of $17.1 million for these two 
properties based on independent valuations.  
These two loans have been classified as 
nonperforming assets. 

 
In 1995, the Treasurer authorized the trustee to 
sell the mortgage loans.  However, the Attorney 
General opined that both his and the Governor’s 
consent were required, which was not provided.  
Affiliates of the owners of the hotel loans filed a 
lawsuit against the trustee and the Treasurer 
seeking specific performance of the buy-sell 
agreement on the agreed-to terms.  This lawsuit 
is still pending and the ultimate outcome of this 
proceeding is not presently determinable. 
 
On October 31, 1997, the trustee filed suit 
against the Hotel ventures for making improper 
deductions in determining payments due, 
creating a default and making the loan balances 
due upon demand.  At the time of the filing of 
the suit, the trustee presented letters of credit 
with a value of $2.7 million, which serve as 
collateral for the loans of one of the properties, 
for collection.  The ventures obtained a 
restraining order to prevent collection of the 
letters of credit. 
 
On December 9, 1997, the Circuit Court 
dissolved the restraining order of one Hotel 
venture and denied the venture’s motion to stop 
the trustee from calling the letter of credit.  The 
court stayed the effectiveness of this order 
pending appeal.  The Appellate Court 
subsequently reversed the Circuit Court’s ruling.  

7     LOANS AND NOTES  
   RECEIVABLE 

Loans and notes receivable (amounts expressed 
in thousands) at June 30, 1999 consisted of the 
following: 

 Total
(Memorandum

Only)
Special Debt Primary Component

General Revenue Service Enterprise Government Units

Mortgage loan program 25$             120$             145$                 1,643,630$      
Student loan program 19,339        1,813            1,086,351$       1,107,503         113,167            
Local government infrastructure 725,040        725,040            92,025              
Business loan program 16,672        7,009            23,681              208                   
Port districts construction 15,468        15,468              
Other 2,154          34,227          25,500$       61,881              1,812                

53,658        768,209        25,500         1,086,351         1,933,718         1,850,842         
Less:  Allowance for
 uncollectible accounts 33,631        3,900            2,525                 40,056              40,548              

Loans and notes receivable, net 20,027$      764,309$      25,500$       1,083,826$       1,893,662$       1,810,294$      

Fund Types
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The Treasurer and trustee have appealed this rul-
ing which was denied by the Illinois Supreme 
Court.  The matter is now before the trial court.  
The ultimate outcome of this proceeding is not 
presently determinable. 
 
The lawsuit against the other venture has been 
stayed pending the resolution of certain related 
issues discussed above.  Once the Illinois Su-
preme Court rules on the related issues, a decision 
will likely be made on whether to lift the stay or 
not.  The outcome of this litigation is not pres-
ently determinable. 
 
The write-down of the above Hotel loans is not 
considered forgiveness of the obligations and col-
lection efforts will continue for the entire loan 

balance including principal and interest. 
 
On December 2, 1999, subsequent to the report 
date, the judge in the Circuit Court in Madison 
county granted the motions of the plaintiffs for a 
partial summary judgement of the 1995 lawsuit. 
The court found that the plaintiffs were ready, 
willing and able to perform the buy-sell agree-
ments at the time originally set for closing in 
1995.  Since the buy-sell agreements limited the 
relief available under their terms to specific per-
formance, the Court directed preparation of a final 
decree allowing plaintiffs’ claim for this form of 
relief and providing the terms for consummating 
the sale.  The Treasurer is considering her op-
tions, which include the possibility of appealing 
this decision. 

8             PROPERTY, PLANT AND        
            EQUIPMENT 

 

Property, plant and equipment (amounts ex-
pressed in thousands) at June 30, 1999 consisted 
of the following: 

 
Total

General (Memo-
Fixed randum 

Assets Non- Only)
Account Internal Expendable Pension Primary Component
Group Enterprise Service Trust Trust Government Units

Land and land improvements 640,841$           335$             104$         1,963$         643,243$           2,954,354$       
Buildings and building 
  improvements 3,245,469          17,113          13,910         3,276,492          3,295,243         
Equipment 1,406,020          13,635$      175,581        24,310         1,619,546          2,161,895         
Construction in progress 55,646               55,646               716,235            

5,347,976          13,635        193,029        104           40,183         5,594,927          9,127,727         

Less: Accumulated 
  depreciation 9,595          151,489        17,391         178,475             1,501,443         

5,347,976$        4,040$        41,540$        104$         22,792$       5,416,452$        7,626,284$       

Fund Types
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Construction in progress (amounts expressed in 
thousands) for general fixed assets, and 

component units as of June 30, 1999 is 
composed of the following: 

Changes in general fixed assets (amounts ex-
pressed in thousands) for the year ended June 

30, 1999 are presented below: 

 

Balance Deletions/ Balance
July 1, Net June 30,
1998 Additions Transfers 1999

Land and land improvements 607,073$          8,291$          (25,477)$        640,841$             
Buildings and building improvements 3,031,867         43,124          (170,478)        3,245,469            
Equipment 1,366,380         146,782        107,142          1,406,020            
Construction in progress 56,176              161,679        162,209          55,646                 

5,061,496$       359,876$      73,396$          5,347,976$          

Expended Committed
Project through as of Available

Project Authorizations June 30, 1999 June 30, 1999 Authorization

General Fixed Assets Account Group -
  Lawrenceville Correctional Center 74,500$            6,155$             63,601$            4,744$              
  IYC Kewanee 42,750              3,655               34,082             5,013                
  DNR Office Building 30,600              2,902               24,039             3,659                
  Juvenile Correctional Facility 34,000              247                  12                    33,741              
  Joliet Minimum Security Prison 65,500              1,337               2,035               62,128              
  Savanna Maximum Security Prison 95,000              787                  75,566             18,647              
  Alton Building Addition, MHC 11,924              175                  475                  11,274              
  Other 217,299            40,388             166,298            10,613              
     Total 571,573$          55,646$            366,108$          149,819$          

Component Units -
  State Toll Highway Improvements 645,250$          486,297$          158,953$          -                        
  Faraday Hall Addition - NIU 26,840              26,699             25                    116                   
  Faraday Engineering Building - NIU 28,138              27,520             175                  443                   
  Altgeld Hall Renovation  - NIU 19,150              31                    906                  18,213              
  Stevenson Towers Renovation - NIU 26,056              15,171             5,492               5,393                
  Ambulatory Care Facility - U of I 97,613              78,757             15,342             3,514                
  Parking Structure D-1 2nd Addition - U of I 12,515              12,515             -                       -                        
  Assemby Hall Addition & Remodeling - U of I 11,435              9,677               131                  1,627                
  ACES Library - U of I 21,100              324                  17,293             3,483                
  Engineering Hall Rehabilitatioin - U of I 14,625              1,490               7,576               5,559                
  Spurlock Museum - U of I 10,846              4,479               5,026               1,341                
     Total 913,568$          662,960            210,919$          39,689$            

  Projects less than $10,000 53,275             
                  Total 716,235$          
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9             NOTES PAYABLE 
 
 

The State agencies listed below generally issue 
short-term notes, normally secured by specific 
revenue sources, to provide temporary 

financing.  Outstanding notes payable (amounts 
expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1999 were 
as follows: 

Illinois Student Assistance Commission 
(ISAC) – 
 
The ISAC is authorized to issue Student Loan 
Revenue Notes.  The notes and related interest 
are payable solely from the revenues and other 
resources of the ISAC.  On June 30, 1999, the 
ISAC had $101 million of notes outstanding 
due 2005, 2029, or upon demand.  Assets 
acquired and revenues generated under the 
individual notes serve as collateral for their 
respective note issues. 
 
Illinois Medical District Commission 
(Commission) – 
 
The Commission’s notes payable consist of a 
20-year mortgage on the Chicago Technology 
Park Enterprise Center which was completed in 

Fiscal Year 1999. The 20-year mortgage, 
$2,969, has an interest rate of 6.25%, matures 
in 2019, and is secured by the related building 
and land.   
 
Southwestern Illinois Development Authority 
(SWIDA) – 
 
The SWIDA obtained a note payable from the 
Department of Commerce and Community 
Affairs in the amount of $100 thousand in 
fiscal year 1997, the proceeds of which were 
used for start-up costs. This note is non-interest 
bearing and matures on July 1, 2008.  As of 
June 30, 1999, there were notes payable 
outstanding of $91 thousand. 
 
 

Amount Interest Annual
Fund Type/Agency Outstanding Rates Maturity To

Primary Government -
Enterprise:
     Illinois Student Assistance Commission 100,794$      3.17% to 9% Various

Component Unit -
Governmental:
    Illinois Medical District Commission 2,969$          6.25% 2019

Proprietary:
     Southwestern Illinois Development Authority 91$               -- 2008

Universities and Colleges:
     Northern Illinois University 1,408            5% to 7.5% 2002
     Northeastern Illinois University 304               8.5% 2008
     Southern Illinois University 2,890            3% to 4.2% 2009
     University of Illinois 2,136            5.39% to 9% 2000

6,738            

     Total Component Units 9,798            

     Total (Memorandum Only) Reporting Entity 110,592$      
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Universities and Colleges – 
 
Universities and colleges have issued notes 
payable aggregating $6.7 million at June 30, 
1999.  The notes are generally secured through 

revenues (i.e., lease payment agreements) 
derived from the operations of the projects 
constructed, although portions of the notes 
outstanding are unsecured. 

10      RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 
 
 

 
Plan Descriptions.  The State of Illinois 
sponsors five public employee retirement 
systems (“PERS”) that are included in the 
State’s financial statements as pension trust 
funds.  The General Assembly Retirement 
System (“GARS”), Judges’ Retirement System 
(“JRS”) and State Employees’ Retirement 
System (“SERS”), are the administrators of 
single-employer defined benefit pension plans. 
The GARS, JRS and SERS are governed by 
articles 2, 18 and 14, respectively, of the Illinois 
Pension Code (40 ILCS 5/1, et. al.). 
 
The Teachers’ Retirement System (“TRS”) is 
the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple- 
employer public employee defined benefit 
pension plan with “special funding situations.”  
It provides coverage to teachers employed by 
public school districts in Illinois (excluding 
Chicago) even though most covered employees 
are not State employees.  There are 894 local 
school districts, 134 special districts, and 32 
other State agencies which contribute to the 
TRS plan.  At June 30, 1999, the TRS had 
outstanding receivables of $261 million for 
payroll deduction agreements with members for 
optional services, refund repayments and 
upgrade balances owed to the TRS.  The State 
Universities Retirement System (“SURS”) is the 
administrator of a cost-sharing multiple- 
employer public employee defined benefit 
pension plan and a defined contribution plan.  
They also have “special funding situations.”  
The SURS provides coverage to faculty and 
staff of State universities, community colleges 
and related agencies, of which, some covered 
employees are not State employees.  There are 
12 universities, 39 community colleges, and 14 
other State agencies which contribute to the 
SURS plan. 

 
The State of Illinois is legally mandated to make 
contributions to the TRS and SURS.  Because 
the State contributes most of the TRS and SURS 
employer contributions, the single employer 
provisions of GASB Statement 27 have been 
followed for reporting those systems in the 
statewide CAFR.  The TRS and SURS are 
governed by articles 16 and 15, respectively, of 
the Illinois Pension Code.   
 
Effective January 1, 1998, legislation 
established an alternative defined benefit 
program know as the Portable Benefit Option 
Plan within the SURS.  This option is offered in 
addition to the existing traditional benefit 
option.  All members who are eligible for the 
traditional benefit option are eligible for the 
portable option.  New and existing members are 
provided a window period  in which to make an 
irrevocable election.  The portable option 
provides an enhanced refund at termination for 
those who leave SURS with at least five years of 
service.  Offsetting this additional cost is the 
elimination of the survivor benefit package.  
This program is designed to be cost neutral in 
relation to the traditional option.  Approximately 
11,000 of the approximately 78,000 members 
have chosen this option. 
 
Legislation, effective January 1, 1998, also 
required the SURS to offer a Self-Managed 
Plan. This is a defined contribution plan and is 
offered to employees of all SURS employers 
who elect to participate.  The contribution rate is 
8% of their gross earnings.  It is a qualified 
money purchase plan under Section 401(a) of 
the Internal Revenue Code.  The assets are 
maintained under trust administered by the 
SURS Board of Trustees in accordance with the 
Illinois Pension Code.  3,740 of the 
approximately 78,000 members have chosen this 
option.   $31.3 million of the $11.8 billion  total  
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assets relate to the Self-Managed Plan.  Plan 
member contributions were $6.7 million and 
employer contributions were $6.4 million for the 
year ended June 30, 1999.  
 
Each of the five State-sponsored retirement 
systems provide retirement, death and disability 
benefits to members and beneficiaries.  Each 
plan also issues a publicly available financial 
report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for that 
plan.  Those reports may be obtained by writing 
or calling the plan as follows: 
 
• General Assembly Retirement System and 

Judges’ Retirement System, 2101 South 
Veterans Parkway, PO Box 19255, 
Springfield, Illinois, 62794-9255, (217)782-
8500. 

• State Employees’ Retirement System, 2101 
South Veterans Parkway, PO Box 19255, 
Springfield, Illinois, 62794-9255, (217)785-
2340. 

• Teachers’ Retirement System, 2815 West 
Washington Street, PO Box 19253, 
Springfield, Illinois, 62794-9253, (217)753-
0311. 

• State Universities Retirement System, 1901 
Fox Drive, Champaign, Illinois, 61820-
7333, (217)378-8800. 

 
Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost. 
Member contributions are based on fixed 
percentages set by statute ranging from 4% to 
11.5%.  The State’s funding requirements have 
been established by statute (Public Act 88-593) 

effective July 1, 1995 and provide for a 
systematic 50-year funding plan with an ultimate 
goal to achieve “90% funding” of the systems’ 
liabilities.  In addition, the funding plan provides 
for a 15-year phase-in period to allow the State 
to adapt to the increased financial commitment.  
Once the 15-year phase-in period is complete, 
the State’s contribution will then remain at a 
level percentage of payroll for the next 35 years 
until the 90% funded level is achieved.  As 
illustrated in Table I, the State met its funding 
requirement established by statutory law for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 1999.  Actual 
contributions varied slightly from contributions 
required by statute mainly because of 
differences between estimated and actual federal 
contributions. 
 
The current statutory law includes a “continuing 
appropriation,” which means that the State must 
automatically provide funding to the pension 
systems based on actuarial cost requirements 
and amortization of the unfunded liability 
without being subject to the General Assembly’s 
appropriation process. 
 
This statutory funding requirement differs 
significantly from the annual pension cost 
(“APC”) because the statutory plan does not 
conform with the GASB Statement 27 
accounting parameters.  The State’s APC for the 
current year and related information for each 
plan (dollar amounts expressed in thousands) are 
included in Table I.  
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Trend Information.  The annual pension cost, 
the percentage of annual pension cost 
contributed for the year and the net pension 

obligation at the end of the year are presented in 
the following Table II: 

 

Table II (dollar amounts in thousands)
GARS JRS SERS TRS SURS

Annual Pension
Cost ("APC")

6/30/97 6,044$      31,672$     241,891$      1,103,974$   543,502$      
6/30/98 6,545$      35,188$     239,048$      1,184,289$   415,303$      
6/30/99 7,448$      45,681$     343,772$      1,165,453$   428,373$      

% of APC
Contributed

6/30/97 46.11% 43.42% 65.39% 35.81% 33.49%
6/30/98 47.56% 44.59% 83.98% 40.33% 54.85%
6/30/99 49.68% 40.91% 91.78% 51.79% 55.53%

Net Pension
Obligation

6/30/97 32,773$    168,807$   1,122,318$   5,811,726$   3,213,690$   
6/30/98 36,205$    188,303$   1,160,624$   6,518,330$   3,400,896$   
6/30/99 39,953$    215,295$   1,188,871$   7,080,180$   3,591,396$   

The prior year amounts for JRS and SURS were revised due to a change in actuarial calculations.

TABLE I  (dollar amounts in thousands)
GARS JRS SERS TRS SURS

Actuarially required contribution ("ARC") 6,092$           38,631$         319,747$       932,909$       296,196$       
Plus: Interest on net pension obligation ("NPO") 2,897             15,064           98,653           554,058         289,076         
Adjustment to the ARC (1,541)            (8,014)            (74,628)          (321,514)        (156,899)        
Annual pension cost ("APC") 7,448             45,681           343,772         1,165,453      428,373         
Employer contributions 3,700             18,689           315,525         603,603         237,873         
Increase in NPO 3,748             26,992           28,247           561,850         190,500         
NPO at June 30, 1998*** 36,205           188,303         1,160,624      6,518,330      3,400,896      
NPO at June 30, 1999 39,953$         215,295$       1,188,871$    7,080,180$    3,591,396$    

Required contribution amounts/rates:
     * Statutory required contribution - State 3,504$           18,293$         314,618$       592,547$       238,300$       
        Members 11.5% 11% 4% - 9.5% 9% 8% - 9.5%
Actuarial valuation date 6/30/99 6/30/99 6/30/99 6/30/99 6/30/99
Actuarial cost method Proj. Unit Credit Proj. Unit Credit Proj. Unit Credit Proj. Unit Credit Proj. Unit Credit
Amortization method Level % of pay Level % of pay Level % of pay Level % of pay Level % of pay
Remaining amortization period 40 years, open 40 years, open 40 years, open 40 years, open 40 years, open
Asset valuation method Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
Actuarial assumptions:
  Investment rate of return 8% 8% 8.5% 8.5% 8.5%
  Projected salary increases 6.5% 6% .5% - 4.7% 6% - 9.3% ** 5.5%
  Postretirement benefit increases 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
  Inflation rate 4% 4% 3.5% 4% 5%

*  Public Act 88-0593 provides for 50-year funding including 15-year phase-in of employer contributions as a 
   percentage of active member payroll increasing until fiscal year 2010, and remaining at that level until fiscal 

      year 2045 when the Systems' funded ratios will be 90%.
**  Composite, 7%
***  Prior year balance for SURS revised due to changes in actuarial calculations.
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Postemployment Benefits.  In addition to 
providing pension benefits, the State Employees 
Group Insurance Act requires that the State pay 
the cost of basic noncontributory health and 
dental, and life insurance benefits to annuitants 
who are former State employees.  This includes 
annuitants of all of the State’s retirement 
systems, except the non-state employee 
members of TRS. 
 
Effective January 1, 1996, legislation transferred 
the administration of the TRS health insurance 
program to the Illinois Department of Central 
Management Services (“CMS”).  The legislation 
also established a funding mechanism consisting 
of a one-half of one percent contribution from 
active teachers and matching appropriations 
from the State to pay the subsidy portion of 
participating annuitants during fiscal year 1996 
and thereafter.  Persons enrolling in TRS 
managed care or residing in areas with no 
managed care receive a 75% premium subsidy.  
All others receive a 50% subsidy.  At June 30, 
1999 there were approximately 31,800 TRS 
annuitants enrolled in the health plan.  Payments 
into this plan by the annuitants as well as the 
state subsidy were approximately $55.7 million.  
The teachers health insurance program is 
accounted for in the Teachers Health Insurance 

Security Fund, an enterprise fund.  TRS is 
responsible for program enrollment and 
eligibility determination.  CMS is responsible 
for providing information and consultation to 
plan participants. 
 
Substantially all of the State’s employees may 
become eligible for postemployment benefits if 
they eventually become an annuitant.  Health 
and dental benefits include basic benefits for 
annuitants under the State’s self-insurance plan 
and insurance contracts currently in force.  Life 
insurance benefits are limited to $5,000 per 
annuitant age 60 and older.  For fiscal year 1999 
the State did not segregate payments made to 
annuitants from those made to current 
employees for health and dental, and life 
insurance benefits.  The total cost of all 
members, including postemployment health and 
dental, and life insurance benefits, is recognized 
as an expenditure in the accompanying financial 
statements as claims are reported and are 
financed on a pay-as-you-go basis.  For fiscal 
year 1999 the cost of providing postemployment 
health and dental, and life insurance benefits for 
the approximately 68,000 annuitants was 
estimated to be $205.3 million and $1.4 million, 
respectively. 
 

 

11      GENERAL OBLIGATIONS 
     BONDS 

 
General obligation bonds have been authorized 
and issued primarily to provide funds for 
acquisition and construction of capital facilities 
for higher education, public and mental health, 
correction and conservation purposes and for 
maintenance and construction of highway and 
waterway facilities.  Bonds also have been 
issued to provide assistance to municipalities for 
construction of sewage treatment facilities, port 
districts, aquarium facilities, local schools, mass 
transportation and aviation purposes, and to 
fund research and development of coal as an 
energy source.  In addition, bonds have been 
authorized to refund any general obligation 
bonds outstanding. 

The State Constitution provides that the State 
may issue general obligation bonds for specific 
purposes in such amounts as provided either by 
the General Assembly with a three-fifths vote of 
each house or by a majority of voters in a 
general election.  The enabling acts pursuant to 
which the bonds are issued provide that all 
bonds issued thereunder shall be direct 
obligations of the State of Illinois and pledge the 
full faith and credit of the State.  General 
obligation bonds are redeemed over a period not 
to exceed 30 years from available resources in 
the debt service funds.  However, the State of 
Illinois has generally issued 25 year serial bonds 
with equal amounts of principal and interest 
maturing each year, except for capital 
appreciation and refunding bonds which mature 
in varying amounts.  With the exception of anti-
pollution bonds, Illinois offerings generally have 
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call option of the State.  Calls can begin 10 years 
following the date of issuance, in whole or in 
part, in such order as the State shall determine 
and at a redemption price not to exceed 102% of 
par value. 

General obligation bonds outstanding and bonds 
authorized but unissued (amounts expressed in 
thousands) at June 30, 1999 are as follows: 
 

 

Changes in general obligation bonds during the 
year ended June 30, 1999 are summarized in 
Note 15.  Future general obligation debt service 

requirements (amounts expressed in thousands) 
at June 30, 1999 are as follows: 

 Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2000 498,625$        215,741$        714,366$        
2001 496,255          199,335          695,590          
2002 478,435          184,197          662,632          
2003 479,745          169,337          649,082          
2004 467,695          155,081          622,776          

Thereafter 4,662,890       1,165,579       5,828,469       
7,083,645$     2,089,270$     9,172,915$     

Less:  Unaccreted appreciation 957,201          
6,126,444$     

On March 25, 1999, the State issued $400 
million in general obligation bonds.  A portion 
thereof, $169.3 million with an average interest 
rate of 4.7%, plus $4.7 million of the $5.3 
million reoffering premium for the total bond 
issue, were used to advance refund $161.8 
million of certain callable maturities of 
previously issued general obligation bonds that 
had interest rates ranging from 5.875% to 
6.625%.  The principal of the refunded bonds 
will be redeemed on various dates through 2002 
at redemption prices of 102%.  The net proceeds 
of $173.2 million (after payment of $.8 million 
in underwriting fees and bond insurance 
premium) were used to purchase U.S. 
government securities which were deposited 
with an escrow agent to provide for all future 
debt service payments on the refunded bonds.  

As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to 
be defeased and the liability for those bonds has 
been removed from the General Long-Term 
Obligations Account Group.  At June 30, 1999, 
the outstanding balance of the defeased bonds is 
$161.8 million. 
 
The advance refunding transaction has reduced 
the State’s aggregate debt service payments by 
$9.8 million, resulting in an economic gain (the 
difference between the present values of the 
debt service payments on the old and new debt) 
of $9.3 million over the life of the refunded 
bonds.   
 
In prior years, the State defeased certain callable 
maturities of general obligation bonds by 
placing the proceeds of new bonds in an 

Authorized
Purpose Interest Rates Amount but Unissued

Capital development 3.50% to 7.90% 2,619,447$     1,787,830$          
Transportation 3.50% to 7.90% 1,547,551       3,021,397            
Anti-Pollution 3.50% to 12.0% 295,397          74,663                 
School construction 3.50% to 7.90% 257,516          1,962,456            
Coal development 3.50% to 7.90% 43,917            96,214                 
Refunding 3.50% to 6.50% 1,362,616       566,806               

6,126,444$     7,509,366$          

Outstanding
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irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt 
service payments on the old bonds.  
Accordingly, the trust account assets and the 
liability for the defeased bonds are not included 
in the accompanying financial statements.  At 
June 30, 1999, the outstanding balance of these 
defeased bonds is $97.7 million.  These bonds, 
bearing interest at rates ranging from 5.0% to 
6.75%, are to be redeemed on various dates 

through 2001 at redemption prices varying from 
100% to 102%. 
 
Subsequent to June 30, 1999, the State issued 
$100 million of general obligation bonds.  The 
bonds, issued on November 3, 1999, mature 
annually from 2003 through 2017 and bear 
interest at rates ranging from 4.75% to 6%. 

12     SPECIAL OBLIGATION 
    BONDS 

 
Special obligation bonds have been authorized 
and issued to provide funds for the Build Illinois 
Program, the State’s Metropolitan Civic Center 
Support Program, and to refund any bonds 
previously issued under these programs. 
 
The Build Illinois Program was implemented to 
expand the State’s efforts in economic 
development by providing financing in certain 
areas.  These areas include construction, 
reconstruction, modernization, and extension of 
the State’s infrastructure; development and 
improvement of educational, scientific, technical 
and vocational programs and facilities; 
expansion of health and human services in the 
State; protection, preservation, restoration, and 
conservation of the State’s environmental and 
natural resources; and provision of incentives 
for the location and expansion of businesses in 
Illinois resulting in increased employment. 
 
The State’s Metropolitan Civic Center Support 
Act (Support Act) was amended on September 
3, 1985, to allow the issuance of bonds to 

refinance the State’s Metropolitan Civic Center 
Support Program and to provide additional 
capital for new projects to be financed under the 
Support Act.  The refinancing of the State’s 
Metropolitan Civic Center Support Program is 
discussed further in Note 14.  The Support Act 
was amended further on September 11, 1990, to 
allow the issuance of bonds for making 
construction and improvement grants by the 
Secretary of State, as State Librarian, to public 
libraries and library systems.  Special obligation 
bonds are payable primarily from dedicated 
portions of the State’s sales tax and the horse 
racing privilege tax and are redeemed over a 
period of not more than 30 years.  Additionally, 
these bonds have call provisions providing for 
early redemption at the option of the State, 
beginning 10 years following the date of 
issuance, in whole or in part, in such order as the 
State shall determine and within any maturity by 
lot at varying premiums which decrease 
periodically. 
 
Special obligation bonds outstanding and bonds 
authorized but unissued (amounts expressed in 
thousands) at June 30, 1999, are as follows: 

Authorized
Purpose Interest Rates Amount but Unissued

Build Illinois:
     Public infrastructure 3.9% to 7.5% 534,662$        645,584$         
     Business development 5.6% to 7.5% 5,968              25,001             
     Education 3.9% to 7.5% 246,450          63,198             
     Environment 3.9% to 7.5% 7,397              70,665             
     Refunding 3.9% to 7.0% 865,340          Unlimited

1,659,817       804,448           

Civic Center:
     Civic centers 5.5% to 7.4% 58,942            135,424           
     Libraries 5.5% to 6.4% 6,780              3,220               
     Refunding 3.65% to 7.35% 102,125          Unlimited

167,847          138,644           
1,827,664$     943,092$         

Outstanding
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Changes in special obligation bonds during the 
year ended June 30, 1999, are summarized in 
Note 15.  Future special obligation debt service 

requirements (amounts expressed in thousands) 
at June 30, 1999, are as follows: 

 Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2000 79,405$          93,889$          173,294$        
2001 80,645            91,036            171,681          
2002 81,900            88,154            170,054          
2003 83,250            85,169            168,419          
2004 84,900            81,823            166,723          

Thereafter 1,511,795       635,245          2,147,040       
1,921,895$     1,075,316$     2,997,211$     

Less: Unaccreted appreciation 94,231            
1,827,664$     

In prior years, the State defeased certain callable 
maturities of Build Illinois and Civic Center 
bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in 
an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt 
service payments on the old bonds.  
Accordingly, the trust account assets and the 
liability for the defeased bonds are not included 

in the accompanying financial statements.  At 
June 30, 1999, the outstanding balance of the 
defeased bonds is $359.8 million.  These bonds, 
with interest rates ranging from 5.6% to 7.6%, 
are to be redeemed on various dates through 
2008 at redemption prices varying from 100% to 
102%. 

13       REVENUE BONDS 
 

 
The State Constitution empowers certain State 
agencies and authorities to issue bonds that are 
not supported by the full faith and credit of the 
State.  The bond indentures include a pledge 
from these agencies and authorities that income 
derived from acquired or constructed assets be 
used to retire the debt and service related 
interest.  In addition, certain authorities have 
issued debt which is classified as “conduit” debt 
of the State. 
 
Revenue bonds issued by individual agencies are 
supported by fees, rentals, tolls assessed to users 
and loan repayments.  Issuing agencies of the 
primary government include the Illinois Student 
Assistance Commission (Student Loan Revenue 
Bonds) and the State Universities Retirement 
System of Illinois (State Universities Retirement 
System Special Revenue Bonds).  Component 
units issuing agencies include the Illinois 
Housing Development Authority (Housing 

Development, Multi-Family Housing, 
Residential Mortgage, Multi-Family Program, 
Homeowner Mortgage Revenue and Affordable 
Housing Program Trust Fund Bonds), Illinois 
State Toll Highway Authority (Construction 
Revenue Bonds), Illinois Rural Bond Bank 
(Bond Bank Revenue Bonds), and universities 
consisting of Chicago State University, Eastern 
Illinois University, Northeastern Illinois 
University, Western Illinois University, Illinois 
State University, Northern Illinois University, 
Southern Illinois University and University of 
Illinois (University Revenue Producing 
Facilities Construction Bonds).  Bonds 
outstanding (amounts expressed in thousands) at 
June 30, 1999 (except for the Illinois State Toll 
Highway Authority which is as of December 31, 
1998), net of unamortized discounts, are as 
follows: 



 

State of Illinois                                                                        Notes to the Financial Statements 

 

Changes in revenue bonds during the year ended 
June 30, 1999 are summarized in Note 15. 
 

Revenue bond debt service requirements, 
principal and interest (amounts expressed in 
thousands) as of June 30, 1999 are as follows: 

 

Amount Interest Annual
Agency Outstanding Rates Maturity To

Primary Government -
Enterprise:
  Illinois Student Assistance Commission 1,304,360$     3.25% to 18.000% 2032
Trust:
  State Universities Retirement System 18,654            7.25% to   7.450% 2005

     Total (Memorandum Only) Primary Government 1,323,014       

Component Units -
Proprietary:
  Illinois Housing Development Authority 2,059,984       3.00% to 15.000% 2031
  Illinois State Toll Highway Authority 894,565          3.50% to   6.30% 2017
  Illinois Rural Bond Bank 88,585            3.45% to   7.300% 2029

3,043,134       

Universities and Colleges:
  Chicago State University 25,650            3.45% to   5.50% 2023
  Eastern Illinois University 47,215            3.90% to   5.625% 2018
  Northeastern Illinois University 6,065              4.50% to   6.200% 2017
  Western Illinois University 38,033            4.40% to   6.850% 2020
  Illinois State University 59,477            4.40% to   7.350% 2016
  Northern Illinois University 83,003            4.70% to 10.050% 2022
  Southern Illinois University 125,078          4.24% to   6.750% 2029
  University of Illinois 358,475          3.00% to   9.700% 2026

742,996          
     Total Component Units 3,786,130       
     Total (Memorandum Only) Reporting Entity 5,109,144$     

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2000 44,767$          69,557$          --$             --$             44,767$          69,557$          
2001 45,530            66,884            --               --               45,530            66,884            
2002 33,935            64,346            5,825         --               39,760            64,346            
2003 36,910            62,081            --               --               36,910            62,081            
2004 73,110            59,941            10,000       --               83,110            59,941            

Thereafter 1,076,575       848,771          10,000       --               1,086,575       848,771          
1,310,827       1,171,580$     25,825       --$             1,336,652       1,171,580$     

Less:
  Unaccreted
    appreciation 147                 7,171         7,318              

1,310,680$     18,654$     1,329,334$     

Primary Government
Enterprise Trust Total
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Total principal debt service requirements for the 
primary government includes bond discounts of 
$6.3 million for enterprise funds.  Component 
unit bond discounts and refundings include 
$38.6 million for proprietary funds and $3.6 
million for university funds. 
 
Illinois Student Assistance Commission 
(Commission) -  
 
The Commission issues student loan revenue 
bonds, the proceeds of which are used to 
purchase student loans from eligible lenders and 
to originate Stafford subsidized and 
nonsubsidized loans to Illinois residents.  The 
bonds mature annually in varying amounts, 
bearing interest rates ranging from 3.25% to 
18%. 
 
Bonds outstanding exclusive of refunding issues 
may not exceed $2,100 million ($1,304.4 million 
was outstanding at June 30, 1999, net of $6.3 
million of unamortized discounts).  All student 
loans purchased by the Commission and all 
loans financed from the proceeds of bonds 
issued, along with all revenues received from or 
on account of these bonds, are pledged as 
collateral for the bonds.  Any losses are 
guaranteed as to principal and interest by the 
Commission’s Guarantee Loan Program, which 
can be subrogated to the United States 
Department of Education. 
 
The bond resolutions provide for early 
retirement for various bond issues at rates 

ranging from 100% to 102.5% of par value, with 
premiums decreasing periodically until 
unmatured bonds can only be retired at par 
value.  Pursuant to the bond resolutions, reserves 
for bond retirement and interest payments 
aggregated $90.9 million at June 30, 1999. 
 
Included in the $1,304.4 million of outstanding 
revenue bonds are $346.6 million of variable 
rate demand bonds,  (Series B, Series C, Series 
D, Series 1996A and 1996B, Series 1997A, 
Series 1997B, Series 1998A and Series 1998B), 
the proceeds of which were used to purchase 
and originate student loans.  The bonds mature 
at various dates, bearing interest rates as 
determined by the remarketing agent that would 
enable the bonds to be sold at a price equal to 
their principal amount, but not to exceed 18% 
per annum for the Series B and Series C bonds, 
15% per annum for the Series D, Series 1996B, 
Series 1997B, and Series 1998B bonds, 12% per 
annum for the Series 1996A bonds, Series 
1997A and Series 1998A bonds. 
 
The bonds, if in a weekly or monthly mode, are 
subject to purchase on demand of the holder at a 
price equal to principal plus accrued interest on 
seven days’ notice and delivery to the 
remarketing agent.  The remarketing agent is 
authorized to sell the repurchased bonds at a 
price equal to their principal amount by 
adjusting the interest rate. 
 
Irrevocable letters of credit have been issued by 
various credit facilities in order to permit the 

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2000 84,390$            169,592$          33,050$          24,182$           117,440$          193,774$          
2001 82,015              173,419            37,450            23,217             119,465            196,636            
2002 87,030              169,106            38,765            22,071             125,795            191,177            
2003 91,150              164,482            40,150            21,191             131,300            185,673            
2004 96,135              159,568            40,255            20,276             136,390            179,844            

Thereafter 2,722,854         1,735,567         872,455          208,310           3,595,309         1,943,877         
3,163,574         2,571,734$       1,062,125      319,247$         4,225,699         2,890,981$       

Less:
  Unaccreted
    appreciation 81,852              315,558          397,410            

3,081,722$       746,567$       3,828,289$       

Proprietary University and College Total
Component Units
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Trustee to draw amounts to pay the tender price 
of the variable rate demand bonds tendered for 
payment under early redemption and demand 
provisions of the bond issues.  Under these let-
ters of credit, the various credit facilities, acting 
as tender agent, paying agent, and bond registrar 
for the respective bond issues are entitled to 
draw the amount needed (a) to pay interest on 
the bonds on each interest payment date; (b) to 
pay principal and interest on the bonds called for 
redemption; (c) to pay principal and interest on 
the bonds resulting from an acceleration of ma-
turity due to an event of default; and (d) to pay 
the tender price of bonds tendered or required to 
be tendered for purchase which is not to be paid 
from remarketing proceeds or from certain funds 
held under the indenture.  The letters of credit 
have variable interest rates ranging from the 
Federal funds rate plus .5% to 20% per annum 
and expire at various dates from December 1, 
1999 through February 25, 2002.  If the remar-
keting agent is unable to resell any bonds that 
are “put” within 180 days of the “put” date, the 
Commission is required to repay the amounts 
drawn on the letters of credit for the redemption 
of these bonds.  Repayment of amounts drawn 
on the letters of credit will be made by the Com-
mission from the trustee accounts. 
 
The Commission is required to pay to the credit 
facilities an origination fee based on the line of 
credit amounts and thereafter, a quarterly com-
mitment fee based on the available amount of 
the letters of credit.  Quarterly commitment fees 
currently in effect range from .375% to .55% of 
the available amount of the letters of credit. 
 
State Universities Retirement System 
(System) –  
 
The System issued revenue bonds to finance the 
design, acquisition, construction and equipping 
of a new permanent administrative office build-
ing.  The bonds are capital appreciation bonds 
with interest rates ranging from 7.25% to 7.45%.  
These bonds are payable solely from and se-
cured by a pledge of and first lien on the net 
revenues derived from investments of the Sys-
tem.  They are not payable from any employer or 
employee contributions to the System.  The 

bond resolutions do not provide for early re-
demption prior to maturity.  At June 30, 1999, 
bonds outstanding were $18.7 million. 
 
Illinois Housing Development Authority 
(IHDA) –  
 
The IHDA was created in 1967 to increase the 
production of low and moderate income housing 
in Illinois by providing mortgage loans.  The 
IHDA is authorized to have bonds and notes out-
standing in an aggregate principal amount not to 
exceed $3,600 million exclusive of refunding 
issues.  Bonds issued must mature within 50 
years from the date of issue, bearing interest 
rates as determined by the IHDA.  Subsequent to 
July 1, 1983, the maximum interest rate cannot 
exceed 11% or 70% of the prime rate, whichever 
is greater.  All revenue bonds, issued to provide 
mortgage loans, are secured by first mortgage 
liens on the related developments. 
 
At June 30, 1999 bonds outstanding aggregated 
$2,076.9 million, before unamortized discounts 
of $16.9 million.  Sinking funds established pur-
suant to bond resolutions at year end aggregated 
$128.9 million.  The bonds mature annually 
through 2031, bearing interest rates from 3.0% 
to 15%.   The bonds provide for early redemp-
tion at the option of the IHDA, in whole or in 
part, in inverse order of maturity at varying pre-
miums which decrease periodically. 
 
The bonds outstanding are general obligations of 
the IHDA with the exception of $806.9 million 
of Homeowner Mortgage Revenue Bonds, 
$100.8 million of Affordable Housing Program 
Trust Fund Bonds, $18.3 million of Multi-
Family Variable Rate Demand Bonds, $29.9 
million of Multi-Family Housing Bonds, 1995 
Series A, and $45.1 million of Multi-Family 
Program Bonds, Series 7 and 8, which are spe-
cial limited obligations of the IHDA and are 
payable from pledged property as defined in 
their respective bond general resolutions.  The 
IHDA has also pledged its general obligation to 
the payment of the Affordable Housing Program 
Trust Fund Bonds to a limited extent and 
amounts. 
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A portion of the general obligation bonds of the 
IHDA, outstanding in the amount of $683.2 mil-
lion, is a moral obligation of the State.  In the 
event that the IHDA determines that funds will 
not be sufficient for the payment of principal and 
interest on these bonds, the Chairman of the 
IHDA shall certify to the Governor as soon as 
practicable the amount required by the IHDA to 
enable it to pay such principal and interest.  The 
Governor shall include the amount so certified in 
the State budget; however, the General Assembly 
has no obligation to appropriate funds to IHDA. 
 
Included within the IHDA’s outstanding revenue 
bonds are $18.3 million of Multi-Family Variable 
Rate Demand Bonds Series 1996A and $14.2 mil-
lion of Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds Se-
ries 1997 which are variable rate demand bonds.  
Interest rates on these bonds are determined 
weekly at a rate established by the remarketing 
agents on each rate determination date.  The 
IHDA has agreements with liquidity providers to 
purchase any bonds tendered for purchase in ac-
cordance with the indentures with respect to 
which the Trustee does not, on the date any such 
tendered bonds are required to be purchased, have 
sufficient funds to make such purchase.  Payment 
of the principal of and interest on the bonds when 
due are insured by a financial guarantee insurance 
policy.  The IHDA has a general obligation to re-
imburse the insurer for any such payments made. 
 
The IHDA has also issued special limited obliga-
tions with a claim for repayment solely from pay-
ments received with respect to the mortgage loans.  
The bonds are not general obligations of the 
IHDA or an obligation of the State.  These bonds 
do, however, apply toward the IHDA’s authorized 
debt limit.  As of June 30, 1999, these bonds were 
outstanding in the amount of $222.4 million. 
 
Subsequent to June 30, 1999, the IHDA issued 
Homeowner Mortgage Revenue Bonds, 1999 Se-
ries D, 1999 Series E, 1999 Series F and 1999 Se-
ries G in the aggregate principal amount of $113.7 
million.  The 1999 Series E and Series G bonds 
are subject to mandatory tender no later than July 
27, 2000 and October 26, 2000 respectively.  The 
1999 Series D and Series F bonds bear interest 
rates ranging from 3.75% to 8.25%, and mature 
semiannually from 2000 through 2030. 

Illinois State Toll Highway Authority (THA) –  
 
The THA issued revenue bonds to finance con-
struction of the State toll highway system and to 
refund in advance of maturity certain outstanding 
bonds of the Authority.  The bond resolutions, 
with the exception of Series 1996A and Series 
1998A, provide for early redemption at the option 
of the THA in whole or part.  Of the outstanding 
bonds, this option has not been exercised and re-
mains available for the Series 1993A bonds ma-
turing on January 1, 2005 and the variable rate 
bonds, Series 1993B and Series 1998B.  The Se-
ries 1993A bonds noted above are callable on or 
after January 1, 2003.  All of the other outstand-
ing bonds are redeemable at maturity.  In accor-
dance with the provisions of the bond resolutions, 
debt reserves on deposit with and invested by the 
Bond Trustee at December 31, 1998 (the THA’s 
reporting year) aggregated $147.1 million. 
 
At December 31, 1998, THA had bonds outstand-
ing in the amount of $894.6 million.  These bonds 
mature at various dates through 2017 and bear in-
terest rates ranging from 3.5% to 6.3%. 
 
Included within the THA’s outstanding revenue 
bonds are variable rate demand bonds in the 
amount of $178.2 million for the Series 1993B 
bonds and $123.1 million for the Series 1998B 
bonds.  These bonds mature in 2010 and 2017, 
respectively and bear interest rates as determined 
by the remarketing agents on each rate determina-
tion date not to exceed 22% and 25%, respec-
tively.  These bonds are subject to redemption if 
tendered by the holder at a price equal to the prin-
cipal plus accrued interest upon notice and deliv-
ery to the remarketing agent.  The THA has agree-
ments with liquidity providers to purchase any 
bonds so tendered for purchase in accordance 
with the indentures with respect to which the 
Trustee does not, on the date any such tendered 
bonds are required to be purchased, have suffi-
cient funds to make such purchase.  The THA has 
obtained a financial guarantee insurance policy to 
guarantee the payment of principal and interest on 
the scheduled maturity dates.  The THA has an 
obligation to reimburse the insurer for any such 
payments made. 
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To mitigate the effect of interest rate changes, the 
THA has entered into Interest Rate Swap Agree-
ments for both the Series 1993B bonds and the 
Series 1998B bonds.  These agreements effec-
tively change the THA’s interest rates to a syn-
thetic fixed rate of 4.92% and 4.325%, respec-
tively.  The THA will be exposed to variable rates 
if a counter party to the swap agreement defaults 
or if the swap is terminated.  However, the THA 
does not anticipate nonperformance.  The amounts 
shown in the schedule of revenue bond debt serv-
ice requirements are based on the fixed rate ef-
fects of this interest rate swap.  
 
In addition, as of December 31, 1998, the THA 
has $380.2 million of revenue bonds outstanding 
which have been advance refunded.  U.S. Govern-
ment securities have been deposited in an irrevo-
cable trust with an  escrow agent to satisfy all fu-
ture debt service requirements of these bonds.  As 
a result, these bonds are considered defeased and 
are not included in the accompanying financial 
statements. 
 
Illinois Rural Bond Bank (Bank) –  
 
The Bank issues revenue bonds and notes whose 
proceeds are used for (1) the purchase of securi-
ties of local Illinois governmental units to include 
the establishing or increasing reserves in securing 
the payment of the bonds and/or interest on the 
bonds and (2) to pay, fund or refund any bonds 
issued by the Bank.  The Bank is authorized to 
have bonds and notes outstanding in an aggregate 
original principal amount not to exceed $200 mil-
lion. 
 
In the event that the Bank determines that funds 
will not be sufficient for the payment of the prin-
cipal and interest on its bonds and notes, the 
Chairman of the Bank shall certify to the Gover-
nor, as soon as possible, the amount required by 
the Bank to enable it to pay such principal and in-
terest.  The Governor shall include the amount so 
certified in the State budget as soon as practically 
possible; however, the General Assembly has no 
obligation to appropriate funds for the Bank. 
 
At June 30, 1999, bonds outstanding aggregated 
$88.6 million.  Sinking funds established pursuant 
to bond resolutions at year end aggregated $7.1 

million.  The bonds mature annually through 
2029, bearing interest at rates ranging from 3.45% 
to 7.3%.  The bonds provide for early redemption 
at the option of the Bank in whole or in part.  
Bonds maturing on various dates between Febru-
ary 1, 2001 through February 1, 2010 are redeem-
able at 102% of par, with the premium decreasing 
periodically until February 1, 2009.  Thereafter, 
the bonds are redeemable at par value. 
 
Included within the $88.6 million of outstanding 
revenue bonds are $19.8 million of bonds which 
do not require the Governor to include in the State 
budget the amount necessary for payment of prin-
cipal and interest.  Payment of principal and inter-
est on these bonds is guaranteed by a municipal 
bond insurance policy. 
 
Subsequent to June 30, 1999, the Bank issued the 
Bond Bank Revenue Bonds Series 1999 and Se-
ries 1999B in the amount $1.6 million and $4.5 
million, respectively.  The bonds mature annually 
from 2000 through 2030 at interest rates ranging 
from 3.7% to 5.75%. 
 
Universities  –  
 
The Boards of Chicago State University, Eastern 
Illinois University, Northeastern Illinois Univer-
sity, Western Illinois University, Illinois State 
University, Northern Illinois University, Southern 
Illinois University, and the University of Illinois 
(hereinafter the “Boards”), as empowered by ena-
bling acts, have issued various revenue bonds to 
support construction of student housing and other 
revenue producing facilities at State universities.  
These bonds do not constitute general obligations 
of either the State of Illinois or the Boards but, 
together with interest thereon, are payable solely 
from and are secured by, subject to the prior 
pledge and lien of existing refunded bonds, (i) the 
net revenues of the Boards; (ii) debt service 
grants; (iii) income received from certain special 
accounts; (iv) retained tuition fees (subject to 
prior payment of related operating and mainte-
nance expenses); (v) certain debt service reserves; 
(vi) certain repair and replacement reserves; and 
(vii) the principal of the special accounts arising 
on refundings, all as defined in the various bond 
resolutions.  In accordance with provisions of the 
bond resolutions, debt service funds and reserves  
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on deposit aggregated $160.8 million at June 30, 
1999.  The bonds are callable prior to their ma-
turity in accordance with the provisions of the 
bond resolutions, including premiums of up to 
5%.   
 
Subsequent to June 30, 1999, the Board of Trus-
tees of Western Illinois University issued the 
Auxiliary Facilities System Revenue Bonds, Se-
ries 1999 in the amount of $10.0 million.  The 
Series 1999 bonds mature annually from 2001 
through 2024 at interest rates ranging from 5.2% 
to 5.3%. 
 
Contingent Liabilities –  
 
Metropolitan Pier and Exposition Author-
ity (McCormick Place) –  
 
In July 1998, the State amended the Metropoli-
tan Pier and Exposition Authority Act (Act) to 
authorize the issuance of McCormick Place Ex-
pansion Project bonds in the aggregate original 
principal amount of $1,037 million (excluding 
the amount of any refunding bonds and notes).  
The Act also authorizes the McCormick Place to 
levy certain taxes (MPEA Taxes) to secure the 
bonds and for certain other purposes.  The 
MPEA Taxes would include (i) a sales tax 
within portions of the City of Chicago on food, 
alcoholic beverages, and soft drinks sold for 
consumption on the premises and on certain 
sales for immediate consumption off the prem-
ises, (ii) a tax at the rate of 2.5% of the gross 
rental receipts of hotels located within the City 
of Chicago, (iii) a 6% tax on gross receipts of 
the business of renting automobiles in Cook 
County, Illinois, (iv) a 6% use tax on automo-
biles rented outside Illinois which are titled or 
registered with an agency of the State for use in 
Cook County, Illinois, and (v) a tax on taxis and 
livery vehicles ranging from $2 per taxi depar-
ture to $27 per bus having a capacity of over 24 
passengers.  In addition, subject to appropria-
tion, amounts of State sales tax ranging from 
$71 million for fiscal year 1999 and graduating 
to $106 million for fiscal year 2007 and thereaf-
ter (until 2029) would be available for the pay-
ment of debt service on the additional bonds to 
the extent that the MPEA Taxes are not suffi-
cient for such purpose. 

The McCormick Place issued revenue bonds Se-
ries 1992A, Series 1994B and Series 1998B in 
the aggregate principal amount of $1,036.4 mil-
lion to finance the McCormick Place expansion 
and certain other improvements to its facilities 
and Navy Pier.  The McCormick Place also is-
sued revenue refunding bonds Series 1994A,  
Series 1996A and Series 1998A in the aggregate 
principal amount of $737.0 million to refund in 
advance of their maturity $531.0 million of the 
Series 1992A bonds and $45.3 million of the 
Series 1994 A&B bonds. 
 
As of June 30, 1999, the outstanding bonds, 
which the State is contingently obligated to pay, 
are $1,290.2 million.  These bonds bear interest 
at rates ranging from 4.5% to 8.5% with the ex-
ception of certain bonds.   The Series 1992A 
and Series 1994B bonds maturing in 2004 and 
the Series 1998B bonds maturing in 2009 bear 
interest at a rate of 50%.  These bonds, in the 
aggregate principal amount of $21.0 million, 
were sold at a premium with effective yields 
ranging from 4.7% to 5.9%.  The McCormick 
Place bonds mature annually until 2029. 
 
In addition, as of June 30, 1999, the McCormick 
Place has $584.1 million of revenue bonds out-
standing which have been advance refunded.  U. 
S. Government securities have been deposited in 
an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to sat-
isfy all future debt service requirements of these 
bonds.  As a result, these bonds are considered 
defeased and the State is no longer contingently 
liable for them. 
 
Subsequent to June 30, 1999, the McCormick 
Place issued $310.3 million of refunding bonds 
and $133.4 million of expansion bonds.  These 
bonds mature annually from 2010 through 2028 
and bear interest at rates ranging from 5.25% to 
7.16%. 
 
Southwestern Illinois Development 
Authority (SWIDA) –  
 
The SWIDA, whose mission is to promote and 
enhance economic development in the counties 
of Madison and St. Clair, Illinois, has issued 
$109.1 million of revenue bonds. The proceeds 
of these bonds were loaned to several compa-
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nies for  the acquisition of land and construction 
of various types of facilities. These companies are 
primarily liable for repayment of the bonds, which 
are secured by SWIDA loan agreements with the 
companies.  These bonds bear interest at rates 
ranging from 3.4% to 9.25% and mature annually 
through 2021.  The State has accepted a moral ob-
ligation to repay the bonds in the event the 
SWIDA and the companies are unable to meet the 
bonds’ repayment commitments. 
 
During the fiscal year, the SWIDA issued the 
Solid Waste Disposal Refunding Revenue Bonds, 
Series 1998A and Series 1998B, in the aggregate 
principal amount of $3.7 million to refund, in ad-
vance of their maturity, the outstanding Waste Re-
covery bonds of 1994.  The SWIDA also issued 
$2.9 million of the Special Facility Refunding 
Bonds (Children’s Center for Behavioral Devel-
opment Project) Series 1998 to advance refund 
$2.7 million of the  Center’s Series 1990 bonds.  
Both companies deposited proceeds from their 
bond issues, along with other available funds, into 
separate irrevocable trusts with an escrow agent to 
provide for their respective advance refundings.  
As a result, the refunded bonds are considered de-
feased and the State no longer has a moral obliga-
tion to repay the bonds. 
 
As of June 30, 1999, the outstanding balance of 
bonds, which the State is morally obligated to re-
pay, is $75.3 million.  The outstanding balance of 
the refunded bonds is $7.9 million. 
 
The SWIDA has also issued $208.2 million of 
revenue bonds, the proceeds of which were loaned 
to several companies.  Of this amount, $81.0 mil-
lion was issued this year and was loaned to Merid-
ian Village, City of East St. Louis, Anderson Hos-
pital, and Illinois – American Water.  These bonds 
are special, limited obligations of the SWIDA and 
can only be repaid from payments by the above 
companies.  Unlike the bonds in the preceding 
paragraph, the State has not accepted a moral obli-
gation to repay the bonds in the event the SWIDA 
and the companies are unable to meet the bonds’ 
repayment commitments.  At June 30, 1999, the 
outstanding balance is $182.1 million.  
 
Quad Cities Regional Economic Develop-
ment Authority (Authority) –  

The Authority has issued $27.2 million of revenue 
bonds, the proceeds of which were loaned to 
HDC, Inc. and to Thoms-Proestler Company to 
provide permanent financing for the acquisition 
and construction of various types of facilities.  
These companies are primarily liable for repay-
ment of the bonds, which are secured by (i) mort-
gages and security agreements from HDC, Inc. 
and Thoms-Proestler Company to the Authority, 
(ii) a leasehold mortgage and security agreement 
from HDC, Inc. to the Authority, (iii) an assign-
ment of leases, rents and revenues from HDC, Inc. 
to the Authority, and (iv) a guaranty by HDC, Inc. 
to the trustee.  The bonds mature semiannually 
through 2017 and bear interest at rates of 8.7% 
and 9.75%. The State has accepted a moral obli-
gation to repay the bonds in the event the Author-
ity and the companies are unable to meet the 
bonds’ repayment commitments.  At June 30, 
1999, the outstanding balance is $15.6 million. 
 
The Authority has also issued $17.3 million of 
revenue bonds, the proceeds of which were loaned 
to several companies.  Of this amount, $5.5 mil-
lion was issued this year and was loaned to Plastic 
Products Company, Inc., Steel Warehouse Quad 
Cities, Inc., and Seaberg Industries, Inc.  These 
bonds are special, limited obligations of the 
authority and can only be repaid from payments 
by the companies.  Unlike the bonds of the pre-
ceding paragraph, the State has not accepted a 
moral obligation to repay the bonds in the event 
the Authority and the companies are unable to 
meet the bonds’ repayment commitments.  At 
June 30, 1999, the outstanding balance is $16.3 
million. 
 
Upper Illinois River Valley Development 
Authority (UIRVDA) –  
 
The UIRVDA, whose mission is to promote and 
enhance economic development within the coun-
ties of Grundy, LaSalle, Bureau, Putnam, Kendall 
and Marshall, Illinois,  has issued $7.0 million of 
revenue bonds.  The proceeds from these bonds 
were loaned to Waste Recovery – Illinois (the 
Company) to finance the acquisition, construc-
tion, equipment and installation of a tire recycling 
and tire-derived fuel processing facility and to re-
fund in advance of their maturity certain bonds.  
The Series 1994 bonds, outstanding in the amount  



 

State of Illinois                                                                        Notes to the Financial Statements 

of $2.9 million, were refunded through the 
issuance of a like amount of the Solid Waste 
Refunding Revenue bonds, Series 1998, (Waste 
Recovery – Illinois Project).  The Series 1994 
bonds were refunded for the purpose of extending 
the maturity dates over an additional ten years and 
to effect a decrease in interest rates of .6%. 
 
The Company is primarily liable for repayment of 
the bonds, which are secured by an assignment 
and a pledge of revenues derived from a separate 
loan agreement between the UIRVDA and the 
Company.  These bonds mature annually through 
2014 and bear interest at a rate of 5.9%.  The 
State has accepted a moral obligation to repay the 
bonds in the event the UIRVDA and the Company 
are unable to meet the bonds’ repayment 
commitments.  At June 30, 1999, the outstanding 
balance is $2.8 million. 
 
The UIRVDA has also issued $16.6 million of 
revenue bonds, the proceeds of which were loaned 
to Exolon-Esk Company and General Electric 
Company.  These bonds are special, limited 
obligations of the UIRVDA and can only be 
repaid from payments by Exolon-Esk Company 
and General Electric Company.  Unlike the bonds 
in the preceding paragraph, the State has not 
accepted a moral obligation to repay the bonds in 
the event the UIRVDA and the companies are 
unable to meet the bonds’ repayment 
commitments.  At June 30, 1999, the outstanding 
balance is $16.6 million. 
 
Defeased Revenue Bonds –  
 
In September 1998, the Eastern Illinois University 
issued $31.8 million in revenue bonds with 
interest rates ranging from 3.9% to 5% to advance 
refund $11.4 million of the outstanding Series 
1989 CAB bonds and $7.9 million of the 
outstanding Series 1994 bonds with interest rates 
ranging from 5.4% to 7.1%.  The net proceeds, 
together with $2.9 million from the debt service 
reserve accounts were used to purchase U.S. 
government securities, which were deposited in an 
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent for future 
debt service payments on the refunded bonds.  As 
a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be 
defeased and the liability for those bonds has been 
removed from the financial statements. 

The advance refunding decreased the total debt 
service requirements by $.9 million and resulted 
in an economic gain or present value savings of 
$1.0 million over the life of the refunded bonds.  
An accounting loss of $3.4 million was 
recognized during fiscal year 1999 relative to the 
refunding transaction. 
 
On December 23, 1998, the Chicago State 
University issued $24.4 million of revenue bonds 
with interest rates ranging from 3.45% to 5.5% to 
advance refund $22.6 million of revenue bonds 
with interest rates ranging from 5.15% to 6.15%.  
The net proceeds were used to purchase U.S. 
government securities, which were deposited in an 
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide 
for all future debt service payments on the 
refunded bonds.  As a result, the refunded bonds 
are considered to be defeased and the liability for 
those bonds has been removed from the financial 
statements. 
 
Although the advance refunding resulted in the 
recognition of an accounting loss of $2.2 million, 
the Chicago State University reduced its aggregate 
debt service payments by $.9 million and obtained 
an economic gain or present value savings of $.8 
million over the life of the refunded bonds.   
 
Also, in December 1998, the Illinois State Toll 
Highway Authority issued $325.1 of revenue 
bonds with interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 
5.5% to advance refund $313.1 million of revenue 
bonds with interest rates ranging from 5.75% to 
6.45%.  The net proceeds were used to purchase 
U.S. government securities which were deposited 
in an irrevocable trust which with interest thereon, 
will be sufficient to pay all future debt service 
requirements of the refunded bonds. 
 
The refunding transaction resulted in the 
recognition of an accounting loss of 
approximately $34.7 million based upon the 
required deposit to the irrevocable trust and the 
write off of related unamortized deferred bond 
issuance costs. The Authority also reduced its 
aggregate debt service payments by approximately 
$39.7 million over the next 18 years and obtained 
an economic gain or present value savings of 
approximately $26.9.million. 
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In addition on February 18, 1999, the Illinois 
Student Assistance Commission (ISAC) issued 
$34.6 million of new bonds with interest rates 
ranging from 3.25% to 4.25% to currently refund 
a like amount of bonds maturing March 1, 1999.  
The refunding bonds are fixed rate bonds.  
 
The current refunding resulted in no difference 
between the reacquisition price and the net 
carrying amount of the old debt.  However, the 
current refunding increased the total debt service 
payments by $6.5 million over the life of the new 
debt and resulted in an economic present value 
loss of $5.6 million. 
 
The State Toll Highway Authority, the Illinois 
Housing Development Authority, and State 
universities consisting of Chicago State 
University, Eastern Illinois University, Western 
Illinois University, Northern Illinois University, 
Illinois State University, Southern Illinois 
University, and the University of Illinois had 
previously defeased outstanding bonds by placing 
the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust 
to provide for all future debt service payments on 
the old bonds.  Accordingly, the trust account 
assets and liability for the defeased bonds are not 
included in the financial statements.  On June 30, 

1999, $718.7 million of bonds outstanding are 
considered defeased.  These bonds have interest 
rates ranging from .05% to 10.4% with principal 
maturing until 2023. 
 
Conduit Debt (not included in financial 
statements) –  
 
The State of Illinois, by action of the General 
Assembly, created various authorities for the 
express purpose of providing private entities with 
an available low cost source of capital financing 
for construction of facilities deemed to be in the 
public interest.  Fees are assessed to recover 
related processing and application costs incurred.  
Bonds issued by the authorities represent limited 
obligations payable solely from payments made 
by the borrowing entities.  The majority of the 
bonds are secured by the property financed.  Upon 
repayment of a bond, ownership of acquired 
property transfers to the entity served by the bond 
issuance.  The State has no obligation for this 
debt.  Accordingly, these bonds are not reflected 
in the accompanying financial statements.  At 
June 30, 1999, recorded amounts of revenue 
bonds, net of defeased bonds and notes 
outstanding (amounts expressed in thousands) as 
reported by authority officials are as follows: 

 Amount Annual
Authority Outstanding Maturity To

Illinois Health Facilities Authority 6,853,078$        2033
Illinois Development Finance Authority
  Environmental facilities 1,426,638$     2032
  501(c)(3) not for profit 2,254,991       2036
  Industrial development 1,046,929       2032
  Infrastructure 816,653          2024
  Housing 426,408          2037
  Financially distressed city 18,900            2013
  Leases and certificates of participation 49,299            2019

6,039,818          

Illinois Educational Facilities Authority 1,912,414          2038
Illinois Housing Development Authority 222,385             2034
Southwestern Illinois Development Authority 182,148             2038
Illinois Farm Development Authority 85,701               2038
Quad Cities Regional Economic
  Development Authority 16,286               2018
Upper River Valley Development Authority 16,600               2023

15,328,430$      
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14        OTHER LONG-TERM  
       OBLIGATIONS 

 

Other long-term obligations reported in the Gen-
eral Long-Term Obligations Account Group and 
disclosed below are as follows (in millions): 

 
Description Reference Amount

Metropolitan Pier and Exposition Authority
  (McCormick Place) liability (A) 314.1$         
Compensated absences (B) 514.6           
Regional Transportation Authority liability (C) 475.9           
Workers' compensation liability (D) 55.0             
Capital lease obligations (E) 16.1             
Illinos Sports Facilities Authority liability (F) 28.8             
Installment purchase obligations (G) 24.7             
Certificates of participation (H) 124.9           
Other obligations (I) 1.8               
               Total Other Long-Term Obligations 1,555.9$      

(A) Metropolitan Pier and Exposition Author-
ity (Authority) Liability - 
 
In July 1984, and November 1985, the State 
amended the "Metropolitan Fair and Exposition 
Authority Act" (Act) to authorize the issuance of 
$265 and $47.5 million, respectively, for a total 
authorization of $312.5 million, in additional 
bonds.  Bond proceeds were used (1) to pay con-
struction costs of completing the McCormick 
Place expansion, (2) to pay the construction 
costs of projects authorized by the Illinois Gen-
eral Assembly in the future, and (3) to refund 
any outstanding bonds of the McCormick Place 
that were issued prior to July 1, 1984.  The Act 
was further amended in July and August 1986 to 
authorize the issuance of refunding bonds either 
on a parity with or subordinated to the 1984 and 
1985 bonds.  In addition, in July 1989 the Act 
was amended to change the name to Metropoli-
tan Pier and Exposition Authority and to expand 
its purposes to provide for the acquisition and 
improvement of the Navy Pier in Chicago. 
 
The Illinois General Assembly also amended 
certain tax laws in July 1984 and November 
1985 to provide for 1.75% of total State sales 
tax revenues, 3% of 94% of total hotel room 
rental receipts, and $1.7 million per year out of 
7% of State racing tax revenues to be deposited 
into the Build Illinois Fund, which replaced the 

Tourism Fund, as collected.  The legislation pro-
vides for credits to separate accounts within the 
Build Illinois Fund of which the "McCormick 
Place Account" is one and has first priority 
credit of the amounts collected. 
 
In August 1984, the Metropolitan Fair and Ex-
position Authority issued $252.5 million of 
bonds at interest rates ranging from 7% to 
10.375% and maturing annually through 2014.  
Additionally, in December 1985, the Authority 
issued $60.1 million in bonds at interest rates 
varying from 6% to 8.875% and maturing annu-
ally through 2015. 
 
During 1986, the Authority issued 1986 and 
1986A Series refunding bonds.  The 1986 Series 
bonds, issued in the amount of $324.2 million 
with interest rates ranging from 4.9% to 8% and 
maturing annually through 2014, were used to 
defease the remaining 1984 Series bonds.  The 
1986A Series bonds, issued in the amount of 
$62.6 million with interest rates ranging from 
3.75% to 7% and maturing annually through 
2015, were used to defease certain callable 
maturities of 1985 Series bonds.  In March 1992, 
the 1992 Series refunding bonds were issued in 
the amount of $182.1 million, with interest rates 
ranging from 4% to 6.75% and maturing annu-
ally through 2010, to defease certain callable 
maturities of 1985 Series bonds and 1986 Series  
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bonds.  In July 1995, the 1995 Series refunding 
bonds were issued in the amount of $54.1 mil-
lion, with interest rates ranging from 4.3% and 
6.25% and maturing annually through 2011, to 
defease $51.6 million of certain callable maturi-
ties of 1986 Series bonds and 1986A Series 
bonds.  The proceeds of the 1986, 1986A, 1992 
and 1995 Series bonds were placed in an irrevo-
cable trust to provide for all future debt service 
payments on the old bonds.  Accordingly, the 
trust account assets and the liability for the de-

feased bonds are not included in the financial 
statements.  As of June 30, 1999, the outstand-
ing balance of the defeased bonds was zero. 
 
As of June 30, 1999, the balance of the bonds 
outstanding was $314.1 million and is included 
as “Other Obligations” in the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group.  Future 
McCormick Place debt service requirements 
(amounts expressed in thousands) at June 30, 
1999 are as follows: 

 Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2000 12,995$    18,586$    31,581$    
2001 13,785      17,807      31,592      
2002 14,645      16,985      31,630      
2003 15,530      16,067      31,597      
2004 16,545      15,080      31,625      

Thereafter 240,615    81,925      322,540    
314,115$  166,450$  480,565$  

(B) Compensated Absences - 
 
Most employees earn annual leave ranging from 
1 to 2 days per month with maximum accumula-
tion ranging from 20 to 50 days.  At June 30, 
1999, the liability for accrued annual leave was 
approximately $264.6 million, including salary-
related costs of $16.3 million, for the govern-
mental funds. 
 
Until January 1, 1984, sick leave, which gener-
ally is earned one day per month with unlimited 
accumulation, was paid only when an employee 
was absent due to illness of other acceptable cir-
cumstances as outlined by personnel regulations.  
Effective January 1, 1984, upon death, retire-
ment, resignation or termination from State em-
ployment, employees are able to receive pay-
ment for one-half of accumulated sick leave 
earned subsequent to January 1, 1984, or full 
service credit for such accumulated sick leave 
under the State Employees Article of the State 
Pension Code. 
 
During fiscal year 1998, Public Act 90-65 was 
enacted, which eliminates compensation for sick 
leave accumulated on or after January 1, 1998.  
However, the unused sick leave may be used to 

establish retirement system service credit as pro-
vided in the Illinois Pension Code. 
 
At June 30, 1999, the liability for sick leave 
earned subsequent to January 1, 1984 was 
$250.0 million, including $14.9 million of sal-
ary-related costs.  Thus, the State's liability for 
compensated absences reported in the General 
Long-Term Obligations Account Group 
amounted to $514.6 million at June 30, 1999.  
As explained in Note 1-O, this amount does not 
include compensated absences liabilities for pro-
priety, pension trust and university fund types 
and component units. 
 
(C) Regional Transportation Authority 
(Authority) Liability - 
 
The Authority was authorized by the Regional 
Transportation Authority Act to issue bonds in 
the principal amount of $100 million on or after 
January 1, 1990 and increasing $100 million per 
year until January 1, 1994, for a total authoriza-
tion of $500 million used for Strategic Capital 
Improvement Projects (SCIP).  These projects 
were used to acquire, repair or replace public 
transportation facilities in the metropolitan re-
gion as approved by the Governor. 
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Since June 1992, the Authority has issued $500 
million of bonds with interest rates ranging from 
3.75% to 9% and maturing annually through 
2025. 
 
The bonds are general obligations of the Author-
ity to which the full faith and credit of the Author-
ity is pledged.  However, for State fiscal years in 
which the SCIP bonds are outstanding, the State's 
assistance shall be transferred monthly from the 
General Revenue Fund to the Public Transporta-
tion Fund for payment in an amount equal to the 
lesser of monthly debt service on the SCIP bonds, 
or one-twelfth of the amount of the State's assis-
tance as provided in the authorization.  The 

authorization provided for $40 million for 1996, 
$50 million for 1997, and $55 million for each 
year thereafter.  Although the amount of the 
State's assistance is measured by the debt service 
on the SCIP bonds, the assistance is not pledged 
for payment of or security for the SCIP bonds.  
The State's assistance is paid directly to the 
Authority and may be spent by the Authority at its 
discretion.  As of June 30, 1999, the outstanding 
balance included in the General Long-Term Obli-
gations Account Group is $475.9 million. 
 
Future Regional Transportation Authority debt 
service requirements (amounts expressed in thou-
sands) at June 30, 1999 are as follows: 

 Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2000 8,310$      31,145$    39,455$       
2001 8,770        30,690      39,460         
2002 9,275        30,202      39,477         
2003 9,815        29,677      39,492         
2004 10,500      29,007      39,507         

Thereafter 429,235    336,527    765,762       
475,905$  487,248$  963,153$     

(D) Workers’ Compensation Liability - 
 
The workers' compensation liability has been 
determined using claims outstanding and a pro-
jection of claims to be submitted, based upon 
prior years' experience of the State.  Claims that 
will be liquidated with expendable available fi-
nancial resources have been recorded as a liabil-
ity in the General Fund, Road Fund and Mental 
Health Fund (special revenue funds), in the 
amounts of $30.2, $15.9 and $19.0 million, re-
spectively.  The remaining portion of the liabil-
ity, $55.0 million as of June 30, 1999, is in-
cluded in the General Long-Term Obligations 
Account Group.  Of this liability, $26.5, $10.1 
and $18.4 million are expected to be paid from 
future resources of the General Fund, the Road 
Fund and the Mental Health Fund, respectively.  
In addition, a $6.4 million workers' compensa-
tion liability has been included in the University 
fund type included in component units. 
 
 

(E) Lease Commitments - 
 
The State leases land, office facilities, office and 
computer equipment and other assets.  Although 
lease terms vary, certain leases are renewable 
subject to appropriation by the General Assem-
bly.  If renewal is reasonably assured, leases re-
quiring appropriation by the General Assembly 
are considered noncancelable leases for finan-
cial reporting purposes.  At June 30, 1999, as-
sets capitalized under capitalized leases included 
in property, plant and equipment (amounts ex-
pressed in thousands) are as follows: 
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General
Fixed Proprietary Component

Assets Fund Types Units

Land and land improvements 500$             
Buildings and building improvements 4,032$       1,808$            2,455            
Equipment 6,600         1,968              17,798          

10,632       3,776              20,753          

Less:  Accumulated depreciation 557                 
10,632$     3,219$            20,753$        

Primary Government

Future minimum commitments for noncancel-
able leases (amounts expressed in thousands) as 

of June 30, 1999 are as follows: 

 Primary Government

General
Year Ending Operating Long-Term Proprietary

June 30 Leases Obligatioins Fund Types Total

2000 86,072$     4,059$          697$            90,828$    
2001 72,654       3,547            472              76,673      
2002 57,033       2,893            272              60,198      
2003 29,131       2,511            214              31,856      
2004 11,579       2,162            210              13,951      

Thereafter 8,338         6,550            210              15,098      

Total minimum lease
    payments 264,807$   21,722          2,075           288,604$  

Less amounts 
  representing interest 5,636            236              

Present value of net
  minimum lease payments 16,086$        1,839$         

Capitalized Leases

 Component Units

University
Year Ending Operating and College Proprietary

June 30 Leases Funds Fund Types Total

2000 8,354$       9,415$          - -$               17,769$    
2001 4,854         8,079            - -                 12,933      
2002 3,540         6,819            - -                 10,359      
2003 2,173         6,614            - -                 8,787        
2004 727            6,031            - -                 6,758        

Thereafter 226            35,378          - -                 35,604      

Total minimum lease
  payments 19,874$     72,336          - -                 92,210$    

Less amounts 
  representing interest 16,282 - -                 

Present value of net
  minimum lease payments 56,054$        - -$               

Capitalized Leases
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Rental payments (amounts expressed in thou-
sands) for operating leases charged to operations 
during the year ended June 30, 1999 aggregated 
$290,826 for the primary government and $18,700 
for component units. 
 
(F) Illinois Sports Facilities Authority 
(Authority) Liability - 
 
The Authority is authorized by the Illinois Sports 
Facilities Authority Act to issue bonds in the prin-
cipal amount of $150 million to be used for pro-
viding sports stadiums for professional sports 
teams.  On March 1, 1989, $150 million of bonds 
were issued with interest rates ranging from 6.8% 
to 7.875% and maturing annually through 2010.   
 
During fiscal year 1999, Illinois Sports Facility 
Authority issued $103.8 million of revenue bonds 
with interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0% to 
currently refund $111.4 million of revenue bonds 
with interest rates ranging from 7.45% of 7.875%.  
The refunding transaction has saved the Authority 
aggregate debt service payments of $17.9 million 

and will result in an economic gain or present 
value savings of $12.3 million over the life of the 
refunded bonds. 
 
The bonds are secured by payments from the Illi-
nois Sports Facilities Fund that consist of annual 
payments of $5 million from the State's Hotel Op-
erator's Occupation Tax, $8 million from the 
Authority's Hotel Tax and $5 million from the 
City of Chicago's share of the Local Government 
Distributive Fund.  The State's maximum liability 
is limited to $13 million annually, but the State 
anticipates that $8 million, derived from the 
Authority's Hotel Tax, will reduce this liability to 
$5 million annually.  In fiscal year 1999, receipts 
from the Authority's Hotel Tax totaled $24.1 mil-
lion.  As of June 30, 1999, the State's share of the 
outstanding principal balance was $28.8 million. 
 
The State (and non-State) share of future Illinois 
Sports Facilities Authority debt service require-
ments (amounts expressed in thousands) at June 
30, 1999 are as follows: 

 

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2000 2,122$       1,394$       5,518$       3,626$       7,640$        5,020$       
2001 2,174         1,257         5,651         3,269         7,825          4,526         
2002 2,261         1,170         5,879         3,043         8,140          4,213         
2003 2,351         1,080         6,114         2,807         8,465          3,887         
2004 2,446         986            6,359         2,563         8,805          3,549         

Thereafter 17,467       3,122         45,413       8,117         62,880        11,239       
28,821$     9,009$       74,934$     23,425$     103,755$     32,434$     

State Share Non-State Share Total

(G) Installment Purchase Obligations - 
 
The State has acquired certain land, office facili-
ties, office and computer equipment, and other 
assets through installment purchase arrange-

ments.  Future commitments under installment 
purchase contracts (amounts expressed in thou-
sands) as of June 30, 1999 are as follows: 
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(H) Certificates of Participation - 
 
State-issued Certificates of Participation.  The 
State is authorized to issue certificates of 
participation ("Certificates") representing the 
right to receive a proportionate share in lease-
purchase or installment purchase payments to be 
made for the benefit of State agencies for the 
acquisition or improvement of real or personal 
property, refinancing of such property, payment 
of expenses of such property, or payment of 
expenses related to the issuance.  During fiscal 
year 1996, the State, acting by and through the 
Bureau of the Budget, issued $38.8 million of 
these certificates to provide for the construction 
and lease purchase of certain correctional 
facilities to be operated by the Department of 
Corrections at various sites within the State.  
The certificates have interest rates ranging from 
4.15% to 6.375% and maturing annually through 
2017.  The outstanding balance of the 
certificates as of June 30, 1999 included in the 
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group 
is $37.2 million. 
 
The University of Illinois has also issued 
certificates of participation representing the 
right to receive a proportionate share of lease-
purchase or installment payments.  On August 1, 
1990, the University of Illinois issued $3.3 
million of the certificates, with an interest rate 
of 7.25% and maturing in 2000, to finance the 
construction of a facility to house academic 
units in Area Studies and International 
Programs.  On January 1, 1991, $16.8 million of 

the certificates were issued, at interest rates 
ranging from 5.9% to 6.4% and maturing 
annually through 1998, to finance the 
acquisition and installation of the construction 
of a building for an electrical and high 
temperature hot water cogeneration system.  On 
April 1, 1995, $29.9 million of the certificates 
were issued, at interest rates ranging from 4.1% 
to 5.4% and maturing semiannually through 
2005, to finance the purchase of a firm supply of 
natural gas from Mid-Con Gas Services 
Corporation.  On September 15, 1997, $46.0 
million of the certificates were issued, at interest 
rates ranging from 4% to 5.75% and maturing 
annually through 2009, to finance various utility 
system development projects.  
 
Subsequent to June 30, 1999, the University of 
Illinois issued $78.5 million of the certificates.  
The certificates, issued August 15, 1999, mature 
annually from 2001 through 2016 and bear 
interest at rates ranging from 4.1% to 5.5%. 
 
Northern Illinois University (NIU) has also 
issued certificates of participation representing 
the right to receive a proportionate share of 
lease-purchase or installment payments.  On 
October 1, 1992, NIU issued $3.4 million of the 
certificates, with interest rates ranging from 
3.75% to 6.8% and maturing annually through 
1999, to finance the acquisition of 
telecommunication equipment.  On August 15, 
1993, $8.5 million of the certificates were 
issued, at interest rates ranging from 2.95% to 
5.3% and maturing annually through 2008, to re- 

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2000 13,223$   577$       1,881$     110$       15,791$  2,206$     638$       2,844$     
2001 9,008      399         1,114      51           10,572    1,346      539         1,885      
2002 1,595      90           600         8             2,293      1,311      468         1,779      
2003 751         43           - -            - -            794         896         405         1,301      
2004 136         7             - -            - -            143         830         344         1,174      

Thereafter - -            - -            - -            - -            - -           6,180      2,657      8,837      

Total future
  commitments 24,713$   1,116$     3,595$     169$       29,593$  12,769$   5,051$     17,820$   

Primary Government
General

Long-Term
Obligations

Proprietary
Fund Types  Funds

University

Component Units
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fund outstanding certificates issued for addi-
tional improvements to the Hoffman Estates 
Education Center.  On June 1, 1997, $3.1 mil-
lion of the certificates were issued, at interest 
rates ranging from 4% to 4.875% and maturing 
annually through 2004, to finance the acquisi-
tion of data processing equipment. 
 
The outstanding balance of the certificates as of 
June 30, 1999 is $78.3 million and is included as 
"Other Obligations" in the component units. 
 
Non-State-issued Certificates of Participation.  
The State also finances the purchase of certain 
state-owned real and personal property through 
third party (non-State issued) certificates.  These 

non-State issued certificates are sold by private 
concerns and are repaid by State agency appro-
priations pursuant to installment purchase agree-
ments.  The outstanding balance of non-State 
issued certificates included in the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group as of June 30, 
1999 is $87.8 million.  There are no outstanding 
non-State issued certificates in the component 
units as of June 30, 1999. 
 
Future commitments by the State to make in-
stallment payments to pay for the assets ac-
quired and related financing costs for State and 
non-State issued certificates (amounts expressed 
in thousands) at June 30, 1999 are as follows: 

 

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2000 1,190$       2,080$         3,840$       5,125$       5,030$            7,205$       
2001 1,240         2,023           4,075         4,916         5,315              6,939         
2002 1,295         1,962           4,325         4,688         5,620              6,650         
2003 1,360         1,896           4,570         4,442         5,930              6,338         
2004 1,425         1,825           4,845         4,176         6,270              6,001         

Thereafter 30,650       14,461         66,110       27,313       96,760            41,774       

37,160$     24,247$       87,765$     50,660$     124,925$        74,907$     

Certificates of Participation
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group

TotalState Issued Non-State Issued

 

(I) Other Obligations - 
 
The State's risk financing of auto liability, deter-
mined using an estimate of claims outstanding, 
approximates $2.4 million as of June 30, 1999.  
Both the General Fund and the Road Fund have 
recorded liabilities of $1.2 million that will be 
liquidated with expendable available resources. 
 

As discussed in Note 1-B, the State has an out-
standing amount due of $1.8 million in interest 
to the Great Lakes Protection Fund. 
 
(J) Metropolitan Exposition Auditorium and 
      Office Building Authorities - 
 
The General Assembly, through adoption of the  

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2000 7,545$       3,988$         - -              - -              7,545$            3,988$       
2001 7,490         3,615           - -              - -              7,490              3,615         
2002 7,115         3,258           - -              - -              7,115              3,258         
2003 7,470         2,902           - -              - -              7,470              2,902         
2004 7,855         2,506           - -              - -              7,855              2,506         

Thereafter 40,835       7,985           - -              - -              40,835            7,985         

78,310$     24,254$       - -$            - -$            78,310$          24,254$     

Certificates of Participation
Component Units

TotalState Issued Non-State Issued
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"Metropolitan Civic Center Support 
Act" (Support Act), created the Metropolitan 
Exposition Auditorium and Office Building 
Fund (Fund) into which 33.5% of all monies re-
ceived by the State as horse racing taxes are de-
posited.  At June 30, 1999, the balance of the 
Fund is $31.8 million.  The purpose of the Fund 
is to secure and retire a proportionate share of 
locally issued revenue bonds, the proceeds of 
which were used to construct local civic and ex-
position centers.  The Support Act was amended 
in September 1985 to provide State financial 
support by issuing direct, limited obligation 
revenue bonds for the advanced refunding of 
any civic center bond issued before July 1, 1985 
and for newly certified applicants after July 1, 
1985.  It was further amended to increase the 
limitation of the aggregate amount of principal 
issued and outstanding in State and local bonds 
subject to State financial support for all Authori-

ties from $75 million to $200 million.  In addi-
tion, further restrictions exist as to the amount to 
be committed on behalf of any single taxing 
authority. 
 
On December 15, 1985, the State defeased pre-
vious State supported guarantees by placing the 
proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to 
provide for all future debt service payments on 
the State supported guarantees.  Accordingly, 
the trust account assets and the liability for the 
guarantees are not included in the State's finan-
cial statements.  The bonds used to defease the 
State supported guarantees are further discussed 
in Note 12, Special Obligation Bonds. 
 
At June 30, 1999, the unpaid principal on State 
supported guarantees (amounts expressed in 
thousands) are as follows: 

 Amount Interest Annual
Authority Defeased Rates Maturity To

DeKalb 2,125$        10.85% 2003
Joliet 1,200          9.40% 2003

3,325$        

Beginning July 1, 1985, the following newly 
certified local governmental units have received 

grants ranging from $.4 to $20 million through 
June 30, 1999: 

Quad Cities 
Rosemont 
Centre East 
Quincy 
Peoria 
Ogle County 
Collinsville 

Bureau County 
Orland Park 
Knox County 
River Forest 
Aurora 
Pekin 
LaSalle County 

Aledo 
Benton 
Herrin 
Rockford 
Bowdre Township 
Mason County 

(K) Obligations to Lottery Prize Winners - 
 
The State has obligations to certain lottery prize 
winners for awards payable in annual install-
ments ranging from nineteen years to the life of 
the prize winner, with the first payment being 
made after the claim is presented for payment.  
In addition, the State has fulfilled its obligations 
for certain other prize winners through the pur-
chase of annuities under group contracts. 

Prior to July 1985, the State purchased annuity 
contracts in the name of the prize winner 
through agreements with insurance companies 
which provide payments corresponding to the 
Lottery’s obligation to the prize winner.  The 
State would be contingently liable for such fu-
ture payments if the insurance company de-
faulted on their payment obligation. 
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As the State has met its primary obligation for 
these future payments, the liability and corre-
sponding value of the annuity contracts are not 
included in these financial statements.  The pres-
ent value of future installment payments owed to 
these prize winners approximates $32.6 million 
at June 30, 1999. 
 
Effective July 30, 1985, State law provides that 
the State Treasurer, with the consent of the Di-
rector of the Lottery, may contract to invest in 
securities which provide payments correspond-
ing to the Lottery’s obligation to these winners.  
For certain prize winners, annuities were pur-
chased in the name of the State for which the 
State  has retained the rights of ownership.  The 
present value of these annuities and the related 
liabilities owed to prize winners, approximating 
$77.9 million, have been reported in the finan-
cial statements of the State Lottery Fund, a pro-

prietary fund. 
 
In addition to the prize obligations discussed 
above, the State has provided for other payments 
corresponding to the Lottery’s obligation 
through the purchase of other securities, primar-
ily in the form of United States Treasury zero 
coupon bonds.  As established by State law, 
such investments shall be maintained in the De-
ferred Lottery Prize Winners Trust Fund, a spe-
cial trust fund separate and apart from all public 
money or funds of the State.  In accordance with 
the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31, Ac-
counting and Financial Reporting for Certain 
Investments and for External Investment Pools, 
this fund is reported as an investment trust fund, 
with the investments reported at fair value ap-
proximating $1.7 billion and the fund balance 
reported as reserved for external investment 
pool participants. 
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15      CHANGES IN LONG-TERM  
     OBLIGATIONS 

 

Changes in long-term obligations (amounts ex-
pressed in thousands) for the year ended June 
30, 1999 are summarized as follows: 

 

*The debt issues amount represents the gross 
issuance amount and not the net proceeds that 
are reported in the operating statements. 

Net General Special Other
Notes Revenue Pension Obligation Obligation Long-Term

Payable Bonds Obligation Bonds Bonds Obligations
(Note 9) (Note 13) (Note 10) (Note 11) (Note 12) (Note 14)

Balances at July 1, 1998,
  as originally reported 102,093$      4,922,635$       11,304,662$      5,886,104$      1,832,306$      1,586,127$       
Adjustment to prior year
  balance for SURS due to
  changes in actuarial calculations (304)                    

Balances at July 1, 1998 102,093        4,922,635         11,304,358         5,886,104        1,832,306         1,586,127         

Primary Government:
Compensated absences earned 331,292            
Increase in workers'
  compensation liability 1,578                 
Debt issues 65,500          203,996            772,334           * 60,000              *
Increase in lease and installment
  purchase obligations 24,093              
Compensated absences taken (328,248)           
Amortization of bond discounts
  and  bond issuance costs 454                    
Amortization of deferred
  amounts on bond refundings 339                    
Increase in accreted value of
  capital appreciation bonds 1,681                 113,144           10,778              
Principal retirements and terminations (60,660)         (40,913)             (645,138)          (75,420)            (51,511)             
Excess of annual pension cost
  ("APC") over employer contributions
  from governmental fund types 811,337              
Other (7,405)               
Total Primary Government 4,840            165,557            811,337              240,340           (4,642)              (30,201)             

Component Units:
Debt issues 4,473            637,619            
Amortization of bond discounts
  and bond issuance costs (26)                    
Amortization of deferred amounts 
  on bond refundings 511                    
Increase in accreted value of 
  capital appreciation bonds 23,826              
Principal retirements and terminations (814)              (640,978)           
Total Component Units 3,659            20,952              -- --                     -- --                   -- --                   -- --                    
Balances at June 30, 1999 110,592$      5,109,144$       12,115,695$      6,126,444$      1,827,664$      1,555,926$       

Proprietary and Other General Long-Term Obligations Account Group
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16             FUND EQUITY 
 
 

A.         Fund equity reservations and designa-

tions not displayed separately on the combined 
balance sheet (amounts expressed in thousands) 
at June 30, 1999 consisted of the following: 

As disclosed in Note 1-R, the above fund equity 
reservations are not available to finance current 
operations of State government at the balance 
sheet date or are legally restricted to a specific 
future use.  In governmental funds, the reserves 
represent portions of asset accounts that are non-
current. 
 
Specifically, the $453,850 Federal highway pro-

gram receivable is due from the Federal govern-
ment and will be received upon the Federal gov-
ernment increasing their grant amount to exceed 
their apportionment authorization. 
 
B.          During the year, contributed capital in-                            
creased pursuant to the following schedule 
(amounts expressed in thousands): 

 Total
(Memorandum

Only)
Special Debt Capital Expendable Primary Component

General Revenue Service Projects Enterprise Trust Government Units

Fund Equity:
    Retained Earnings:
      Reserved for:
         Revenue bond and 
           note retirement 96,814$      96,814$         283,075$      
         High risk insurance
           program and other 36,253        36,253           69,788          
         Total reserved
           retained earnings 133,067$    133,067$        352,863$      

Fund Balances:
    Reserved for other:
      Long-term portion of:
         Federal highway
           program receivable 453,850$       453,850$        
         Intergovernmental 
           receivable 367$           367                4,500$          
         Other receivables 4,349             4,349             
         Loans and notes 
            receivables 17,709        702,157         25,500$     745,366         121,300        
      Encumbrances 410,657      1,570,740      626,363$    2,465$          2,610,225       29,636          
      Inventories 38,083        34,745           72,828           
      Restricted fund balances - -                   598,673        
      Endowment and similar funds - -                   862,128        
      Unemployment 
          compensation benefits 2,322,271     2,322,271       
      Other 5,282          15,879           1,883            23,044           28,837          
      Total fund balances
         reserved for other 472,098$    2,781,720$    25,500$     626,363$    2,326,619$   6,232,300$     1,645,074$   

    Unreserved:
      Designated for:
         Debt Service 802,816$   802,826$        
         Deferred compensation
             benefits 1,442,026$   1,442,026       
         Other 26,880$        
       Total unreserved,
        designated fund
        balances 802,816$   1,442,026$   2,244,852$     26,880$        

Fund Types
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17             FUND DEFICITS 
 
 

Primary Government: 
 
The State’s General Fund, from which a 
significant portion of day to day operating 
expenditures are paid, has a GAAP deficit 
aggregating $303 million at June 30, 1999, 
although the cash basis fund balance at that date 
was $1,351 million.  This deficit results from 
recognition of fund liabilities significantly in 
excess of accrued revenues. 
 
The Drivers Education Fund of the State Board 
of Education (reported as a special revenue 
fund) has a deficit at June 30, 1999, aggregating 
$11.8 million, resulting from reimbursement to 
school districts for drivers education program 
costs incurred in the current year but not paid 
until the subsequent year. 
 
The Mental Health Fund of the Department of 
Human Services (reported as a special revenue 
fund) has a deficit at June 30, 1999, aggregating 
$12.0 million, resulting from workers’ 
compensation claims incurred in the current 
year, but not paid until the subsequent year. 

The Local Government Health Insurance 
Reserve Fund (reported as an enterprise fund) 
has a deficit at June 30, 1999, aggregating $1.3 
million, resulting from a rate structure which 
was insufficient to support claims paid in fiscal 
year 1998 and fiscal year 1999.  The rate 
structure was amended for both fiscal year 1999 
and fiscal year 2000 to ensure payments 
received would support future claims and build 
an appropriate reserve. 
 
The Federal Department of Agriculture Fund of 
the State Board of Education (reported as a 
special revenue fund) has a deficit at June 30, 
1999, aggregating $132 thousand, resulting from 
program costs incurred in the current year but 
not paid until the subsequent year. 
 
The Prepaid Tuition Fund of the Illinois Student 
Assistance Commission (reported as an 
enterprise fund) has a deficit at June 30, 1999, 
aggregating $709 thousand, resulting from 
program costs incurred since the inception of the 
program which will be paid in subsequent years. 
 
The above Governmental Funds’ deficits will be 
eliminated by future revenue increases and/or 
expenditure reductions in the following year(s). 

Contributed Contributed
Capital Capital
7/1/98 6/30/99

Primary Government -

Internal Service:
Central Management Services:
  Statistical Services Revolving Fund 8,157$         8,157$             
Department of Corrections:
  Working Capital Revolving Fund 9,179           74$             9,253               
Other 1,837           1,837               
  Total Internal Service 19,173         74               - -              19,247             

Total (Memorandum Only)
  Primary Government 19,173         74               - -              19,247             

Component Unit -

Development Finance Authority 18,508         18,508             
Farm Development Authority 12,232         12,232             
Other 2,790           6                2,784               

Total Component Unit 33,530         - -                6                33,524             

Total (Memorandum Only)
  Reporting Entity 52,703$       74$             6$              52,771$           

Fixed Assets
Additions Deletions
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18     CONDENSED FINANCIAL  
    STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY  

                PRESENTED COMPONENT  
               UNITS  

Condensed financial statements (amounts ex-
pressed in thousands) for the State’s discretely 
presented component units for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 1999 are as follows: 

CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS: 
BALANCE SHEETS 

 

CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS: 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY 

 

Illinois Illinois East
Distance Illinois Grain Illinois St. Louis
Learning Literacy Insurance Conservation Fin. Advisory

Foundation Foundation Corporation Foundation Authority
Assets:
Due from other funds
Due from primary government 39$                     
Other current assets 48$                     40$                     4,013                  88$                     4,769$                
Property, plant and equipment
Other assets 1,663                  
Total assets 48$                     40$                     4,052$                1,751$                4,769$                

Liabilities:
Due to other funds
Due to primary government
Other current liabilities 165$                   43$                     
Bonds payable
Other long-term liabilities
     Total liabilities - -                       - -                       165                     43                       - -                       

Equity:
Contributed capital
Investment in fixed assets
Retained earnings
Fund balance 48$                     40$                     3,887                  1,708                  4,769$                
     Total equity 48                       40                       3,887                  1,708                  4,769                  
Total liabilities and equity 48$                     40$                     4,052$                1,751$                4,769$                

Governmental

Illinois Illinois East
Distance Illinois Grain Illinois St. Louis
Learning Literacy Insurance Conservation Fin. Advisory

Foundation Foundation Corporation Foundation Authority

Revenues 3$                       6$                       700$                   2,639$                492$                   
Expenditures
   Current 4                         6                         172                     1,772                  266                     
   Capital outlays
   Debt service
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Capital lease financing
Other financing sources
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
   over (under) expenditures (1)                       - -                       528                     867                     226                     
Equity-beginning 49                       40                       3,359                  841                     4,543                  
Equity-ending 48$                     40$                     3,887$                1,708$                4,769$                

Governmental
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS: 
BALANCE SHEETS  (continued) 

CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS: 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY (continued) 

 

 

 
East Illinois

St. Louis Development Housing Medical
Development Finance Development District

Authority Authority Authority Commission Total

51,915$              1,377$                57,132$              

14,439                1,085                  17,744                
3,111                  3,111                  

256                     256                     
166                     166                     

(8,013)                 (154)                    (8,167)                 
57                       57                       

3,033                  3,033                  

- -                       - -                       29,463                27                       31,110                
2$                       4,699$                160,201              203                     173,937              
2$                       4,699$                189,664$            230$                   205,047$            

Governmental (continued)

East Illinois
St. Louis Development Housing Medical

Development Finance Development District
Authority Authority Authority Commission Other

181$               

2$                   4,700$            190,929$        6,263              
18,274            205$               

1                     
2$                   4,700$            190,929$        24,719$          205$               

1$                   1,265$            131$               

6,084              

- -                    1                     1,265              6,215              - -                    

18,274            205$               

2$                   4,699              189,664          230                 
2                     4,699              189,664          18,504            205                 
2$                   4,700$            190,929$        24,719$          205$               

Governmental (continued)
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS: 
BALANCE SHEETS    (continued) 

CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS: 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY    (continued) 

 

Community Comprehensive
Development Health Farm Health Educational

Finance Insurance Development Facilities Facilities
Corporation Board Authority Authority Authority

Assets:
Due from other funds 2$                       
Due from primary government
Other current assets 6$                       88,014$              12,597                8,105$                814$                   
Property, plant and equipment 99                       47                       28                       
Other assets 1,392                  4                         
Total assets 6$                       88,113$              14,038$              8,137$                814$                   

Liabilities:
Due to other funds 2$                       
Due to primary government 7$                       1                         
Other current liabilities 20,984                76                       87$                     69$                     
Bonds payable
Other long-term liabilities
     Total liabilities - -                       20,991                79                       87                       69                       

Equity:
Contributed capital 12,232                
Investment in fixed assets
Retained earnings 6$                       67,122                1,727                  8,050                  745                     
Fund balance
     Total equity 6                         67,122                13,959                8,050                  745                     
Total liabilities and equity 6$                       88,113$              14,038$              8,137$                814$                   

Proprietary

Community Comprehensive
Development Health Farm Health Educational

Finance Insurance Development Facilities Facilities
Corporation Board Authority Authority Authority

Operating revenues 25,046$                1,090$           1,306$            373$              
Operating expenses:
  Depreciation 59                        14                  14                   
  Other 50,262                  806                1,441              335                
Operating income (loss) - -                    (25,275)                270                (149)                38                  
Other non-operating
   revenue (expense) 11,318                  152                293                 36                  
Transfers-in (out) 658                
Transfers from (to)
   primary government 15,324                  
Net income for the year - -                    1,367                   1,080             144                 74                  
Equity-beginning, as restated 6$                   65,755                  647                7,906              671                
Contributed capitol 12,232           
Equity-ending 6$                   67,122$                13,959$         8,050$            745$              

Proprietary
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS:   
BALANCE SHEETS   (continued) 

 

CONDENSED STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS: 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY  (continued) 

 

Quad Cities Southwestern
Development Housing Rural State Toll Regional Illinois Upper Valley

Finance Development Bond Highway Economic Development Development
Authority Authority Bank Authority Development Authority Authority

3,852$                1,265$                

25,450                502,610              24,739$           364,234$            256$                   2,960$                140$                   
19                       722                     35                    1,829,568           623                     

10,856                2,001,904           100,279           145,780              3,051                  
40,177$              2,506,501$         125,053$         2,339,582$         256$                   6,634$                140$                   

3,851$                3$                       
14$                  

2,437                  214,054              7,466               126,594$            2$                       3,074$                
2,059,984           88,585             894,565              

25,000             89                       
6,288                  2,274,041           121,065           1,021,159           91                       3,074                  - -                       

18,508                2,784               

15,381                232,460              1,204               1,318,423           165                     3,560                  140$                   

33,889                232,460              3,988               1,318,423           165                     3,560                  140                     
40,177$              2,506,501$         125,053$         2,339,582$         256$                   6,634$                140$                   

Proprietary (continued)

Quad Cities Southwestern Upper 
Development Housing Rural State Toll Regional Illinois Valley

Finance Development Bond Highway Economic Development Development
Authority Authority Bank Authority Development Authority Authority Total

2,880$             269,691$            7,136$                173,220$            39$                  1,219$                70$                  482,070$        

40                    358                     8                         59,133                18                       59,644            
2,969               161,769              7,439                  66,615                154                  358                     64                    292,212          
(129)                 107,564              (311)                    47,472                (115)                 843                     6                      130,214          

838                  (99,288)               (17,745)               11                    107                     (104,278)         
8,013                  8,671              

254                     15,578            
709                  16,289                (57)                      29,727                (104)                 950                     6                      50,185            

14,672             216,171              1,261                  1,288,696           269                  2,610                  134                  1,598,798       
18,508             2,784                  33,524            
33,889$           232,460$            3,988$                1,318,423$         165$                3,560$                140$                1,682,507$     

Proprietary (continued)
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS: 
BALANCE SHEETS (continued) 

 
Chicago Eastern Governor's Northeastern Western

State Illinois State State Illinois
University University University University University

Assets:
Due from other funds 1,085$                87$                     
Due from primary government 484                     243$                   1,041$                681                     314$                   
Other current assets 13,341                90,955                16,810                21,256                57,703                
Property, plant and equipment 112,033              186,522              75,053                126,764              250,723              
Other assets 769                     1,157                  3                         
Total assets 126,943$            278,489$            94,061$              148,791$            308,740$            

Liabilities:
Due to other funds 883$                   2$                       87$                     
Due to primary government 964                     117                     313$                   53                       529$                   
Other current liabilities 16,314                40,129                17,209                20,586                35,178                
Bonds payable 25,650                47,215                6,065                  38,033                
Other long-term liabilities 2,490                  10,418                580                     2,562                  157                     
     Total liabilities 46,301                97,881                18,102                29,353                73,897                

Equity:
Contributed capital
Investment in fixed assets 85,170                136,266              74,473                121,688              212,377              
Retained earnings
Fund balance (4,528)                 44,342                1,486                  (2,250)                 22,466                
     Total equity 80,642                180,608              75,959                119,438              234,843              
Total liabilities and equity 126,943$            278,489$            94,061$              148,791$            308,740$            

University 
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS: 
BALANCE SHEETS  (continued) 

 

Illinois Northern Southern University
State Illinois Illinois of

University University University Illinois Total

3,825$                5,150$                13,347$              28,794$              
2,532$                4,918                  7,691                  90,060                108,003              

116,036              122,200              278,760              1,570,433           3,528,271           
415,424              472,866              781,267              3,356,012           7,626,284           

321                     1,945                  1,063                  19,359                2,289,547           
534,313$            605,754$            1,073,931$         5,049,211$         13,580,899$       

77$                     3,825$                5,000$                13,667$              28,794$              
2,700                  35,451                40,149                

38,267                56,740                120,461              421,878              1,147,897           
59,477                83,003                125,078              358,475              3,786,130           

264                     33,457                137,295              212,312              
98,085                177,025              253,239              966,766              5,215,282           

33,524                
369,327              356,844              678,166              2,954,195           5,006,985           

1,648,983           
66,901                71,885                142,526              1,128,250           1,676,125           

436,228              428,729              820,692              4,082,445           8,365,617           
534,313$            605,754$            1,073,931$         5,049,211$         13,580,899$       

University  (continued)
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Selected financial information  by enterprise 
fund segment (amounts expressed in thousands) 
is as follows: 

The above referenced organizations and 
activities generate enterprise fund revenues as 
follows: 
 
(1) Illinois State Lottery revenues and 

operations. 
(2) Administration of State-authorized 

financial aid programs for post-
secondary students in Illinois. 

(3) Service and processing fees charged by 
the following board, departments, and 
commissions for their operations: 

 
Board 
• Board of Admissions to the Bar 

Departments 
• Central Management Services 
• Corrections 
• Human Services 
• Insurance 
• Veterans’ Affairs 
 
Commissions 
• Attorney Registration & Disciplinary  
        Commission 
• Office of Banks and Real Estate 
• Illinois Industrial Commission 
 

19        SEGMENT INFORMATION - 
       ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

 
Primary Government

Department Student
of Assistance

Lottery Commission Other
State

Lottery Total
(1) (2) (3)

Operating revenues 1,501,148$      96,142$             286,194$     1,883,484$     
Depreciation 696                  111                    871             1,678              
Operating income (loss) 524,811           9,258                 (1,043)         533,026          
Operating transfer-out 518,551           644                    1,721          520,916          
Nonoperating revenues 77                    23                      4,077          4,177              
Nonoperating expenses -- --                  21                      2,018          2,039              
Net income (loss) 6,337               8,616                 (705)            14,248            
Property, Plant and Equipment:
  Additions 457                  188                    1,143          1,788              
  Deletions 294                  -- --                    639             933                 
Net working capital 35,102             (133,240)            42,918        (55,220)           
Total assets 168,255           1,556,567          112,792       1,837,614       
Bonds and other long-term 
  liabilities payable from:
  Operating revenues -- --                  901,950             14,243        916,193          
  Other revenues 60,422             64,448               19               124,889          
Total equity 36,253             90,171               51,271        177,695          
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20             RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

 
The State has elected to retain the following 
liability exposures: worker’s compensation, 
vehicle, employee fidelity and surety, legal 
representation and employee indemnification, 
general liability and other tort liability.  The 
State purchases minimal commercial insurance.  
The insurance in force on State-owned assets is 
limited except for certain university facilities.  
Further, the State makes no provision for 
anticipated losses in the event of involuntary 
conversions.  Liabilities for claims, including 
claims incurred but not reported, are recorded in 
the funds or the General Long-Term Obligations 

Account Group as appropriate.  Claims 
liabilities are carried at present value discounted 
at 4.87% , which is the average interest rate for 
fiscal year 1999 general obligation debt issues.  
The amounts are based on actual claims that are 
outstanding, historical trend data and known 
inflation and cost of living factors.  There were 
no significant reductions in insurance coverage 
from the prior fiscal year.  The amount of 
settlements has not exceeded insurance coverage 
in the past three fiscal years.  The following is a 
reconciliation of the State’s claims liabilities for 
its major claims categories for the current fiscal 
year and prior year (amounts expressed in 
thousands): 
 

21             DEFERRED 
            COMPENSATION  

 
 
 
The State offers its employees a deferred 
compensation plan (the Plan) created in 
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 
457.  The Plan, which is administered by the 
Department of Central Management Services, 
permits participants to defer a portion of their 
salary until future years.  Amounts deferred 
under the Plan are not available to employees 
until termination, retirement, death, or an 
unforeseeable emergency. 
 
Under the current Internal Revenue Service 

regulations, all monies that are deferred and any 
other assets or income of the Plan shall be held 
in one or more custodial accounts for the 
exclusive benefit of their participating 
employees and their beneficiaries.  The State no 
longer owns the amounts deferred by employees 
or related income on those amounts. 
 
The State has implemented GASB Statement 32, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457, Deferred 
Compensation Plans, for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1999.  The State has determined that it 
does have significant administrative 
involvement and fiduciary accountability for the 
Plan and, as such, is required under GASB 
Statement 32 to report the Plan as an expendable 

The State administers the following two public 
entity risk pools for non-state employers:  1) The 
Local Government Health Insurance Reserve 
Fund offers a health insurance program to local 
governments for its employees and retirees, and 
2) the Teacher Health Insurance Security Fund 
offers health insurance to school districts for its 
teachers and retirees.  These funds are presented 

as enterprise funds in the State’s CAFR.  De-
tailed information on these programs can be ob-
tained from the Department of Central Manage-
ment Services, which administers both plans.  
Separate audit reports are issued for both plans 
and includes the required pool supplementary 
disclosures. 

Year Ended Beginning Claims Ending
June 30 Balance Incurred Decreases Balance

1998 62,490$       62,569$     66,164$         58,895$     
1999 58,895$       61,191$     59,438$         60,648$     

Changes in Claims Liability Balances
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trust fund.  The Deferred Compensation Plan 
Fund, which was previously reported as an 

agency fund, is being reported as an expendable 
trust fund in the financial statements. 

22             CONTINGENCIES 
 

 
 
In October 1997, a state Supreme Court decision 
held that the Illinois Privilege Tax (215 ILCS 
5/409), as in effect prior to 1998, was 
unconstitutional under the Illinois Constitution’s 
Uniformity Clause.  On remand the trial court is 
to determine whether Plaintiffs should get all 
protested privilege tax payments now on deposit 
or, as asserted by the State, any recovery should 
be offset by an amount representing an increased 
liability for the Plaintiffs under the Illinois 
Retaliatory Tax Statute (215 ILCS 5/444 and 
5/444.1).  In June the Trial Court decided this 
issue in favor of the Plaintiff protesters and the 
matter is now pending on Motion for 
Reconsideration.  The case was remended to the 
Trial Court and in June 1999, the Court ruled in 
favor of the plaintiffs, that protested privilege 
taxes on deposit of approximately $109 million 
should be returned. 
 
The State is treating the full amount of the 
protest account as a contingent claim of $109 
million, unless the State is successful on 
reconsideration or subsequent appeal. 
 
Pursuant to the Balanced Budget Act of 1997, 
the Illinois Student Assistance Commission is 
required to refund $19.7 million to the U.S. 
Department of Education by September 30, 
2002. 
 
The Illinois State Toll Highway Authority has 

entered into commitments for road construction 
of $215 million.  The Illinois Housing 
Development Authority has entered into 
commitments aggregating $30.4 million for 
home loans. 
 
The State receives significant financial 
assistance from the U.S. Government in the form 
of grants and entitlements.  Entitlement to these 
resources is generally conditioned upon 
compliance with terms and conditions of the 
grant agreements and applicable federal 
regulations, including the expenditure of the 
resources for eligible purposes.  Substantially all 
grants are subject to financial and compliance 
audits by the grantors.  Any adjudicated 
disallowance as a result of these audits becomes 
a liability of the State. 
 
Also, the State, its units and employees are 
parties to numerous legal proceedings, many of 
which normally recur, in governmental 
operations.  All legal proceedings are not, in the 
opinion of the Attorney General, likely to have a 
material impact on any of the State’s fund types 
or account groups. 
 
In addition, the State and its units are involved 
in certain other legal proceedings, which, if 
decided adversely to the State, may require the 
State to make material future expenditures for 
expanded services or capital facilities or may 
impair future revenue sources.  It is neither 
possible to determine the outcome of these 
proceedings nor to estimate the possible effects 
adverse decisions may have on future 
expenditures or revenue sources. 

23             SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

 
A Master Settlement Agreement (MSA) was 
executed in November of 1998 between five 

tobacco companies and 46 states, including the 
State of Illinois.  The MSA called for, among 
other things, the payment of more than $200 
billion allocated to the states in installments 
payable until the year 2025 with additional 
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payments continuing thereafter in perpetuity.  The 
Illinois share is expected to be $9.1 billion 
through 2025.  The payments are subject to 
various adjustments such as those for volume 
shipped, inflation, and the success of litigation by 
other governmental units and could amount to less 
than the expected amounts.  Various aspects of 
the MSA have been challenged in court both 
locally and nationally.  In addition, an attorney’s 
lien potentially in the amount of $910 million has 
been filed against Illinois’ proceeds, but the 
amount of loss to the lien, if any, is uncertain and, 
in any event, is subject to an offset of $121 
million awarded by an arbitrator for legal fees out 
of separate funds under the MSA.  Because of the 
novelty of the MSA and of the many related 
claims and because of the uncertainty inherent in 
calculation under the MSA, it is not possible to 
accurately predict the amount of money that will 
actually be received by the State with reasonable 
certainty.  It can be noted, however, that the 
State’s first payment of approximately $115 
million was received in the week of December 13, 
1999, contributing to a total of approximately 
$400 million that is expected by April of 2000. 
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Required Supplementary Information
Year 2000 Disclosure
(Unaudited)

The State of Illinois is currently addressing the Year 2000 (Y2K) data processing compliance
issues.  The Y2K issue exists because many computer programs use only two digits to identify a
year in the date field.  These programs were designed and developed without considering the
impact of the upcoming change in the century.  Therefore, such programs may interpret the year
2000 as the year 1900.  In addition, the Year 2000 is a leap year, which may generate
additional problems.  The State of Illinois will have to modify the computer systems or replace
current systems with year 2000-compliant systems to address this issue.  Finally, the Y2K issue
could adversely affect any system or electronic equipment containing embedded computer chips
that rely on date recognition features.

The following stages have been identified as necessary to implement a year 2000-compliant
system:

§ Awareness Stage – This stage encompasses establishing a budget and project plan for
dealing with the Year 2000 issue.

§ Assessment Stage – This stage begins with identifying all of the State’s systems and
individual components of those systems.  The State has identified its mission-critical systems
and equipment, which are systems and equipment that are critical to conducting operations
and checking for compliance.

§ Remediation Stage – This stage is comprised of making technical changes to existing
systems and equipment or switching to new compliant systems.  During this stage, decisions
are made on how to make the systems year 2000 compliant, and the required system
changes are made.

§ Validation/Testing Stage – This stage validates and tests the changes made during the
remediation stage.  This stage includes the development of test data and test scripts, the
running of test scripts, and the review of test results.

On July 30, 1998, with the enactment of Public Act 90-666, the State of Illinois created the
Year 2000 Technology Task Force (“Task Force”).  The Task Force is composed of several
elected constitutional State officials, including four members of the General Assembly, the
Auditor General, the Chief Justice of the Supreme Court, two representatives from
municipalities, townships and counties and seven representatives from major mission-critical
agencies.
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Effective February 1999, the Governor created the Illinois Technology Office.  This office was
designed to strengthen the State’s oversight of the Y2K preparedness efforts.  With the creation
of this office, the State moved from monitoring the readiness of mission-critical systems to
monitoring the readiness of business functions for material agencies under the Governor’s
Office.  The offices of the elected officials, retirement systems and universities are monitoring
their Y2K readiness and their status is reported below.

Illinois Technology Office (ITO) - The change in methodology adopted by the Illinois
Technology Office allows them to measure the readiness of a business function rather than the
Y2K-readiness of the technology that supports it.  The State’s Y2K-readiness efforts now
include measuring all components, including embedded chips; vendor and business partner
assurances of Y2K-readiness; and electronic interfaces with other computer systems, as well as
multiple tiers of computer hardware, software applications, and networking components.

Under this new methodology the State identified 708 business functions and developed
contingency plans in the event of unforeseen failures.  Of these, 75 (11%) are identified as Tier
1 functions, 120 (17%) as Tier 2 functions, and the remaining 513 (72%) as Tier 3 functions.  A
function assigned to Tier 1 indicates that this program, function or service could not be
interrupted for more than one day without endangering the public health, welfare or safety of the
citizens of the State of Illinois or seriously impacting the State’s revenues streams.  Tier 2
functions are those functions that could not be interrupted for more than one week and Tier 3
functions are all others.  According to the Year 2000 Project Monthly Status Report as of
November 30, 1999, the ITO reports that the Tier 1, 2 and 3 functions have completed 100%
of the awareness, assessment and remediation stages and approximately 89% of the
validation/testing stage.

Elected Officials - The Office of the Governor, the Office of the Attorney General, the Office
of the Secretary of State, the Office of the Comptroller and the Office of the Treasurer have
substantially completed all stages of Y2K implementation for major critical systems and have
formulated contingency plans.

Retirement Systems - The State’s retirement systems, the General Assembly Retirement
System, the Judges’ Retirement System, the State Employees’ Retirement System, the State
Universities Retirement System and the Teachers Retirement System have substantially
completed all stages of Y2K implementation for major critical systems and have formulated
contingency plans.

Universities - The State’s major University component units, the University of Illinois, Southern
Illinois University, Northern Illinois University, and Illinois State University have substantially
completed the awareness and assessment stages of Y2K implementation and are currently in the
remediation and validation stages of Y2K implementation.  These universities have also
formulated contingency plans.
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The State’s annual budgetary process does not readily support multi-year contracts. Therefore,
the amount of the outstanding commitments applicable to the Year 2000 vendors at June 30,
1999 was minimal and not informative in assessing the State’s expected current external costs.
However, the Illinois Technology Office has estimated the total cost of completing the Year
2000 Project will exceed $125 million for major agencies under the Governor’s Office.
Further, since all agencies have not reported the information on costs for completing the Year
2000 Project, the total estimated costs are not determinable at this time.

While the State of Illinois is taking what it believes to be appropriate action to address the Y2K
issue, there is no guarantee that all of the State’s systems and equipment will be year 2000-
compliant and there will not be an adverse impact upon State operations or finances as a result.
Since Y2K compliance by outside parties is beyond the State’s control to remediate, the failure
of outside parties to achieve Y2K compliance could have an adverse impact on State
operations or finances as well.  If significant adverse impacts were to occur, the State’s
contingency plans would be activated.
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Required Supplementary Information
Pension Trust Funds – Schedule of Funding Progress
(Unaudited)

The following schedule of funding progress (dollar amounts in thousands) for the State of Illinois’
retirement systems is provided for fiscal years ended June 30, 1997, 1998 and 1999.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f)

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAAL as a

Actuarial Actuarial Liability ("AAL") AAL Funded Percentage   of

Valuation Value of Projected Unit ("UAAL") Ratio Covered Covered Payroll

Date Assets Credit (b-a) (a/b) Payroll (c/e)

General Assembly

6/30/97 56,710$        143,837$                  87,127$        39.4% 9,362$        930.6%

6/30/98 62,738          150,408                    87,671          41.7% 10,005        876.3%

6/30/99 66,833          160,871                    94,038          41.5% 10,467        898.4%

Judges'

6/30/97 314,561        704,460                    389,899        44.7% 87,171        447.3%

6/30/98 356,693        747,276                    390,583        47.7% 94,626        412.8%

6/30/99 389,762        805,587                    415,825        48.4% 99,200        419.2%

State Employees'

6/30/97 6,048,027     7,548,208                 1,500,181     80.1% 3,003,628   49.9%

6/30/98 7,064,495     9,341,898                 2,277,403     75.6% 3,096,087   73.6%

6/30/99 7,986,433     9,998,205                 2,011,772     79.9% 3,212,569   62.6%

Teachers'

6/30/97 17,393,108   26,951,585               9,558,477     64.5% 5,013,583   190.7%

6/30/98 19,965,887   29,908,241               9,942,354     66.8% 5,323,403   186.8%

6/30/99 22,237,709   33,205,513               10,967,804   67.0% 5,698,117   192.5%

State Universities

6/30/97 8,376,300     10,552,200               2,175,900     79.4% 2,298,000   94.7%

6/30/98 9,792,000     11,416,100               1,624,100     85.8% 2,377,600   68.3%

6/30/99 10,761,700   12,617,500               1,855,800     85.3% 2,411,100   77.0%


